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Caution Regarding Forward-Looking Information
Statements contained in this MD&A, which are not historical facts, are forward-looking statements that involve risks,

uncertainties and other factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed or implied by

such forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause such differences, without limiting the generality of the

following, include: the impact of the sales volume of fuel fabrication services, uranium, conversion services, electricity

generated and gold; volatility and sensitivity to market prices for uranium, conversion services, electricity in Ontario

and gold; competition; the impact of change in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates; imprecision 

in capital costs, production, decommissioning, reclamation, reserve and tax estimates; environmental and safety 

risks including increased regulatory burdens and long-term waste disposal; unexpected geological or hydrological

conditions; adverse mining conditions; political risks arising from operating in certain developing countries; terrorism;

sabotage; a possible deterioration in political support for nuclear energy; changes in government regulations and

policies, including tax and trade laws and policies; demand for nuclear power; replacement of production; failure to

obtain or maintain necessary permits and approvals from government authorities; legislative and regulatory initiatives

regarding deregulation, regulation or restructuring of the electric utility industry in Ontario; Ontario electricity rate

regulations; natural phenomena including inclement weather conditions, fire, flood, underground floods, earthquakes,

pitwall failure and cave-ins; ability to maintain and further improve positive labour relations; strikes or lockouts;

operating performance, disruption in the operation of, and life of the company’s and customers’ facilities; decrease in

electrical production due to planned outages extending beyond their scheduled periods or unplanned outages;

success of planned development projects; and other development and operating risks. 

Although Cameco believes that the assumptions inherent in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, undue

reliance should not be placed on these statements, which only apply as of the date of this report. Cameco disclaims

any intention or obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information,

future events or otherwise.

What two topics dominate energy debate today? Easy –

global warming and energy security. With booming

economies in China and India, worldwide demand for

energy isn’t going away. It’s going up. And the question 

of how to meet the world’s energy appetite while reducing 

the threat of global warming has never been more critical. 

There’s a clear reason why many environmentalists, policy

makers and the general public are becoming strong

There’s a lot to talk about!

Our Profile
Cameco, with its head office in Saskatoon, Saskatchewan,

is the world’s largest uranium producer and supplier of

conversion services. The company’s competitive position 

is supported by its controlling ownership of the world’s

largest high-grade reserves and low-cost operations.

Cameco’s uranium products are used to generate clean

electricity in nuclear power plants around the world,

including Ontario where the company is a partner in

North America’s largest nuclear electricity generating

facility. The company also explores for uranium around

the world, while holding a majority interest in a mid-

tier gold company. Cameco’s shares trade on the

Toronto and New York stock exchanges.

supporters of nuclear energy. Nuclear is a safe,

reliable, cost-effective alternative. It does not emit

greenhouse gases. Nor does it emit acid rain producing

gases. And there’s more buzz. Right now, countries

representing half the world’s population are building

new nuclear power plants. 

At Cameco, we believe the world needs nuclear – the

clean air energy. That’s something to talk about.
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Glossary (inside back cover) 

*This management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) is designed to provide investors with an informed discussion of Cameco’s 

business activities and reflects information known to management as at March 16, 2007. This MD&A is intended to supplement 
and complement our audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto for the year ended December 31, 2006, prepared 
in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), (collectively our financial statements). As 
required by securities authorities, a reconciliation of our Canadian GAAP financial statements to US GAAP is included in note 28
to the financial statements. You are encouraged to review our financial statements in conjunction with your review of this 
MD&A. Additional information relating to the company, including our annual information form, is available on SEDAR at 
sedar.com. All dollar amounts are in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise specified. The financial information in this MD&A has 
been prepared in accordance with Canadian GAAP, unless otherwise indicated. In addition, we use non-GAAP financial measures 
as supplemental indicators of our operating performance and financial position. We use these non-GAAP financial measures 
internally for comparing actual results from one period to another, as well as for planning purposes. We have historically reported 
non-GAAP financial results, as we believe their use provides more insight into our performance. When non-GAAP measures are 
used in this MD&A, they are clearly identified as a non-GAAP measure and reconciled to the GAAP measure. All sensitivities in 
this MD&A noted for 2007 reflect the potential impact for the full year. 

Statements contained in this MD&A, which are not historical facts, are forward-looking statements that involve risks, 
uncertainties and other factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed or implied by such 
forward-looking statements. For more detail on these factors, see the section titled “Caution Regarding Forward-Looking 
Information” in this MD&A. 



OVERVIEW 

Vision
Cameco will be a dominant nuclear energy company producing uranium fuel and generating clean 
electricity.

Mission
Our mission is to bring the multiple benefits of nuclear energy to the world. We are a global supplier of 
uranium fuel and a growing supplier of clean electricity.

We deliver superior shareholder value by combining our extraordinary assets, exceptional employee 
expertise and unique industry knowledge to meet the world’s rising demand for clean, safe and reliable 
energy.

The key measures of our success are a safe, healthy and rewarding workplace, a clean environment, 
supportive communities and outstanding financial performance. 

Values
SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT 
• The safety of people and protection of the environment are the foundations of our work. All of us share 

in the responsibility of continually improving the safety of our workplace and the quality of our 
environment. 

PEOPLE
• We value the contribution of every employee and we treat people fairly by demonstrating our respect for 

individual dignity, creativity and cultural diversity. By being open and honest we achieve the strong 
relationships we seek. 

INTEGRITY 
• Through personal and professional integrity, we lead by example, earn trust, honour our commitments 

and conduct our business ethically.

EXCELLENCE 
• We pursue excellence in all that we do. Through leadership, collaboration and innovation, we strive to 

achieve our full potential and inspire others to reach theirs. 

CAMECO’S BUSINESSES 
Cameco is involved in four business segments: 
• uranium,  
• fuel services, 
• nuclear electricity generation, and 
• gold.
The only significant commercial use for uranium is to fuel nuclear power plants for the generation of 
electricity. In recent years, nuclear plants generated about 16% of the world’s electricity. 
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The major stages in the production of nuclear fuel are uranium exploration, mining and milling, refining and 
conversion, enrichment and fuel fabrication. Once a commercial uranium deposit is discovered and reserves 
delineated, regulatory approval to mine is sought. Following regulatory approval, the mine is developed, and 
ore is extracted and processed at a mill to produce uranium concentrates. Mining companies sell uranium 
concentrates to nuclear electricity generating companies around the world on the basis of the U3O8
contained in the concentrates. These utilities then contract with converters, enrichers and fuel fabricators to 
produce the required reactor fuel.

Uranium
Cameco is the world’s largest uranium producer, accounting for 20% of the world’s production in 2006 and 
backed by more than 500 million pounds of proven and probable reserves of uranium. We have controlling 
ownership of the world’s largest high-grade uranium reserves and low-cost operations located in northern 
Saskatchewan. Cameco operates four mines in Canada and the United States, and has two mines under 
development, one each in Canada and Central Asia. 

Fuel Services 
The company is an integrated uranium fuel supplier with refining facilities at Blind River and fuel services 
facilities (conversion and fuel fabrication) at Port Hope, both located in Ontario, Canada.

The Blind River facility refines uranium concentrates into uranium trioxide (UO3), an intermediate product 
in the uranium conversion process. Our Port Hope conversion services plants chemically change the form of 
the UO3 to either uranium hexafluoride (UF6) or uranium dioxide (UO2). The Port Hope plants have the 
licensed capacity to produce 18% of the world’s annual requirements of UF6 used in making fuel for light 
water reactors. In 2005, Cameco signed a toll-conversion agreement to acquire UF6 conversion services 
from Springfields Fuels Ltd. (SFL) in Lancashire, United Kingdom. Under the 10-year agreement, SFL will 
annually convert a base quantity of 5 million kgU as UO3 to UF6 for Cameco. This arrangement increases 
our UF6 conversion capacity by 40%. In addition, Port Hope is the world’s only commercial producer of 
natural UO2, the fuel used by all Canadian-designed Candu reactors.

During early 2006, Cameco became a nuclear fuel manufacturer by acquiring Zircatec Precision Industries, 
Inc. (Zircatec) in Port Hope and Cobourg. This company manufactures fuel bundles for use in Candu 
reactors. With this acquisition, Cameco now participates in all stages of the Candu nuclear fuel cycle. 

Nuclear Electricity Generation 
Cameco generates clean electricity through its 31.6% interest in the Bruce Power Limited Partnership 
(BPLP), which operates the four Bruce B nuclear reactors and manages the overall site located in southern 
Ontario. We are the fuel procurement manager for uranium, conversion services and fuel fabrication for 
BPLP’s four B nuclear reactors. For the Bruce A reactors, Cameco is the fuel procurement manager for 
conversion services and fuel fabrication. Through the Bruce Power restructuring in 2005, Cameco no longer 
holds a 31.6% ownership in the four A reactors. BPLP’s four B reactors have a combined net generation 
capacity of about 3,200 megawatts (MW), supplying about 15% of Ontario’s electricity. 

Gold
Cameco has a 52.7% interest in Centerra Gold Inc. (Centerra), which began trading on the Toronto Stock 
Exchange in June 2004. Cameco transferred substantially all its gold assets to Centerra as part of the 
strategy to unlock the value of those assets. Centerra is a growth-orientated Canadian-based gold producer 
focused on acquiring, exploring and developing gold properties in Central Asia, the former Soviet Union 
and other emerging markets. Centerra operates two gold mines, located in the Kyrgyz Republic and 
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Mongolia. Gold is not a core business for Cameco. Centerra was created as a vehicle for Cameco to 
eventually exit the gold business. 

GROWTH STRATEGY 
Cameco’s goal is to be a dominant nuclear energy company – the supplier, partner, investment and 
employer of choice in the nuclear industry. Cameco will achieve this goal through four main strategies: 

• maintain our competitive advantage in uranium and conversion,  
• maximize growth in uranium markets, 
• continue vertical integration, and 
• promote growth in the nuclear energy industry. 

Our specific strategies in the uranium and conversion businesses – the company’s core businesses – are 
discussed under the sections “Uranium Strategies” and “Fuel Services Strategies” respectively, in this 
MD&A.

In pursuing further integration in nuclear fuel supply and nuclear power generation, our goals are to: 
• add significantly to shareholder value, through new opportunities within the nuclear fuel cycle, 
• secure projects that have an attractive rate of return and provide a basis for long-term profitability, 
• supply fuel, engage Cameco’s operational and management expertise, and achieve synergies in fuel 

supply logistics and market position, 
• capture the value added to uranium in each step of the fuel cycle, including its enormous energy 

value in the final generation of electricity, 
• strengthen Cameco’s foundation for further expansion in the nuclear fuel cycle, and 
• ensure each investment has a prudent risk/reward ratio.

The key strategies are to: 
• maximize choice by considering acquisition and investment opportunities in all aspects of the 

nuclear fuel cycle, 
• seek opportunities to facilitate change in the nuclear industry by supporting or leading the 

development, assessment, or licensing of new technology,
• evaluate and encourage BPLP’s growth strategy,
• pursue partnering opportunities throughout the nuclear fuel cycle by leveraging fuel-supply 

relationships, and by enhancing relationships with industry leaders in nuclear technology, 
• seek active ownership by structuring each investment to allow participation in management and, 

where possible, operational involvement, and 
• seek to maximize nuclear power’s contribution to global energy supply by: 

o promoting industry initiatives to position nuclear power as a major part of the solution in 
addressing clean air and climate change by providing leadership and resources to key 
industry associations and by developing government relationships, and  

o diversifying into related technologies that support nuclear energy development. 

TRENDS IN THE NUCLEAR POWER INDUSTRY 
A number of evolving trends in the nuclear power industry have the potential to affect Cameco’s uranium 
and fuel services businesses. 
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REACTORS – OPERATING, PLANNED AND UNDER CONSTRUCTION 
There are 434 reactors operating worldwide, and a total of 100 new reactors that are under construction or 
planned for completion within the next 10 years (as of March 2007). This more than offsets 10 anticipated 
closures for a net increase of 90 reactors during the period. Given that new reactors tend to have higher 
capacities than older units, this represents a 21% growth in nuclear generating capacity. Highlights include: 

• 59 reactors are scheduled to be built in Asia, as energy demand is driven by rapid economic 
expansion. More than 65% of this growth will occur in China and India which have plans to build 24 
and 15 reactors respectively,

• in Russia, Ukraine and several other eastern European countries, it is anticipated that 14 reactors will 
be built, offset by one closure in Armenia, 

• in Finland, a new European Pressurized Water Reactor (EPR) is being constructed and when 
completed, will bring the country’s total to five nuclear reactors,  

• France has announced the construction of a new EPR beginning in 2007, and 
• in Canada, Bruce Power A Limited Partnership (BALP) is refurbishing two A units which had 

previously been shutdown, and both Bruce Power and Ontario Power Generation Inc, (OPG) have 
initiated the regulatory process for new generating units.

REACTORS – PENDING
A number of non-nuclear countries including Kazakhstan, Belarus, Italy, Indonesia, Poland, Turkey and 
Vietnam are considering nuclear programs. Additionally, South Africa is developing a new type of reactor, 
called the Pebble Bed reactor that, if successful, will be smaller and targeted at regions requiring electricity, 
but lacking critical distribution and transmission capability. 
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World Nuclear Reactors (Cameco estimate, March 2007) 1
   Outlook to 2016 

Nuclear
Electricity 
2005 2 (%) 

Operating
2007 New Shutdown Operating

2016
GWe

Change

Argentina 7 2 2 0 4 1.6 
Brazil 3 2 1 0 3 1.3 
Canada 15 18 3 1 20 2.2 
Mexico 5 2 0 0 2 0.0 
USA 19 103 6 0 109 6.0 
Americas Total 127 12 1 138 11.1 
China 2 9 24 0 33 20.4 
India 3 16 15 0 31 7.0 
Iran 0 0 2 0 2 1.9 
Japan 29 55 5 1 59 5.9 
Korea (South) 45 20 8 0 28 9.2 
Pakistan 3 2 2 0 4 0.6 
Taiwan 20 6 2 0 8 2.6 
Turkey 0 0 1 0 1 1.0 
Asia Total  108 59 1 166 48.5 
Belgium 56 7 0 0 7 0.0 
Czech Republic 31 6 0 0 6 0.0 
Finland 33 4 1 0 5 1.6 
France 79 59 1 1 59 1.6 
Germany 31 17 0 0 17 0.0 
Hungary 37 4 0 0 4 0.0 
Lithuania 70 1 1 1 1 0.4 
Netherlands 4 1 0 0 1 0.0 
Romania 9 1 3 0 4 1.3 
Slovakia 56 5 2 1 6 0.4 
Spain 20 8 0 0 8 0.0 
Slovenia 42 1 0 0 1 0.0 
Sweden 45 10 0 0 10 0.0 
Switzerland 32 5 0 0 5 0.0 
UK 20 19 0 4 15 -1.4 
Europe Total  148 8 7 149 3.9 
Russia 16 31 9 0 40 7.6 
Armenia 43 1 0 1 0 0.0 
Bulgaria 44 2 2 0 4 1.9 
Ukraine 49 15 3 0 18 2.9 
Russia and Eastern 
Europe Total  49 14 1 62 12.4 

South Africa 6 2 7 0 9 1.9
World Total  434 100 10 524 77.8 

1 Estimated by Cameco, March 2007. Based on public announcements made prior to March 2007. 
2 World Nuclear Association (WNA). 
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NUCLEAR POWER SHARE

2006 World Electricity Generation 
 (Source: World Nuclear Association) 

Nuclear - 16%

Oil - 10%

Gas - 15%

Hydro - 19%

Coal - 40%

Nuclear power accounts for about 16% of the world’s electricity generation. While the number of reactors 
and gigawatts produced are expected to increase over the next 10 years, the rate of growth in nuclear 
generation is expected to be less than the growth in total electricity generation. Therefore, nuclear’s share of 
world electricity is expected to decline over the 10-year period to about 13%. 

PLANT PERFORMANCE

SAFETY
There were no significant safety incidents at nuclear power plants during 2006 and nuclear power continues 
to be one of the safest forms of electricity production. Nevertheless, the industry is continuously seeking 
methods to improve its safety record.  

OPERATING COSTS
Based on the first ten months of 2006, the direct costs of US nuclear electricity production was the lowest 
for baseload (non-hydro) electricity production for the eighth consecutive year. US production costs were 
1.66 cents per kWh for nuclear, 2.28 cents for coal, 6.60 cents for natural gas and 9.64 cents for petroleum 
(Source: Nuclear Energy Institute NEI). 

Nuclear Acceptance 

POSITIVE TRENDS

North America 
Public support for nuclear power in North America is trending higher. In the US, a 2006 survey prepared by 
Bisconti Research for the NEI, showed that 86% of the public and 88% of college graduate voters agree that 
nuclear energy will play an important role in meeting future electricity demand. Majorities also support 
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license renewal for existing nuclear power plants and “definitely building” new nuclear power plants. The 
survey also showed 73% of Americans would find it acceptable to add a new reactor at the nearest existing 
nuclear power plant site.

In Canada, a recent Ipsos Reid survey showed that support for nuclear power in Ontario had increased to 
62% from 58%. 

In the US, 15 entities are now in the process of preparing applications for either early site permits (ESP) or 
combined construction and operating license (COL) for a potential new nuclear power plant. Applications 
from Dominion, Southern, Entergy (NuStart) and Exelon for ESPs are under review by the US Nuclear 
Regulatory Commission. One ESP has been approved, the first site licensed in the US in over 30 years. As 
many as 33 units are now being considered for potential new build. Several potential sites and reactor types 
have been identified with the potential for a new reactor to be completed as early as 2014.  

The US has recognized the strategic risk of over-reliance on natural gas and the contribution nuclear energy 
can make to clean air. 

Europe
The UK Prime Minister recently acknowledged that new nuclear construction must be considered in the 
UK’s plans for energy security and Kyoto compliance. 

The UK and the European Union have recognized the strategic risk of over-reliance on natural gas. 

Germany, Belgium, and the Netherlands continue to back away from a previous anti-nuclear stance. In 
Germany, many politicians have questioned the planned phase out program for its reactors by 2021 given 
one-third of the country’s electricity is generated by nuclear power and there is no obvious solution for 
replacing these plants with equally clean sources. In Belgium, the Minister of Energy commissioned a study 
to review Belgium’s future energy challenges. The study recommended that Belgium reconsider its plan to 
phase out its nuclear reactors by 2025. Over half of the country’s electricity is generated by nuclear power 
and the report warns that due to changing circumstances, it would be very costly to proceed with the phase 
out program. It noted that climate change action was becoming more urgent and the era of very cheap fuel 
prices was likely behind them. In the Netherlands, a previous decision to phase out its nuclear program was 
reversed.

India
In December 2006, US President Bush signed the United States-India Peaceful Atomic Energy Cooperation 
Act, a major step towards civil nuclear trade with India. The bill on nuclear cooperation between India and 
the US was passed in the US Senate by a majority of 85 to 12 in November 2006, following passage in the 
House of Representatives. The two countries now must conclude a bilateral agreement – known in the US as 
the 123 civil nuclear agreement, which essentially codifies their negotiations of the last 18 months. 
Additional steps before trade can take place include approval from India’s Parliament, India’s negotiation of 
a safeguard agreement with the International Atomic Energy Agency (IAEA) and approval from the 45-
nation Nuclear Suppliers Group. In addition, each country that wishes to trade with India must negotiate a 
bilateral agreement.  

NEGATIVE TRENDS
While nuclear power has finally been recognized as a non-emitting technology in US energy legislation, it 
still does not qualify internationally for greenhouse gas emission credits. 
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Although progress is being made in several countries on the management of radioactive waste from the 
nuclear fuel cycle, it remains a controversial issue. Concerns about the long-term management of 
radioactive waste continue to be an impediment to the nuclear renaissance. Certain environmental groups 
continue to oppose the nuclear power industry.

The first few new nuclear plants will face significant business risks including “first-of-a-kind” costs, as well 
as possible delays in financing, licensing and construction. 

SUMMARY OF TRENDS 
The nuclear industry is experiencing stable growth in the form of capacity factor improvements, 
refurbishments, life extensions and, in the developing world, aggressive new-build programs. While it is 
difficult to determine which factors will dominate the outlook for nuclear in the long-term, the demand for 
nuclear power is expected to accelerate in response to concerns about electricity supply, the need for non-
emitting base load power, and security of supply. 

URANIUM BUSINESS 

Worldwide Uranium Supply and Demand 
The uranium market supply and demand fundamentals remained strong in 2006, indicating a need for more 
primary mine production over the coming decade. During the past 20 years, uranium consumption has 
exceeded mine production by a wide margin, with the difference being made up by secondary supply 
sources such as various types of inventory and recycled products.
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URANIUM DEMAND
Overall, as discussed above under nuclear power trends, indicators support a trend of moderately growing 
demand for uranium and conversion services in the next ten years, with the potential for more rapid growth 
thereafter.
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Cameco estimates that the world uranium consumption totalled about 177 million pounds in 2006 and will 
increase to about 183 million pounds in 2007. We expect annual world uranium consumption will reach 239 
million pounds in 2016 reflecting an annual growth rate of about 3%. 

Growth in demand could be tempered as uranium price increases encourage utilities to utilize more 
enrichment services and less uranium. Uranium demand is affected by the enrichment process, which is one 
of the steps in making most nuclear fuel. Utilities choose the amount of uranium and enrichment services 
they will use depending on the price of each. In essence, utilities may substitute enrichment for uranium, 
thereby decreasing the demand for uranium and increasing the demand for enrichment. For example, when 
uranium prices rise, utilities tend to use more enrichment assuming enrichment prices remain constant. If 
enrichment prices increase, utilities would likely use less enrichment and more uranium. The tails assay 
(percentage of uranium left after processing) is an indication of the mix of uranium and enrichment used. At 
different prices for uranium, conversion and enrichment services there is a combination that minimizes the 
fuel cost called the optimal tails assay. The lower the tails assay, the less uranium being used.  

The uranium price has increased 580% since mid 2003. Over the same time period, enrichment prices have 
increased by only 25%. Thus, utilities are choosing lower tails assay under their enrichment contracts, using 
less uranium and more enrichment services. 

Based on current demand, a 0.01% decrease in tails assay would decrease uranium requirements by 2% or 
about 3 million pounds of uranium per year and increase the demand for enrichment services by 2%. It is 
important to note that there is a limit to the enrichment capacity that is currently available. In addition, 
enrichment contracts generally limit the ability to substitute enrichment for uranium. In the past, enrichers 
offered a wide range of tails assay, much like volume flexibilities on uranium contracts. Currently, enrichers 
are offering tails assay ranging from 0.25 to 0.3%, thus over time, as old enrichment contracts expire, the 
average tails assay will move to this range. 

In 2006, two reactors were connected to the electricity grid, one in India and one in China. India’s Tarapur-3 
entered commercial operation in August of 2006, while China’s Tianwan-1 is expected to begin commercial 
operation in spring 2007. There were eight reactor closures in 2006, four in the UK, two in Bulgaria, and 
one each in Slovakia and Spain. There were also nine power uprates. The net result was a 525 megawatt 
electric (MWe) increase in nuclear capacity. 

URANIUM SUPPLY
World uranium supply comes from primary mine production and a number of secondary sources.  

Mine Production 
We estimate world mine production in 2006 was about 103 million pounds U3O8, down 5% from 108 
million pounds in 2005, largely due to a variety of operating difficulties experienced at a few large 
production centres. We expect world production to increase to 117 million pounds in 2007.  

It is expected that with higher uranium prices, new mines will continue to start up, but the lead-time before 
they enter commercial production may be lengthy depending on the region. As a result, primary supply 
cannot significantly increase in the near-term. The level of increase in primary mine production is dependent 
on a number of factors, including:  
• the strength of uranium prices,  
• the efficiency of regulatory regimes in various regions,  
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• currency exchange rates in producer countries compared to the US dollar,
• prices for other mineral commodities produced in association with uranium (i.e. byproduct or co-product 

producers), and
• the quality and size of the ore reserve. 

2006 World Uranium Production 
(Cameco estimate)

Canada - 26%

Australia - 19%

CIS/China - 
18%

Africa - 17%

Kazakhstan - 
13%

US - 4%

Other - 3%

Secondary Sources 
Secondary sources of supply consist of surplus US and Russian military materials, excess commercial 
inventory and recycled products. Recycled products include reprocessed uranium, mixed oxide fuel and re-
enriched tails material. Some utilities use reprocessed uranium and mixed oxide fuel from used reactor fuel. 
In recent years, another source of supply has been re-enriched depleted uranium tails generated using excess 
enrichment capacity. We estimate that these recycled products will account for about 7% of world 
requirements over the next 10 years. With the exception of recycled material, secondary supplies are finite. 
Currently, most recycled products are a high-cost fuel alternative and are used by utilities in only a few 
countries.

One of the largest sources of secondary supply is the uranium derived from Russian highly enriched 
uranium (HEU). As a result of the 1993 HEU agreement between the US and Russia to reduce the number 
of nuclear weapons, additional supplies of uranium have been available to the market. Under the 20-year 
agreement, weapons-grade HEU is blended down in Russia to low enriched uranium capable of being used 
in western world nuclear power plants. Uranium derived from Russian HEU could meet about 7% of world 
demand over the next 10 years based on the current Russian HEU commercial agreement, which expires in 
2013. In parallel, the US has made some of its military inventories available to the market, in quantities 
much smaller than those derived from the Russian HEU agreement. 

Another source of potential supply is excess inventory held by the US Department of Energy. We expect 
about 4% of world demand through 2016 will be met from this source of supply.  

Historically, the other large source of secondary supply has been excess inventories. Prior to 1985, uranium 
mine production exceeded reactor requirements due, in large part, to government incentive programs that 
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anticipated rapid growth of nuclear generated electricity. The result was a buildup of large inventories, both 
in the commercial and government sectors.  

Since 1985, uranium consumption has exceeded mine production by increasingly wide margins, with a large 
part of the difference being made up by draw down of excess inventories. The company believes that most 
of these excess inventories have been consumed. In recent years, there has been evidence of this trend 
reversing, with some utilities purchasing uranium to build strategic inventories. 

Over the next 10 years, even with new mines currently under development, such as Cigar Lake and Inkai, 
this shortfall between demand and production is not expected to change significantly. The production 
response is expected to remain challenged, while demand is expected to continue growing due to better 
reactor operations, reactor uprates, life extensions and the construction of new units. However, there are a 
number of potential new mines and planned mine expansions that are expected to help meet this shortfall, 
but the timing and production rates are uncertain at this time. 

With 2006 uranium production less than 60% of uranium requirements, secondary supplies (such as 
recycling and blended down HEU) continue to bridge the gap between production and requirements and this 
is expected to continue in the near future.

Uranium Markets 
Utilities secure most of their uranium requirements (80% to 90% in recent years) by entering into long-term 
contracts with uranium suppliers. These contracts usually provide for deliveries to begin two to five years 
after contracts are finalized. In awarding contracts, utilities consider the commercial terms offered, 
including price, and the producer’s record of performance and uranium reserves. 

There are a number of pricing formulas, including fixed prices adjusted by inflation indices, reference prices 
(generally spot price indicators, but also long-term reference prices) and annual price negotiations. Many 
contracts also contain floor prices, ceiling prices and other negotiated provisions that affect the amount 
ultimately paid.  

Utilities acquire the remainder of their uranium requirements through spot purchases from producers and 
traders. Spot market purchases are those that call for delivery within one year. Traders and investors or 
hedge funds are active in the market and generally source their uranium from organizations holding excess 
inventory, including utilities, producers and governments.  

URANIUM SPOT MARKET
The industry average spot price (TradeTech and Ux) on December 31, 2006 was $72.00 (US) per pound 
U3O8, almost double the $36.38 (US) on December 31, 2005. Spot market volume reported for 2006 was 33 
million pounds. This compares to 36 million pounds for 2005.  

Discretionary purchases, or purchases not for immediate consumption, hit a record level in 2006 accounting 
for about 73% of spot market volume. There were continued increases in inventory building by utilities, 
trader positioning and investment and hedge fund participation. It is expected that spot market demand will 
remain strong in 2007 while supply remains tight, adding upward pressure to the price. 
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LONG-TERM URANIUM MARKET
The industry average long-term price (TradeTech and Ux) on December 31, 2006 was $72.00 (US) per 
pound U3O8, up almost 100% from $36.13 (US) at December 31, 2005.  

We estimate long-term contracting in 2006 to have been in excess of 200 million pounds U3O8, slightly less 
than the 240 million pounds contracted in 2005, but well above historic levels. 

We expect long-term contracting activity in 2007 will remain quite strong as utilities attempt to mitigate the 
risk of potential future supply shortfalls by securing long-term contracts with reliable primary suppliers. 
Currently, we estimate that approximately 200 million pounds will be contracted in the long-term market in 
2007.

Spot and Long-term Uranium Contract Volumes
(Sources: Ux and Cameco)
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Uranium Business – Key Performance Drivers  

The major factors that drive Cameco’s uranium business results are: 
• prices – spot and long-term, 
• volume – sales, production and purchases, 
• costs – production and purchases, and 
• the relationship between the US and Canadian dollars. 
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PRICES – SPOT/LONG-TERM
Background
While Cameco generally has not sold uranium in the spot market, about 60% of the company’s uranium is 
sold under its long-term contracts at prices that reference the spot market price near the time of delivery. 
The remaining 40% is sold at fixed prices escalated by an inflation index. Uranium market price indicators 
are quoted by the industry in US dollars per pound U3O8.

Uranium contract terms generally reflect market conditions at the time the contract is negotiated. 
Historically, after a contract negotiation was completed, deliveries under that contract typically did not 
begin for up to three years. For example, a contract that was signed in 2001, when the spot price averaged 
less than $9.00 (US), could have started deliveries in 2004 and could continue through to 2008. As a result, 
many of the contracts in our current portfolio reflect market conditions when uranium prices were 
significantly lower. For example, 2003 was the first year that the spot price averaged over $11.00 (US) since 
the 1995-1997 period. Before that they were much lower, and only exceeded $11.00 (US) on a sustained 
basis in 1988 and earlier. To the extent contracts have fixed or low ceiling prices, they will yield prices 
lower than current market prices. 

As a result, Cameco’s average realized price for uranium sales in 2006 was $20.62 (US) per pound of 
uranium compared to an average spot price of $49.60 (US) and average long-term price of $49.90 (US). In 
2006, the benefit of improved spot prices was also partially offset by a less favourable foreign exchange 
rate. Our average realized selling price rose by 34% in US dollars but only 23% in Canadian dollars over 
2005.

As in previous years, we are continually in the market signing new contracts. Generally, our current 
portfolio reflects a 60/40 mix of market-related and fixed pricing (escalated by inflation) mechanisms. In 
general, most new offers include price mechanisms that are more focused on market-related pricing. 
Consequently, we expect this ratio to change over time.  

In the current market environment of rapidly increasing uranium prices, this strategy has allowed Cameco to 
add increasingly favourable contracts to its portfolio while maintaining sensitivity to future price 
movements.  

Uranium Price Sensitivity 2007 
For 2007, a $1.00 (US) per pound change in the uranium spot price from $85.00 (US) per pound would 
change revenue by $6 million (Cdn) and net earnings by $3 million (Cdn). This sensitivity is based on an 
expected effective exchange rate of $1.00 (US) being equivalent to about $1.19 (Cdn) as a result of our 
currency hedge program. 

VOLUME – SALES, PRODUCTION AND PURCHASES

Sales Volume 
In 2006, Cameco delivered 36.1 million pounds of uranium, representing a 6% increase from 2005 
deliveries of 34.2 million pounds. The higher delivery volumes were in response to strong market demand.  

However, for revenue purposes in 2006, Cameco reported sales of 32.2 million pounds due to the 
accounting for product loans it has in place. During 2006, Cameco entered into standby product loan 
agreements with two of our customers. The loans allow Cameco to borrow up to 5.6 million pounds U3O8
equivalent over the period 2006 to 2008, with repayment in 2008 and 2009. Of the material available under 
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the loan, up to 1.4 million kgU can be borrowed in the form of uranium hexafluoride (UF6). Any borrowings 
will be secured by letters of credit and be settled in kind. 

As of December 31, 2006, Cameco had not borrowed any material under the standby loan agreements. 
However, regardless of whether any material is borrowed, we defer revenue recognition from sales to the 
counterparties of the standby product loan agreements, up to the limit of the loans (5.6 million pounds). This 
is in accordance with accounting standards. Cameco will recognize the deferred revenue and associated 
costs when the loan agreements are terminated, or if drawn upon, when the loans are repaid and that portion 
of the facility is terminated. Accordingly, for the year 2006, we have deferred revenue of $80 million and 
the associated costs on sales of 4.0 million pounds. The gross profit on the deferred sales was $15 million.  

In 2007, the reported sales volume and associated revenue may be affected by changes to product loan 
arrangements. In 2007, we expect uranium deliveries to total 33 million pounds. However, the reported sales 
volume for revenue purposes depends upon the product loan arrangements. We may terminate a portion or 
all of the product loan arrangements in 2007. To the extent we terminate the product loan arrangements, 
revenue that was deferred on up to 4 million pounds in 2006 would be recognized in 2007. If the product 
loan facilities remain in place unchanged, we would be required to defer revenue on an additional 1.6 
million pounds in 2007, regardless if any amount is drawn on the loans.  

Cameco sells more uranium than it produces from its mines and meets its contractual delivery commitments 
through a combination of mine production, long-term purchase arrangements, spot purchases and inventory. 

Production Volume 

Uranium Operations

Cameco’s share of production
(million lbs U3O8)

2007 Planned 2006 Actual 2005 Actual 

McArthur River/Key Lake  13.1 13.1 13.1 
Rabbit Lake 5.5 5.1 6.0 
Smith Ranch/ Highland  1.6 2.0 1.3 
Crow Butte 0.8 0.7 0.8 
Total 21.0 20.9 21.2 

McArthur River/Key Lake  
Cameco’s share of production of U3O8 at McArthur River/Key Lake in Saskatchewan was 13.1 million 
pounds for 2006. Ten days prior to year-end, the operations achieved the licensed annual production limit of 
18.7 million pounds (100% basis). Cameco’s share of production for 2007 is expected to be 13.1 million 
pounds for the full year. 

In November 2006, unionized employees at the McArthur River and Key Lake operations ratified a new 
four-year agreement that Cameco and the United Steelworkers of America (USW) had negotiated. The new 
collective agreement will expire December 31, 2009. 

At McArthur River, progress on freeze-hole drilling for two future mining zones improved by year end to 
near targeted rates. However drilling progress for 2006 was lower than targeted due to technical challenges 
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with drilling through frozen ground, additional time required to address operational challenges such as 
improvements to the drill setups, and earlier staffing challenges associated with getting a sufficient number 
of experienced drillers given the high levels of activity in the exploration diamond drilling industry. 

In 2006, we encountered mill process difficulties associated with higher levels of concrete dilution. We have 
installed sand filters in the mill to improve the clarity of the uranium solution. In addition, further mill 
process changes are planned for implementation in 2007. We are confident that with these changes, the Key 
Lake mill will be able to process this ore with high concentrations of concrete at target mill production rates. 

The increased concrete concentrations result from the mining process at McArthur River. Once a raise has 
been bored through the ore zone, it is backfilled with concrete. After all the rows of raises are complete in a 
chamber, equipment is removed from the area and the chamber is backfilled with concrete. A new chamber 
is excavated to allow for the next area to be mined and the cycle is repeated.  

In order to maximize mining ore recovery the cylindrical raises are deliberately overlapped. Therefore, as 
we mine ore that is adjacent to previously mined out raises backfilled with concrete, we experience higher 
concentrations of concrete in the mined ore and resulting uranium ore slurry.  

As previously reported, we have applied to increase the annual licensed production capacity at both the 
McArthur River mine and the Key Lake mill to 22 million pounds U3O8 (compared to the current 18.7 
million pounds). This application has been undergoing a screening level environmental assessment (EA) as 
required by the Canadian Environmental Assessment Act with the Canadian Nuclear Safety Commission 
(CNSC) as the responsible authority.

The CNSC has focused on an evaluation of the longer-term environmental impact of low levels of selenium 
and molybdenum in the Key Lake mill’s effluent and the concentration of these substances in the 
downstream receiving environment.  

Cameco has proposed a three-phase action plan to further reduce selenium and molybdenum discharges in 
the mill effluent, which was subsequently accepted by the CNSC staff. While we believe that the current 
level of control protects the environment and is consistent with past EAs of the Key Lake operation, we also 
recognize that improvements can be made to further reduce levels of these two metals.  

At a commission level hearing in January 2007, the CNSC considered a proposed licence condition for the 
Key Lake mill to implement this plan. We expect a CNSC decision shortly and the first phase of the plan to 
be in place later in 2007. Reducing the current level of these metals discharged to the environment is 
expected to help advance the EA to increase the annual licensed production limit at the McArthur River 
mine and the Key Lake mill. While we cannot predict the outcome of this assessment, we expect that the 
parallel work on effluent reduction will advance consideration of the proposal. We remain confident that we 
can incrementally increase production levels with minimal environmental effect. 

In addition to obtaining approval for the EA, we need to transition to new mining zones at McArthur River 
and to implement various mill process modifications at Key Lake in order to sustain increased production 
levels. Mine planning, development and freeze hole drilling for the McArthur River transition is ongoing. A 
revitalization pre-feasibility assessment for the Key Lake mill was initiated in October 2006. The mill began 
production in 1983 and was built as a world-class facility. Revitalization of Key Lake will include 
upgrading circuits to new technology for simplified operation and increased production capacity. 

16



Reinvesting in this mill will help maintain our leadership position in uranium production for many years 
into the future. 

At McArthur River, work also progressed on the planning of a boxhole boring mining method, which we 
anticipate using for production from upper zone 4 beginning in 2012. This zone is south of the current zone 
2 workings and the Pollock (main) shaft. We completed the mine plan for the boxhole boring test area for 
development in 2007 to 2008 and placed an order for a boxhole borer for delivery in early 2008. Long-term 
conceptual planning for resources north of the Pollock shaft was carried out and development of a tunnel for 
future access and drilling is progressing as planned. 

Refer to the section titled “Uranium Exploration” in this MD&A for information on exploration programs 
near McArthur River.

Rabbit Lake 
Rabbit Lake, located in Saskatchewan, produced 5.1 million pounds of U3O8 in 2006. Production in 2006 
was lower than 2005 as a result of lower than expected ore grades encountered at Eagle Point underground 
operations. In 2007, we are expecting to mine areas with higher grades relative to 2006. The outlook for 
2007 production is 5.5 million pounds of U3O8.

In 2006, the Rabbit Lake operation returned the mined out A-zone open pit to the surrounding Wollaston 
Lake and completed a mill project that reduces the concentration of uranium in the operation’s effluent 
discharge.

Similar to previous years, the underground diamond-drilling reserve replacement program was successful in 
2006. Over 69 kilometres of drilling was completed with excellent results. At the end of 2006, total proven 
and probable reserves are estimated at 737,000 tonnes at 1.2% U3O8 for 19.1 million pounds in areas that 
are currently being mined and in a new zone that is in close proximity to a newly producing mining area. 
We now anticipate that the Eagle Point mine life will continue through to 2011.  

As previously reported, we have been working on an EA to process a little over one-half of the future 
uranium production from Cigar Lake ore at the Rabbit Lake mill beginning in the third year of Cigar Lake 
production, depending on the production rampup. The draft EA study report was submitted to regulatory 
agencies for review in November 2006. We held a meeting with regulatory reviewers in February 2007 and 
are now preparing responses to their initial comments and questions. Rabbit Lake began operation in 1975 
and is Saskatchewan’s longest operating uranium operation. Given we expect to extend the life of this 
facility by processing a portion of Cigar Lake’s ore, we will begin a revitalization assessment of the mill in 
2007.

Smith Ranch-Highland and Crow Butte 
Smith Ranch-Highland and Crow Butte in situ leach (ISL) mines, located in Wyoming and Nebraska 
respectively, produced a record 2.7 million pounds in 2006, up from our original target of 2.4 million 
pounds. Smith Ranch-Highland produced 2.0 million pounds of our ISL production in 2006, which is the 
highest production achieved in the history of ISL mining in the US.  

Uranium Projects
Cigar Lake 
Cameco began construction of the Cigar Lake mine on January 1, 2005. On October 23, 2006, Cameco 
reported that a rock fall causing a water inflow had flooded the underground development. 
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As previously announced, Cameco intends to complete a technical report for Cigar Lake that meets 
requirements under Canadian Securities Administrators’ National Instrument 43-101. In the course of 
preparing that report, the company finalized material information which was news released on March 18, 
2007. More detailed information will be available in the technical report that Cameco plans to file with 
SEDAR before the end of March 2007. The information contained in news release issued on March 18, 
2007 is discussed below. 

Cameco is proceeding with a five-phase plan to restore the underground workings at Cigar Lake and 
complete construction. Each phase requires regulatory approval which has already been received for the 
work under way in phase one, other than drilling dewatering holes.

Cameco’s share of additional capital costs to develop Cigar Lake, including mill modifications at Rabbit 
Lake and McClean Lake (where the uranium will be processed), is currently estimated at $274 million. 
Adding this new cost estimate to the $234 million that Cameco has already spent on Cigar Lake 
construction brings Cameco’s share of total construction cost to develop the project to about $508 million. 
The increase from the last estimate of $330 million, provided on April 30, 2006, is primarily due to site 
costs during the extended construction period, higher contractor rates driven by the high level of 
construction activity in western Canada, increased energy costs and several scope additions. Two significant 
scope additions are increased dewatering capacity and optimized mine plans to freeze more underground 
areas such as the access tunnels to the production level. In addition to the $234 million of historic 
construction costs noted above, Cameco’s investment in Cigar Lake as of December 31, 2006 included $378 
million for expenditures related to test mining, infrastructure development and capitalized interest. 

In addition to capital costs, Cameco’s share of remediation expenses are expected to total $46 million, of 
which $5 million was expensed in 2006. In 2007, Cameco anticipates its share of remediation costs will be 
$32 million that will be expensed and reduce pre-tax earnings accordingly. In 2008, Cameco expects its pre-
tax earnings to be reduced by $9 million of remediation expenses for Cigar Lake. 

Forecast Cigar Lake Costs (Cameco’s share)1

Capital costs 
($ millions)

Prior
construction

costs
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Total 

Mine 203 68 99 71 - - 441 
Mills 31 6 5 9 5 11 67 
Total 234 74 104 80 5 11 508 

Remediation expenses1 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Total 
($ millions) 5 32 9 - - - 46

1 Future costs are in constant 2007 dollars. 

Cameco is making good progress on the first phase of remediation. The first phase involves drilling holes 
down to the source of the inflow and to a nearby tunnel where reinforcement may be needed, pumping 
concrete through the drill holes, sealing off the inflow with grout and drilling dewatering holes.

As of March 16, 2007, 13 of the 14 drill holes planned for reinforcing and sealing off the water inflow area 
are complete. Concrete is required in two locations underground – one near the rockfall to seal off the 
inflow area and another in a nearby tunnel to provide reinforcement. More than 1,000 cubic metres of 
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concrete have been poured through drill holes into the reinforcement area. The concrete mixture is designed 
to harden under water and is being poured in successive layers.

Cameco now expects to complete the work necessary to seal off the water inflow in the third quarter of 2007 
after spending additional time learning the best way to work with concrete in the water underground. This 
timeline assumes that the current pace of drilling is maintained, and the concrete solidifies as planned to 
provide reinforcement and prevent or reduce water inflow sufficiently to enable mine dewatering. The 
integrity of the plug will not be known until dewatering is under way.

Cameco has applied to the regulators for approval to drill an additional four, larger-diameter, holes that 
would be used to dewater the mine. Cameco has secured access to all drilling equipment required for the 
remediation work. We will also be making the appropriate application for relicensing since the current Cigar 
Lake construction licence expires at the end of 2007. 

The subsequent four phases of remediation and construction are: 

Phase 2 
Dewatering the underground development, verifying the water inflow has been 
sufficiently sealed, and initiating the installation of surface freezing infrastructure - 
expected to be completed by the end of the third quarter 2007. 

Phase 3 
Completing any additional remedial work identified in phase two such as 
determining if additional reinforcement is required in higher risk areas - expected by 
the end of 2007. 

Phase 4 

Completing underground rehabilitation that includes securing areas to prevent 
ground fall or water inflow, re-establishing mine ventilation, installing pumping 
capacity and re-establishing the ore freezing program - expected to be completed by 
the summer of 2008. 

Phase 5 Resuming construction activities that will lead to scheduled completion of the mine -
targeted for 2010.

While these phases are under way, the area around the flooded second shaft will be frozen after the 
installation of underground freeze pipes from a nearby tunnel. This is anticipated to be completed by the 
summer of 2008. Shaft sinking will continue with completion scheduled for 2010.  

Cameco has hired internationally qualified independent experts to investigate the two water inflow incidents 
at the Cigar Lake project and provide corrective action recommendations. The company will be carefully 
reviewing the final reports to identify opportunities for improvement. 

After construction is complete, Cameco estimates production startup in 2010, ramping up to the company’s 
share of full production of about 9 million pounds in just over two years. This is subject to regulatory 
approval and the remediation being completed in a timely fashion.  

Following a review of the reserves and resources at Cigar Lake, Cameco’s share of proven reserves remains 
unchanged at 113.2 million pounds. However, a small amount (Cameco’s share is 2.6 million pounds) of 
probable reserves have been reclassified as indicated resources due to a change in the cut-off grade to 5.9% 
U3O8. Additional work is required on the inferred resources to determine if they can be reclassified to a 
higher category.
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Cigar Lake Reserves and Resources at March 16, 2007
Category Tonnes 

(thousands)
Grade
%U3O8

Total
lbs U3O8
(millions)

Cameco’s Share 
lbs U3O8
(millions)

Reserves     
Proven reserves 497 20.7 226.3 113.2 
     
Resources     
Indicated resources 61 4.9 6.6 3.3 

    
Inferred 317 16.9 118.2 59.1 

Notes:
1 Cameco reports reserves and resources separately. The amount of reported resources does not include those amounts 

identified as reserves. 
2 Cameco’s share is 50.025% of total.  
3 Total pounds U3O8 for reserves are contained pounds before mill recovery of 98.5 % has been applied.  
4 Inferred resources have a great amount of uncertainty as to their existence and as to whether they can be mined legally or 

economically. It cannot be assumed that all or any part of the inferred resources will ever be upgraded to a higher category. 
5 Mineral reserves have been estimated at a minimum mineralized thickness of 2.5m and a cut-off grade of 5.9 % U3O8

applied to the mineral resource block model. Indicated mineral resources have been estimated at a cut-off grade of 1.2 % 
U3O8 and minimum mineralized interval of 2.5m. Inferred mineral resources have been estimated at a cut-off grade of 5.9 
% U3O8.

6 The geological model employed for Cigar Lake involves geological interpretations on section and plan derived from core 
drill hole information. 

7 Mineral reserves have been estimated assuming an allowance of 0.5 m of dilution above and below the deposit, plus 5% 
external dilution and 5% backfill dilution at 0% U3O8.

8 Mineral reserves have been estimated based on 90% mining recovery. No allowance for mining recovery is included in 
mineral resources. 

9 Mineral reserves and mineral resources were estimated based on the use of the jet boring mining method combined with 
block freezing of the orebody. Jet boring produces an ore slurry with initial processing consisting of crushing and grinding 
underground, leaching at the McClean Lake mill and yellowcake production split between the McClean Lake and Rabbit 
lake mills. Mining rate assumed to vary between 80 and 140 t/d and mill production rate of 18 million pounds of U3O8 per
year based on 98.5 % mill recovery.  

10 Mineral reserves and resources were estimated using a two-dimensional block model. 
11 For the purpose of estimating mineral reserves in accordance with NI 43-101, a uranium price of $38.50 (US)/lb U3O8 was 

used. For the purpose of estimating mineral reserves in accordance with US Securities Commission Industry Guide 7, a 
uranium price of $32.30 (US)/lb U3O8 was used. Estimated mineral reserves are almost identical at either price because of 
the insensitivity of the mineral reserves to the cut-off grade over the range of these two prices. 

12 The key economic parameters underlying the mineral reserves include an exchange rate of $0.91 US=$1.00 Cdn. 
13 Environmental, permitting, legal, title, taxation, socio-political, marketing or other issues are not expected to materially 

affect the above estimate of mineral reserves and resources. 
14 Mineral resources that are not mineral reserves do not have demonstrated economic viability. 

At a mill recovery rate of 98.5%, Cameco anticipates that its share of proven reserves will produce 111.5 
million recoverable pounds of U3O8 over 14.8 years of production. The first five years of planned 
production are as follows: 

Cameco’s share of Cigar Lake production 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 
(million pounds U3O8) 1.5 4.5 8.8 9.0 9.0 
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Cigar Lake will produce less than Cameco’s share of full production of 9 million pounds in the early and 
late years resulting in an average total recovery of 7.5 million pounds annually over the reserve life.  

The above discussion regarding Cigar Lake should take into consideration the following risk factors:
• Cigar Lake is a challenging deposit to develop and mine. These challenges include control of 

groundwater, weak ground formations, and radiation protection. The sandstone overlying the 
basement rocks contains significant water at hydrostatic pressure. Freezing the ground is expected to 
result in several enhancements to the ground conditions, including: (1) minimizing the risk of water 
inflows from saturated rock above the unconformity; (2) reducing radiation exposure from radon 
dissolved in the ground water; and (3) increasing rock stability. However, freezing will only reduce, 
not eliminate, these challenges. There is also the possibility of a water inflow during the drilling of 
holes to freeze the ground. Therefore, the risk of water inflows at Cigar Lake remains. The 
consequences of another water inflow will depend upon the magnitude, location and timing of any 
such event, but could include a significant delay in Cigar Lake’s remediation, development or 
production, a material increase in costs, a loss of mineral reserves or require Cameco to give notice 
to many of its customers that it is declaring an interruption in planned uranium supply. Such 
consequences could have a material adverse impact on Cameco. Water inflows are generally not 
insurable.  

• Cigar Lake’s remediation and production schedules are based upon certain assumptions regarding 
the condition of the underground infrastructure at the mine. The condition of this underground 
infrastructure, however, will not be known until the mine is dewatered. If the underground 
infrastructure has been impaired, this could adversely impact our schedules and cost estimates.  

• The outcome of each phase of remediation will impact the schedule of each subsequent phase of 
remediation and the planned commencement of production in 2010. For example, if the plug is not 
successful in securing the inflow area, then ground freezing, already incorporated in the remediation 
plan, will be utilized to secure the inflow area. If this situation occurs, there could be a delay in the 
remediation schedule and the commencement of production. 

• Remediation and production schedules will be impacted by regulatory approvals. We have not yet 
received regulatory approval to drill four drill holes for dewatering the mine during the first phase of 
the remediation plan. This approval is required to move forward with our planned dewatering 
strategy. We believe that each phase of remediation falls within the scope of the environment 
assessment of the Cigar Lake project. If regulatory authorities do not agree, this could impact our 
remediation and production schedules. In addition, working with the regulatory authorities to receive 
approvals for additional corrective actions which may result from current inflow investigations may 
impact our remediation and production schedules. Readers are cautioned that conclusions, 
projections and estimates set out in the section above under the heading “Cigar Lake” are subject to 
the qualifications, assumptions and exclusions which are detailed in the technical report. To fully 
understand the summary information set out above, the technical report that will be filed on SEDAR 
should be read in its entirety.

The scientific and technical information in this news release was prepared under the supervision of: 
• Alain G. Mainville, a professional geoscientist employed by Cameco as director, mineral resources 

management. 
• Barry W. Schmitke, a professional engineer employed by Cameco as the general manager of the 

Cigar Lake project.

The individuals noted above are qualified persons for the purpose of National Instrument 43-101. 
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INKAI
At the Inkai ISL project in Kazakhstan, there are two production areas currently in development (blocks 1 
and 2). At block 1, construction is under way for the commercial processing facility. In 2007, we expect to 
complete construction and begin commissioning the commercial facility, subject to regulatory approvals. 
We expect startup of production in late 2007 with commercial production to follow in 2008 after a rampup 
period.

At block 2, the test mine produced about 0.8 million pounds U3O8 during 2006. Production from the 
expanded facility started in the second quarter of 2006. Assuming that resources are converted to reserves 
this year, we would apply for a mining licence in 2007 for block 2. Commercial development of block 2 
could start in 2008. As previously reported, production from blocks 1 and 2 is expected to total 5.2 million 
pounds per year by 2010. 

The total cost to bring Inkai to commercial production (100% basis) is now projected to be about $200 
million (US). The capital expenditures for Inkai in 2007 are expected to total $90 million (US). The 
production obtained from the Inkai test mine is being sold and proceeds from the sales are used to fund the 
construction and operation of the project. Including the recoveries related to these sales, the net cost of 
development at Inkai is expected to be about $95 million (US).  

Inkai will be subject to taxes in Kazakhstan at statutory rates fixed at the signing of the Resource Use 
Contract in 2000. Inkai will also be subject to Excess Profits Tax.  Excess profits tax becomes payable when 
the internal rate of return of the project (as defined in the applicable tax code) exceeds 20%. Excess profits 
tax is levied at rates scaled from 4% to 30%, depending on the internal rate of return. The excess profits tax 
rate is applied to pre-tax net income less income tax. Inkai will not pay excess profits tax in 2007. The 
timing of excess profits tax in the future, after Inkai reaches commercial production will be dependent on 
the internal rate of return of the project. 

Purchase Volumes 
Cameco also has purchase commitments for uranium products and services from various sources. Most of 
these purchase commitments are in the form of UF6. At the end of 2006, these purchase commitments 
totalled 51 million pounds uranium equivalent from 2007 to 2013. Of this, 46 million pounds are from 
exercising options under our agreement to purchase uranium from dismantled Russian weapons (the Russian 
HEU commercial agreement). At December 31, 2006, these purchase commitments totalled $598 million 
(US). Refer to note 24 in the notes to consolidated financial statements. 

COSTS
Cameco’s cost of supply is influenced by its mix of produced mine material and uranium purchases. 

Production costs at our Saskatchewan uranium mines, our largest source of production, are primarily fixed, 
with almost one-third attributable to labour. The largest variable operating cost is production supplies 
(25%), followed by maintenance materials (10%). Another large component of production costs is 
contracted services which is 23% of the total. Contracted services include items such as mining, 
maintenance, air charters, security and ground freight. These four components make up 90% of the 
production costs at our Saskatchewan uranium mines. 

Uranium mine production costs are driven mostly by the complexity of the operation. Unit costs of 
production are driven primarily by the grade and size of the reserves. McArthur River is the world’s largest, 
high-grade uranium mine. Its ore grade averages 21% U3O8 which means it can produce more than 18 
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million pounds per year by extracting only 100 to 120 tonnes of ore per day. While Rabbit Lake’s average 
ore grade of 1% U3O8 is much lower, it compares favourably to other operating mines in the world where 
ore grades are generally below 0.5%.

ISL extraction methods can make even lower-grade orebodies commercially attractive. Worldwide, ISL 
mines typically recover uranium from orebodies with an average grade in the range of 0.1% U3O8.
Cameco’s cost of supply is influenced only modestly by the two US ISL operations. In 2006, US ISL 
production accounted for about 13% of the company’s primary output. 

Purchased product also affects Cameco’s cost of supply. Most of Cameco’s purchase commitments are 
under long-term, fixed-price arrangements reflecting prices significantly lower than the current published 
spot and long-term prices. These purchase commitments totalled $599 million (US) at December 31, 2006. 
Refer to note 24 in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. A significant portion of these 
purchased pounds will be delivered into existing sales contracts. 

FOREIGN EXCHANGE
The relationship between the Canadian and US dollars affects financial results of the uranium business as 
well as the fuel services business. For that reason, the effect on both businesses will be discussed in this 
section.

Sales of uranium and fuel services are routinely denominated in US dollars while production costs are 
largely denominated in Canadian dollars. We attempt to provide some protection against exchange rate 
fluctuations by planned hedging activity designed to smooth volatility. Hedging activities partly shelter our 
uranium and fuel services revenues against declines in the US dollar in the shorter term.  

Cameco also has a natural hedge against US currency fluctuations as a portion of its annual cash outlays, 
including purchases of uranium and fuel services, is denominated in US dollars. The influence on earnings 
from purchased material in inventory is likely to be dispersed over several fiscal periods and is more 
difficult to identify. 

At each balance sheet date, Cameco calculates the mark-to-market value of all foreign exchange contracts 
with that value representing the gain or loss that would have occurred if the contracts had been closed at that 
point in time. We account for foreign exchange contracts that meet certain defined criteria (specified by 
generally accepted accounting principles) using hedge accounting. Under hedge accounting, mark-to-market 
gains or losses are included in earnings only at the point in time that the contract is designated for use. In all 
other circumstances, mark-to-market gains or losses are reported in earnings as they occur. 

At December 31, 2006, the Canadian/US dollar exchange rate was $1.17, unchanged from December 31, 
2005. Over the course of the year, the exchange rate averaged $1.13. 

At December 31, 2006, we had foreign currency contracts of $1,237 million (US) and EUR 58 million that 
were accounted for using hedge accounting and foreign currency contracts of $127 million (US) that did not 
meet the criteria for hedge accounting. The foreign currency contracts are scheduled for use as follows: 

 2007 2008 2009 2010 
$ millions (US) 584 375 270 135 
EUR millions 32 13 10 3 
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The US currency contracts have an average effective exchange rate of $1.17 (Cdn) per $1.00 (US), which 
reflects the original foreign exchange spot prices at the time contracts were entered into and includes net 
deferred gains.

At December 31, 2006, the mark-to-market loss on all foreign exchange contracts designated as hedges was 
$34 million compared to a $37 million gain at December 31, 2005. For those contracts not designated as 
hedges, the mark-to-market loss of $2 million has been included in earnings for 2006. 

Timing differences between the maturity dates and designation dates on previously closed hedge contracts 
may result in deferred revenue or deferred charges. At December 31, 2006, net deferred gains totalled $26
million. The schedule for net deferred gains to be released to earnings, by year, is as follows: 

Deferred Gains (Charges) 2007 2008 2009 2010 
$ millions (Cdn) 15 9 2 0 

In 2006, most of the net inflows of US dollars were hedged with currency derivatives. Net inflows represent 
uranium and fuel services sales less US dollar cash expenses and US dollar product purchases. For the 
uranium and fuel services businesses in 2006, the effective exchange rate, after allowing for hedging, was 
about $1.20 compared to $1.30 in 2005.  

For 2007, every one-cent increase/decrease in the US to Canadian dollar exchange rate would result in a 
corresponding increase/decrease in net earnings of about $6 million (Cdn). 

Uranium Strategies 
Cameco’s overall objective is to build on and leverage our competitive advantage in uranium. In doing so, 
we strive to meet three major goals:  

• remain one of the low-cost producers,  
• expand our market position, and 
• increase supply flexibility.  

There are a number of key strategies the company uses to achieve these goals. We strive to maintain our 
low-cost position by adding economically attractive reserves and improving our margins. We look to 
expand our low-cost reserves through acquisition, exploration around existing operations and by identifying 
geological regions that will provide the next tier of low-cost production. 

We improve our margins by optimizing production to yield the highest rate of return, gaining cost 
efficiencies through quality and business process improvements, and pursuing fundamental productivity 
gains through technological development. 

We seek to grow our market position by acquisition, seeking to accelerate production from existing 
operations, and participating in new uranium opportunities at exploration and development stages. 

To increase our supply flexibility, we are building a geographically diverse production base. This includes 
accelerating the production at Inkai, bringing Cigar Lake into production, and continuing to pursue a global 
exploration program. This program identifies the most prospective regions and maximizes options to access 
and/or control land positions for future business advantage. To ensure we have adequate production, we 
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identify the optimal resource mix (i.e. different types of deposits such as unconformity versus in situ leach), 
and replace reserves through exploration and acquisition. 

Given Cameco’s leadership role in the uranium market, the company wants to successfully maximize 
uranium market growth. Our goals in this regard are to: 

• expand market position, 
• optimize price realization over time, and  
• improve supply flexibility. 

To grow our market position, we build on our customer relationships and expand the range of services 
available to customers while maintaining the company’s reputation as a reliable supplier. In addition, we 
maintain participation in secondary supplies including, enhancing our relationship with Russia, influencing 
the timing of sales of secondary supplies to the market, and using market intelligence to achieve early notice 
of new supply sources. 

A key element for Cameco is our contracting strategy, which is influenced by the supply and demand 
outlook for uranium. Since mid-2003, the supply side has experienced significant impacts that caused 
uranium prices to rise rapidly. This upward trend has been due, in large part, to the realization by market 
participants that excess secondary supplies will not contribute as much to future uranium supply as they had 
previously expected. Consequently, a greater volume of new primary mine production will be needed. 

The rise in prices has triggered predictable supply side responses. The most notable is the increase in 
companies exploring for new uranium deposits and the construction of new mines and the proposed 
expansion of existing ones. However, given the low prices of the last two decades, very little exploration 
was undertaken on a global basis, and relatively little investment was made in advancing new uranium 
projects. Producers were operating at close to full capacity to minimize unit costs. Undeveloped deposits, 
identified in previous exploration cycles, were mostly uneconomic or located in jurisdictions with political 
challenges. With higher prices, existing projects and newly discovered deposits will be developed, but the 
lead time before they enter commercial production may be lengthy depending on the region. Consequently, 
the primary supply industry cannot significantly increase supply in the near-term.  

Future market prices will depend on a number of supply and demand factors, the more notable ones being: 
• additional production from the successful expansion of existing production, startup of mines 

currently under construction and development of existing deposits yet to be developed, 
• the success of exploration programs in identifying new commercial uranium deposits that can be 

developed in a reasonable period of time, 
• the exchange rate in various producer country currencies relative to the US dollar, 
• the timing and extent of expansion of uranium produced as a byproduct or co-product of other 

commodities, particularly in Australia and South Africa, 
• availability of existing and possible new secondary materials, such as blended down uranium 

from military stock including dismantled weapons,  
• the manner in which investment funds liquidate their holdings, 
• ultimate sales by the US Department of Energy (DOE),  
• the extent enrichment services are substituted for natural uranium feed, and  
• the growth rate of nuclear power. 
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Given the uncertainty surrounding the foregoing supply/demand factors and the impact on price, we believe 
it is prudent to continue to target a mix of market-related and fixed price mechanisms.  

As we have discussed in the past, our contracting objective is to secure a solid base of earnings and cash 
flow to allow us to maintain our core asset base and pursue growth opportunities over the long-term. Our 
contracting strategy focuses on reducing the volatility in our future earnings and cash flow, while providing 
both protection against decreases in market price and retaining exposure to future market price increases. 
This is a balanced approach, which we believe delivers the best value to our shareholders over the long-
term. 

Our current portfolio reflects a 60/40 mix of market-related and fixed pricing (escalated by inflation) 
mechanisms. Currently, our contracting is more focused on market-related pricing. Consequently, we expect 
this ratio to change over time.  

The overall strategy will continue to focus on achieving longer contract terms of up to 10 years or more, 
floor prices that provide downside protection, and retaining an adequate level of upside potential. In general, 
most new offers include price mechanisms with an 80% market-related and 20% fixed component. The 
fixed-price component generally is equal to or higher than the industry long-term price indicator at the time 
of offer and is adjusted by inflation. The market-related component will include a floor price (escalated by 
inflation).  

Cameco has a variety of supply sources including primary production, firm commitments for long-term 
purchases, inventories of six months forward sales (or equivalent to about 17 million pounds, including 
working inventory) and uranium from opportunistic purchases in the spot market.  

Capability to Deliver Results 
Cameco will continue to enhance its capabilities in a number of areas to execute our strategies and deliver 
on our goals to remain one of the low-cost producers, protect and expand our market position and increase 
supply flexibility. We will achieve these goals by: 

• transitioning successfully from current mining areas to new ones,  
• advancing other mining methods and technologies,  
• proceeding with revitalization plans for our milling operations, 
• obtaining timely regulatory approvals under an increasingly stringent regulatory regime,  
• securing adequate human resources to replace an aging workforce, including ensuring skilled 

tradespeople continue to be available, 
• ensuring capital is readily available over the longer term given our expansion plans, 
• allocating adequate resources to exploration, and 
• evaluating and acting upon opportunities that we expect to add value. 

TRANSITION TO NEW MINING AREAS
Underground drilling exploration at McArthur River has identified four ore zones (zones 1 to 4). Currently, 
only zone 2 is being mined. Zone 2 is divided into four panels (panels 1, 2, 3 and 5). 
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The McArthur River mine schematic above illustrates the location of the four ore zones. 

As extraction of zone 2 (panels 1, 2, and 3) progresses, we expect to place zone 1, zone 2 (panel 5) and the 
lower mining area of zone 4 into production by 2009, subject to regulatory approval. We plan to continue 
using the raiseboring method to extract ore in these zones.

All tunnels have been developed for zone 1 and we do not expect any technical issues. At zone 2 (panel 5) 
and lower zone 4, freeze hole drilling and tunnel construction commenced in 2006. Through much of 2006, 
freeze-hole drilling advanced at a slower than expected rate due to technical challenges with drilling through 
frozen ground, additional time required to address operational challenges. For example, we made 
improvements to the drill setups, and addressed earlier staffing challenges associated with getting sufficient 
experienced drillers given the high levels of activity in the exploration diamond drilling industry. We have 
modified our freeze-hole drilling technique and equipment and have since achieved our scheduled target 
drilling rates.

MINING METHODS
Currently, McArthur River uses raiseboring to extract ore from the mine. As we expected from the start of 
mining, other mining methods will be used to maintain or expand production. In 2005, we determined that 
the boxhole boring method would be better suited for the upper zone 4 at McArthur River, because it would 
allow development from a preferred location. Production from this zone is scheduled to begin in 2012. 

Until Cameco has fully developed and tested the boxhole boring method, there is uncertainty in the 
estimated productivity. Cameco plans to develop and test the boxhole boring method over the next four 
years. In 2006, we completed the mine plan for the boxhole boring test area and placed an order for a 
boxhole borer for delivery in early 2008. Mine development for the test area is planned to take place during 
2007 and 2008. During this time, we will continue to further develop detailed plans for this mining method. 

At Cigar Lake, we plan to use the jet boring method, which has been examined through extensive test 
mining programs. Overall, the test mine programs were considered highly successful with all initial 
objectives fulfilled. However, as the jet boring mining method is new to the uranium mining industry, the 
potential for technical challenges exist. We are confident that our engineers will be able to solve the 
challenges that may arise during the initial rampup period.  
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REVITALIZATION OF MILLS 
The Key Lake and Rabbit Lake mills have been in operation for 24 and 32 years respectively. We plan to 
renew both these mills to help maintain our leadership position in uranium production. A revitalization pre-
feasibility assessment for the Key Lake mill was kicked off in October 2006. We are targeting to complete 
the final feasibility study in early 2008. A revitalization assessment of the Rabbit Lake mill will begin in 
2007.

REGULATORY APPROVAL
Cameco’s growth plans depend on regulatory approvals such as environmental assessments, and obtaining 
construction and operating licences in various jurisdictions including Canada, Kazakhstan, and the US. The 
timing for approvals can be impacted by various factors such as, the regulator’s assessment of current 
performance, the comprehensiveness of the documentation submitted to support the application, assessment 
of the significance of any anticipated incremental impacts, the number of industry approval applications 
being assessed at any given time by the regulator, changing regulatory standards and other factors. 

Cameco expends significant financial and managerial resources to comply with laws and regulations. We 
seek to find solutions that best reduce or eliminate our environmental impacts.  

HUMAN RESOURCES
Cameco’s workforce reflects the national demographics where a significant number of the eligible 
workforce is nearing retirement age. Approximately 27% of the workforce at our Saskatchewan uranium 
mines was age 50 or older at December 31, 2006. Cameco’s challenge is to compete for the limited number 
of people entering the workforce to replace retiring employees. We have developed a long-term people 
strategy that includes workforce planning to meet this challenge. Another challenge we have is securing 
skilled tradespeople. Cameco is examining various options to accelerate our extensive apprenticeship 
programs. 

READY ACCESS TO CAPITAL
Cameco has an ambitious plan to grow in the nuclear energy industry. Opportunities to invest are 
unpredictable and often capital intensive. We intend to maintain financial flexibility to pursue opportunities 
as they arise. For that reason, we maintain a conservative financial structure with a target of no more than 
25% net debt to total capital. 

EXPLORATION PROGRAMS 
Cameco continues to pursue a focused exploration program to identify additional uranium reserves for the 
future to maintain the company’s position as the world’s largest uranium producer. 

Cameco retained an exploration program and its expertise during the depressed market. As uranium prices 
have risen we have increased our investment in exploration to achieve our goal of expanding our reserve 
base to grow our uranium market leadership position.

We plan to invest about $45 million in uranium exploration during 2007. This is up 29% compared to the 
$32 million invested in 2006. 

For more information on our exploration activities, see the section titled “Uranium Exploration” in this 
MD&A.
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Uranium Business Results 
Cameco’s uranium business consists of the McArthur River, Key Lake and Rabbit Lake mine and mill 
operations in Saskatchewan, two ISL mines in the US, the Inkai ISL test mine in Kazakhstan, the Cigar 
Lake development project in Saskatchewan and uranium exploration projects located primarily in Canada 
and Australia.

URANIUM BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS

 2006 2005 
%

CHANGE
Revenue ($ millions) 803 690 16 
Gross profit ($ millions) 237 159 49 
Gross profit % 30 23 30 
Earnings before taxes ($ millions) 1 181 134 35 
Average realized price 
($US/lb)
($Cdn/lb)

20.62
24.72

15.45
20.14

33
23

Sales volume (million lbs) 2 32.1 34.2 (6) 
Deferred sales volume (million lbs) 4.0 0 - 
Production volume (million lbs) 20.9 21.2 (1) 

1 Excludes $69 million in earnings related to the gain on sale of Energy Resources of Australia Ltd shares for the year ended 
December 31, 2005.
2 Total delivered volumes for 2006 was 36.2 million pounds. Revenue on 4.0 million pounds was deferred due to standby product 
loans.

In 2006, we reported that Cameco had entered into standby product loan agreements with two of our 
customers. The loans allow Cameco to borrow up to 5.6 million pounds U3O8 equivalent over the period 
2006 to 2008, with repayment in 2008 and 2009. Of the material available under the loan, up to 1.4 million 
kgU can be borrowed in the form of uranium hexafluoride (UF6). Any borrowings will be secured by letters 
of credit and be settled in kind. 

As of December 31, 2006, Cameco had not borrowed any material under the standby loan agreements. 
However, regardless of whether any material is borrowed, we defer revenue recognition from sales to the 
counterparties of the standby product loan agreements, up to the limit of the loans (5.6 million pounds). This 
is in accordance with accounting standards. Cameco will recognize the deferred revenue and associated 
costs when the loan agreements are terminated, or if drawn upon, when the loans are repaid and that portion 
of the facility is terminated.  

Accordingly, in 2006, Cameco has deferred revenue of $80 million and the associated costs on sales of 4.0 
million pounds of U3O8. The gross profit on the deferred sales was $15 million.  

The timing of cash receipts on the deferred revenue is the same as on any other sale and is unaffected by the 
accounting treatment for the revenue. As a result, cash flows are not impacted by the deferrals. 

Standby fees associated with the loan facilities are reflected in the “Interest and Other” expense item on the 
Consolidated Statement of Earnings.  

Our reported revenue and costs for U3O8 discussed throughout this MD&A have been reduced to reflect the 
required deferrals. Similarly, the average realized price for U3O8 has been adjusted. 
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REVENUE
Compared to 2005, revenue from our uranium business rose in 2006 by 16% to $803 million due to a 33% 
increase in the realized selling price (in US dollars) partially offset by a 6% decline in reported sales 
volume. The decline is a function of the deferred sales described above. 

The average realized price in Canadian dollars, increased by only 23% due to the stronger Canadian dollar 
relative to the US dollar. The increase in the average realized price was the result of higher prices under 
fixed-price contracts and a higher uranium spot price, which averaged $49.60 (US) per pound in 2006 
compared to $28.67 (US) in 2005. 

COST OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES SOLD
For 2006, the cost of products and services sold was $472 million compared to $429 million in 2005, 
reflecting increases in the cost of purchased uranium and in the proportion of sales commitments met with 
purchased material. In 2006, purchased material represented about 45% of sales compared to 35% in 2005. 
On a per unit basis, the cost of product sold was about 16% higher than in the previous year due to the 
foregoing factors.

DEPRECIATION, DEPLETION AND RECLAMATION
In 2006, depreciation, depletion and reclamation (DD&R) charges were $94 million compared to $102 
million in 2005, due to the higher proportion of sales of purchased uranium. On a per unit basis, DD&R 
costs were about 5% lower than in 2005.  

GROSS PROFIT
In 2006, our gross profit from the uranium business amounted to $237 million compared to $159 million in 
2005, an increase of 49%. This was attributable to the 23% increase in the realized price for uranium and 
was partially offset by higher unit costs for purchased uranium. Our earnings before taxes from the uranium 
business improved to $181 million from $134 million last year, while the profit margin rose to 30% from 
23% in 2005 again due to the higher realized selling price.

2007 Outlook for Uranium 
In 2007, the reported sales volume and associated revenue may be affected by changes to product loan 
arrangements. Total uranium deliveries amounted to 36 million pounds in 2006, while reported sales volume 
was 32 million pounds due to the accounting for the product loans. 

In 2007, we expect uranium deliveries to total 33 million pounds. However, the reported sales volume for 
revenue purposes depends upon the product loan arrangements. We may terminate a portion or all of the 
product loan arrangements in 2007. To the extent we terminate the product loan arrangements, revenue that 
was deferred on up to 4 million pounds in 2006 would be recognized in 2007. If the product loan facilities 
remain in place unchanged, we would be required to defer revenue on an additional 1.6 million pounds in 
2007, regardless if any amount is drawn on the loans. Assuming the product loans remain in place, we 
would expect our reported revenues to be about 45% greater than in 2006 due to an increase in our realized 
price.

Excluding the impact of any deferrals related to the product loans, we would expect our uranium revenue for 
2007 to increase by about 50% due primarily to an increase in the realized price. Our average realized 
uranium price is anticipated to improve due to higher expected prices under our current contracts relative to 
2006.
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The unit cost of product sold is projected to increase by about 20% as a result of increased costs for 
purchased material, higher royalty costs due to an increase in the realized price, the impact of tiered royalty 
charges and increased production costs expected to be incurred in 2007.

As mentioned in the 2006 fourth quarter report, we have included supply interruption language in our 
contracts, which provides Cameco with the right to reduce, defer or cancel volumes on a pro-rata basis if we 
experience a shortfall in planned production or deliveries of purchases under the highly enriched uranium 
agreement. This language protects about three-quarters of currently contracted volumes, and this percentage 
will rise as old contracts expire. All contracts contain standard force majeure language.  

The baseload contracts put in place to support the development of Cigar Lake also contain supply 
interruption language, which allows Cameco to reduce, defer or cancel deliveries in the event of any delay 
or shortfall in Cigar Lake production. 

Since the Cigar Lake water inflow, we have been in discussions with our customers to address the 
production delay at the mine and its possible effect on uranium deliveries. Our immediate focus is on 
customers who will be impacted with uranium deliveries in 2007. 

In the case of the Cigar Lake baseload contracts containing deliveries in 2007, we plan to defer the volumes 
to the end of the various contracts. 

For the remainder of the contracts that are impacted by the supply interruption language in 2007, we plan to 
defer the portion of deliveries impacted by this language for a five to seven-year period.

Contract specific decisions will be made in consultation with each of our customers. We appreciate their 
understanding and support. 

In 2007, Cameco expects its pre-tax earnings will be reduced by $32 million of remediation expenses for 
Cigar Lake.

Cameco’s share of uranium production for 2007 is projected to increase slightly to 21.0 million pounds of 
U3O8 from 20.9 million in 2006. These quantities do not include Inkai as the operation is not yet in 
commercial production. 

Cameco did not pay tiered royalties in 2006 and prior years due to the availability of prescribed capital 
allowances that reduce uranium sales subject to tiered royalty. Cameco expects its capital allowances to be 
fully exhausted during 2007 and, therefore, expects to pay tiered royalties in 2007. We currently estimate 
that tiered royalties will reduce net earnings by approximately $10 million in 2007. We will be eligible for 
additional capital allowances once Cigar Lake commences production at which time we do not expect to be 
required to pay tiered royalties until the additional allowances are fully exhausted. The following is an 
example of how tiered royalties are estimated. 
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CALCULATION OF TIERED ROYALTIES
(2006 rates; index value to determine rates for 2007 not available until April, 2007) 

Assumptions:  
• based on 100,000 pounds U3O8 sold, and 
• no capital allowance are available 

Sales Price 
Realized ($ Cdn) 

Tier 1 
Royalty1

Tier 2 
Royalty2

Tier 3 
Royalty3

Total Tiered 
Royalty

$25.00 $53,040 $3,040 - $56,080 
$35.00 $113,040 $43,040 $13,350 $169,430 
$45.00 $173,040 $83,040 $63,350 $319,430 
$55.00 $233,040 $123,040 $113,350 $469,430 
$65.00 $293,040 $163,040 $163,350 $619,430 
$75.00 $353,040 $203,040 $213,350 $769,430 
$85.00 $413,040 $243,040 $263,350 $919,430 

1 6% x (Sales Price - $16.16) x 100,000 pounds U3O8
2 4% x (Sales Price - $24.24) x 100,000 pounds U3O8
3 5% x (Sales Price - $32.33) x 100,000 pounds U3O8

The outlook for 2007 financial results for the uranium business segment do not include all the expected 
adjustments for the Cigar Lake water inflow incident as they are being finalized. Also the outlook is based 
on the following key assumptions: 

• no significant changes in our estimates for sales volumes, costs, purchases and prices, as discussed 
above,

• no disruption of supply from our mines or third-party sources, and
• a US/Canadian dollar spot exchange rate of $1.16. 

Uranium Exploration 
A significant part of our future production base is expected to result from our global exploration activities. 
We have maintained an active exploration program even during the bottom of the uranium price cycle, 
reflecting our long-term commitment to the industry. Over the past five years we have significantly 
increased our investment in exploration programs. We invested about $32 million in uranium exploration 
during 2006.

We have skilled and experienced exploration staff with more than 80 professionals searching for the next 
generation of economic deposits. Our land holdings are substantial, with approximately 4.8 million hectares 
(11.8 million acres) of Cameco and partner-operated land, primarily in Canada, Australia, the US, Mongolia 
and Africa. Our activities include both brownfields and greenfields prospects and we monitor potential 
acquisition targets.

Cameco owns a range of participating interests in its exploration lands, and either owns or has the right to 
earn a majority interest in most of the company’s projects. At year-end 2006, Cameco operated 
approximately 75% of its exploration projects, including joint ventures. The majority of Cameco’s 
exploration projects are early to middle stage, on which indications of economic grades or quantities of 
uranium have not yet been identified. The nature of mineral exploration is such that discovery of economic 
deposits on new projects is uncertain and can take many years. 
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2006 EXPLORATION RESULTS

Brownfield Exploration 
Brownfield exploration refers to uranium exploration activity undertaken near existing operations and 
advanced projects. In 2006, we made progress on several projects. We continue our drilling programs 
intended to add resources at the McArthur River and Rabbit Lake operations, which could extend the mine 
life at both locations.  

At Rabbit Lake, the underground diamond-drilling reserve replacement program was successful in 2006, 
with over 69 kilometres of drilling being completed with excellent results. At the end of 2006, total proven 
and probable reserves are estimated at 737,000 tonnes at 1.2% U3O8 for 19.1 million pounds in areas that 
are currently being mined and in a new zone that is in close proximity to a newly producing mining area.  

In addition, both the Millennium and Collins Creek deposits were advanced in 2006. 

Regional Exploration 
The Centennial discovery on the Virgin River project was extended with several new mineralized holes, 
confirming the significance of this new mineralized region. 

As part of Cameco’s continuing expansion of uranium exploration activities, our land holdings were 
increased significantly, either directly or under option, with new projects in Nunavut, the Northwest 
Territories, and Mongolia.

Also in March 2007, Cameco signed additional non-binding memorandums of understanding (MOU) with 
Joint Stock Company Techsnabexport (Tenex), a leading state-owned Russian nuclear company, to explore 
in Russia and Canada. 

Building on the MOU signed in November 2006, Cameco and Tenex have further developed terms on 
which they would co-operate on joint uranium exploration projects in Russia and Canada and, if warranted, 
engage in development and production of uranium deposits that are found. Cameco and Tenex have also 
identified priority projects for possible future joint exploration activities in Russia and Canada that would be 
disclosed when agreements are finalized. Cameco anticipates that binding agreements will be signed in 
2007.

Junior Exploration Companies 
Since the recovery of the world uranium market, and corresponding higher prices for uranium, the 
competitive environment for uranium exploration has changed. There are more than 400 uranium 
exploration companies listed on stock exchanges and most of these are actively funding new exploration 
programs in Canada and other regions. In the newly active sector, Cameco maintains an ongoing dialogue 
with numerous companies, with the objective of positioning the company for future participation in areas 
with promising results, and leveraging Cameco’s recognized position in the sustainable development of 
uranium resources worldwide. Cameco’s approach to future resource replacement is to combine its own 
exploration activities with partnerships, joint ventures, or equity holdings in other companies with assets 
that meet the company’s investment criteria.  
At December 31, 2006, Cameco owned a 21.6% interest in UEX Corporation, a TSX listed junior 
exploration company formed in 2002 from a combination of exploration assets previously held by Cameco 
and Pioneer Metals Corporation. Cameco has, as long as it maintains a 20% or higher interest in UEX, 
certain rights related to financing, and marketing production from future uranium deposits. As well, Cameco 
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has the right to mill uranium produced from properties it contributed to UEX at the time of its formation in 
2002.

In 2006, Cameco completed its acquisition of a 19.5% interest in UNOR Inc. (formerly Hornby Bay 
Exploration Ltd.). Cameco purchased 22.9 million common shares of UNOR at $0.40 per share through a 
private placement for $9.2 million. UNOR is a uranium exploration and development company with its head 
office in Toronto, Ontario. Its principal properties are 226 mineral claims in northwestern Nunavut on the 
Hornby Basin, a geological formation with similar characteristics to the uranium-rich Athabasca Basin in 
northern Saskatchewan. The strategic alliance agreement concluded between Cameco and UNOR includes 
the following terms: 

• As long as Cameco continues to hold 10% of UNOR’s outstanding common shares, it will have the 
right to nominate one person for election to UNOR’s board of directors, and UNOR will consult 
with Cameco on its exploration and development programs;  

• As long as Cameco continues to hold 16% of UNOR’s outstanding common shares, it will have the 
right to participate in any future equity issues, match equity or debt required for mine development, 
operate any mine developed on UNOR’s properties and market any uranium produced; and  

• Cameco and UNOR each have a right of first refusal on each other’s uranium projects in a specified 
area of Nunavut and the Northwest Territories. 

On January 26, 2007, Cameco signed a Letter of Intent with Vena Resources to establish a jointly-owned 
company to explore and develop Vena’s uranium assets in Peru. Subject to signing definitive agreements, 
the new company will begin by initially exploring and developing the numerous uranium targets held by 
Vena in southern Perú. Under the terms of the Letter of Intent, Cameco has the option to invest $10 million 
over the next four years in two stage payments to obtain up to 50% of MINERGIA SAC, the private 
company that holds Vena’s uranium landholdings in Perú. Cameco can increase its stake in MINERGIA to 
60% when a feasibility study is completed and to 70% when mine development commences. 

2007 EXPLORATION OUTLOOK
Cameco plans to invest about $45 million in uranium exploration during 2007 as part of our long-term 
strategy to maintain our leadership position in uranium production. 

Brownfield Exploration 
Approximately 28% of the uranium exploration budget will be for brownfield exploration projects in the 
Athabasca Basin. We will invest $12.5 million on six advanced projects. The largest investment will be at 
McArthur River, where $3.8 million will be directed towards diamond drilling on the northern extension of 
the prolific P2 fault. At the Rabbit Lake operation, surface exploration will focus on both regional targets 
and mine-related targets, principally in the vicinity of the Eagle Point mine. 

The Dawn Lake joint venture will continue work on two uranium deposits in 2007. Delineation of the 
Collins Creek deposit will continue, with additional drilling and a scoping study to examine potential 
mining scenarios. At the original Dawn Lake deposit, a pre-feasibility study on the 11A Zone will be 
completed by the second quarter of 2007.  

Exploration activity at the Cree Zimmer and the Waterbury Lake projects will also increase in 2007. Priority 
targets on the Cree Zimmer project, which surrounds the historic Key Lake mining operation, include the   
P-Zone and the area on the main Key Lake fault southwest of the former Gaertner and Deilmann uranium 
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deposits. In 2007, exploration on the Waterbury Lake project will be focused east of the Cigar Lake 
orebody.

The partners on the Cree Extension joint venture approved the completion of a feasibility study on the 
basement rock hosted Millennium deposit in early 2008. Integral to the study will be the completion of a 
three-dimensional seismic survey over the deposit area. The survey will define the unconformity depth. 
Several shaft pilot holes will be drilled during the year. 

Regional Exploration 
The remaining $32.5 million of exploration expenditures in 2007 will be allocated among 44 projects 
worldwide, the majority of which are at drill target stage. Our largest investment will be in Saskatchewan, 
where a $3.3 million program will be completed on the Virgin River project as followup on the Centennial 
zone mineralization. We will also focus on projects in the Northwest Territories and Nunavut regions of 
northern Canada, where Cameco has a large land position. In addition to our existing land positions in the 
Northern Territory, Cameco will undertake work on new land positions in Western Australia and South 
Australia.

In 2007, exploration will also take place in the United States, Mongolia, and Africa, where Cameco is 
earning an interest in prospective land in Gabon. Cameco continues to evaluate other regions and projects 
globally, and we will add to our land position as new prospects are confirmed.  

FUEL SERVICES BUSINESS 
In 2006, the fuel services business added fuel fabrication services for Candu-type reactors as a result of our 
acquisition of Zircatec to our existing businesses of refining and conversion services. See the following 
discussion under “Fuel Fabrication.” Refining is an intermediate step to prepare uranium to be converted 
into either UF6 or UO2.

The industry practice for measuring conversion services is kilograms of uranium (kgU) rather than pounds 
of U3O8. For example, 66 million kgU is equivalent to about 172 million pounds U3O8.

Conversion Demand 
World demand for UF6 and natural UO2 conversion services was estimated to be about 68 million kgU in 
2006. Western world demand accounted for almost 60 million kgU with the remaining 8 million kgU 
coming from the non-western world (Russia, China and eastern Europe). 

Over the next 10 years, world demand is expected to increase by 35% to about 92 million kgU. In 2007, 
total world conversion services demand is expected to increase by 3%. 

Conversion Supply 
The western world UF6 conversion industry consists of Cameco and three other significant producers, with 
an annual conversion capacity of about 46 million kgU. In 2005, Cameco signed a toll-conversion 
agreement to acquire UF6 conversion services from one of these other converters, Springfields Fuels Ltd. 
(SFL) in Lancashire, United Kingdom. Under the 10-year agreement, SFL will annually convert a base 
quantity of 5 million kgU to UF6 for Cameco. This new source, coupled with our Canadian UF6 plant, will 
account for almost 40% of the western world UF6 conversion capacity. 

In addition, supplies are available from secondary sources including excess western inventories, Russian 
sales in the form of low enriched uranium, Russian re-enriched depleted tails, and Russian and US uranium 
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derived from dismantling nuclear weapons. Russia supplies most of the UF6 conversion requirements of the 
former Soviet Union and eastern Europe in the form of low enriched uranium. 

Conversion Markets 
Utilities contract about 90% of their UF6 conversion services through long-term contracts, purchasing the 
remainder on the spot market. Cameco is the only commercial supplier in the world of conversion for 
natural UO2 customers. In addition to the Canadian requirements, Cameco also exports UO2 to South Korea 
for its Candu reactors and to the US and Japan for use as blanket fuel in boiling water reactors. Cameco also 
sells conversion services packaged with U3O8 as a UF6 or UO2 product.

SPOT/LONG-TERM CONVERSION MARKET
Spot market UF6 conversion prices remained steady during 2006. Spot prices increased slightly for North 
American conversion services and 8% for European conversion services year-over-year. Outlined below are 
the industry average spot market prices (TradeTech and Ux) for North American and European conversion 
services.

Dec 31/06 Dec 31/05 % Change 
Average spot market price 
($US/kgU)

• North America
• Europe

11.75
12.38

11.50
11.50

2
8

Outlined below are the industry average long-term prices (TradeTech and Ux) for North American and 
European conversion services. 

Dec 31/06 Dec 31/05 % Change 
Average long-term price 
($US/kgU)

• North America 
• Europe

12.25
13.75

12.00
12.88

2
7

The industry does not publish UO2 prices.

Conversion Business – Key Performance Drivers 
The major factors that drive Cameco’s conversion business results are: 

• prices – spot and long-term, 
• volume – sales, production and purchases, 
• costs – production and purchases, and 
• the relationship between the US and Canadian dollars. 

PRICES – SPOT/LONG-TERM
Cameco sells its conversion services directly to utilities located in many parts of the world, primarily 
through long-term contracts. Conversion services are priced in US dollars per kgU. The majority of 
conversion sales are at fixed prices adjusted for inflation. In 2006, most of our conversion sales were made 
under long-term contracts negotiated in a low price environment and therefore, we did not benefit from the 
current elevated UF6 conversion spot prices during the year.
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Going forward, the majority of our contract commitments, totalling more than 75 million kgU over more 
than 10 years, are at fixed prices adjusted for inflation.

We continue to sign new long-term contracts with fixed prices that generally reflect long-term prices at the 
time of the contract award. Like uranium sales, we begin delivery of conversion services up to four years 
after the agreement has been finalized. Therefore, in the coming years, Cameco’s contract portfolio will 
benefit from higher fixed-price contracts signed in the more recent higher priced environment. 

VOLUMES – SALES, PRODUCTION, PURCHASES
Sales Volume 
Cameco sold 18.5 million kgU of fuel services in 2006, up 11% from the 16.6 million kgU in 2005. We 
expect conversion sales volume to total about 20.2 million kgU in 2007, up 9% from 2006. 

Production Volume 
At our Port Hope conversion facility, we produced 12.5 million kgU in 2006 compared to 11.4 million kgU 
in 2005. The rise reflects increased fluorine generation capacity and other plant improvements achieved 
during the year. We anticipate production for 2007 to be 13.8 million kgU as UF6 and UO2.

The CNSC has not yet issued the draft scope for the required environmental study for the Vision 2010 
project. This project proposes to clean up and modernize the Port Hope conversion facility site. Design and 
preliminary engineering for the project have been proceeding.  

At our Blind River refinery, we produced a record 17.2 million kgU in 2006 compared to 15.1 million kgU 
for 2005. The increase was due to using the refinery to produce UO3 for SFL. We anticipate annual 
production for 2007 to be about 15.8 million kgU to meet both Port Hope and SFL requirements. The CNSC 
issued Blind River a new 5-year operating licence in late February. 

In mid December 2006, we received CNSC approval of the EA for the addition of pollution abatement 
equipment to the incinerator at our Blind River operation. This equipment is required to meet new Canadian 
standards for incinerator emissions that came into force in January 2007. The installation of the equipment 
has begun. The Blind River refinery needs an amendment to its operating licence in order to use this new 
equipment, which is subject to CNSC approval. We anticipate that the incinerator will be ready to 
commission late in the first quarter and start receiving material early in the second quarter of 2007.

The draft EA study report for the proposed increase in the Blind River licensed production capacity from 18 
to 24 million kgU per year was filed with the CNSC for review late in the fourth quarter of 2007. 

Purchase Volume 
Cameco also has purchase commitments, which primarily reflect the conversion component of the low 
enriched uranium from Russian HEU, re-enriched tails product and beginning in 2006, the company’s 
agreement to purchase SFL’s conversion services for a 10-year period. Cameco’s UF6 conversion purchase 
commitments at December 31, 2006 total about 66 million kgU, most as conversion services. 

COSTS
Cameco’s mix of production and purchases influences its cost of sales. Operating costs are primarily fixed 
with about 45% attributable to labour. The largest variable operating cost is for anhydrous hydrogen 
fluoride, followed by energy (gas and electricity).
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The majority of Cameco’s UF6 conversion purchase commitments are under long-term, fixed-price 
arrangements reflecting prices lower than current spot prices. These purchase commitments totalled $406 
million (US) at December 31, 2006. Refer to note 24 in the notes to the financial statements. A significant 
portion of these purchases has been committed under existing sales contracts. 

FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
The majority of the company’s conversion services are sold in the US and sales are denominated in US 
dollars, while production costs are incurred in Canada and denominated in Canadian dollars. A discussion 
about Cameco’s hedging program can be found in the uranium business section under the heading “Foreign 
Exchange.”

Fuel Fabrication
Cameco acquired a 100% interest in Zircatec in early 2006. Zircatec’s primary business is manufacturing 
nuclear fuel bundles for sale to companies that generate electricity from Candu reactors.  

In Port Hope, Ontario, Zircatec operates a facility that is licensed to handle uranium materials. The plant 
presses uranium dioxide powder into pellets that are loaded into tubes and then assembled into fuel bundles 
for Candu utility customers. These bundles are ready to insert into the reactor core as fuel to generate clean 
electricity. Zircatec supplies these fuel bundles to Candu-style reactors, with sales to BPLP and BALP 
currently representing a substantial portion of its business. The plant’s annual capacity is approximately 
1,200 tonnes uranium as finished fuel. 

In Cobourg, Ontario, Zircatec also operates a facility where the primary product is zirconium tubing, an 
integral part of fuel bundles used by nuclear reactors. The plant also manufactures various Candu reactor 
components and monitoring equipment. 

Fuel Services Strategies 
Cameco’s objective is to build on and leverage its competitive advantage in fuel services. In doing so, we 
strive to meet three major goals to:  

• remain one of the low-cost producers, 
• expand market position, and  
• increase supply flexibility. 

To achieve these goals, the company’s strategies are to:  
• improve its margins,  
• ensure adequate production, and
• grow its market position.  

We plan to improve our margins through quality and business process improvements and by pursuing 
fundamental productivity gains through technological development. We will ensure adequate production 
through extending and/or expanding production from current toll conversion arrangements or pursuing 
opportunities to build capacity. To grow market position, we intend to expand or build new capacity. We 
will limit risk and capital expense by selectively pursuing partnering opportunities with other nuclear fuel 
cycle participants. 
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Capability to Deliver Results 
Cameco will execute our strategies and deliver on our goals by ensuring:

• community relations at Port Hope continue to strengthen,
• adequate human resources are available to replace an aging workforce, 
• capital is available over the longer term given our expansion plans, and 
• adequate resources are allocated to maintain and grow our fuel services business. 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS
We have significantly increased our community outreach program in Port Hope through the implementation 
of a series of ongoing community liaison forums, community newsletters, newspaper advertising, open 
houses and a Port Hope dedicated website (camecoporthope.com). The response from the community has 
been very positive with excellent attendance at our forums and open houses. 

HUMAN RESOURCES
As with our uranium business, we need to ensure we have adequate human resources to replace the aging 
fuel services workforce. At December 31, 2006, about 35% of the conversion services workforce was age 
50 or older. We have developed a long-term people strategy that includes workforce planning to meet that 
challenge.

READY ACCESS TO CAPITAL
Cameco has an ambitious plan to grow in the nuclear energy industry. Opportunities to invest are 
unpredictable and often capital intensive. We intend to maintain financial flexibility to pursue opportunities 
as they arise. For that reason, we maintain a conservative financial structure with a target of no more than 
25% net debt to total capital. 

ADEQUATE RESOURCES
Cameco believes it has the appropriate capabilities in place to maintain its low-cost status, protect and grow 
its market position and improve its supply flexibility. We intend to remain competitive in the longer term 
and retain the flexibility to quickly take advantage of future new market opportunities. Cameco constantly 
reviews options to grow the conversion business to meet these longer-term opportunities.  

Fuel Services Business Results 
In 2006, the fuel services business consisted of refining, conversion services and fuel fabrication services. In 
2005, Cameco’s fuel services business consisted of only refining and conversion services.
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CONVERSION HIGHLIGHTS

2006 2005 % Change 
Revenue ($ millions) 224 158 42 
Gross profit ($ millions) 25 28 (11) 
Gross profit % 11 18 (39) 
Earnings before taxes ($ millions) 22 25 (12) 
Sales volume (million kgU) 1,2 18.5 16.6 11 
Production volume (million kgU) 2 13.2 11.4 16 

1 Kilograms of uranium 
2 Includes Zircatec sales and production in 2006 

The current results and outlook for fuel services reflect the deferral of revenue and the associated costs on 
conversion services deliveries of 1.0 million kgU, related to the standby product loan agreements discussed 
under the uranium business segment. The effect of the deferral was a decrease in reported revenue of $9 
million. Gross profit on the deferred conversion services deliveries was $1 million.  

As in the case of the deferred uranium revenue, the timing of cash receipts on the deferred revenue is the 
same as on any other sale and is unaffected by the accounting treatment for the revenue. As a result, cash 
flows are not impacted by the deferral. Cameco will recognize the deferred revenue and associated costs 
when the loan agreements are terminated, or if drawn upon, when the loans are repaid and that portion of the 
facility is terminated. 

REVENUE
In 2006, revenue from our fuel services business rose by 42% to $224 million compared to 2005, as a result 
of the inclusion of revenue from Zircatec and a 12% increase in fuel service deliveries. The timing of 
deliveries of nuclear products within a calendar year is at the discretion of our customers. A 1% increase in 
the average realized selling price contributed marginally to higher revenues. As noted above, most 
conversion sales are at fixed prices and have not yet fully benefited from the significant increase in UF6 spot 
prices.

COST OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES SOLD
In 2006, the cost of products and services sold was $180 million compared to $120 million in 2005, an 
increase of 50% due to the inclusion of costs from Zircatec, higher volumes and higher costs for purchased 
conversion. In 2006, a greater proportion of our sales commitments was met with purchased conversion 
compared to 2005. On a per unit basis, the cost of products and services sold increased by about 30% over 
the previous year.

DEPRECIATION, DEPLETION AND RECLAMATION
In 2006, DD&R charges were $19 million compared to $10 million in 2005 due to the inclusion of charges 
from Zircatec. The rate of depreciation per unit for fabrication is significantly higher than for conversion, 
causing total DD&R charges to nearly double.
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GROSS PROFIT
In 2006, earnings before taxes from the fuel services business declined to $22 million from $25 million in 
the same period of 2005. The lower profitability was due to the higher cost of purchased and produced 
product.

Fuel Services Outlook for 2007
Cameco expects 2007 revenue from the fuel services business to be nearly 20% higher than in 2006 due to 
an anticipated 10% increase in deliveries and an improvement in the average realized selling price.  

Fuel services sales volume in 2007 is expected to total 20.2 million kgU compared to sales of 18.5 million 
kgU in 2006. The cost of product sold is expected to increase due to the higher volume. On a per unit basis, 
product costs are projected to be similar to 2006. 

The outlook for 2007 financial results for the fuel services business segment are based on the following key 
assumptions: 

• no significant changes in our estimates for sales volumes, costs, and prices, as discussed above, 
• no disruption of supply from our facilities or third-party sources, and 
• a US/Canadian dollar spot exchange rate of $1.16. 

Fuel Services Price Sensitivity Analysis 
The majority of fuel services sales are at fixed prices with inflation escalators. In the short term, Cameco’s 
financial results for fuel services are relatively insensitive to changes in the spot price for conversion. Newer 
fixed-price contracts generally reflect longer-term prices at the time of contract award. Therefore, in the 
coming years, our contract portfolio for conversion services will be positively impacted by these higher 
fixed-price contracts. 

NUCLEAR ELECTRICITY GENERATION BUSINESS 
Cameco has a 31.6% interest in the Bruce Power Limited Partnership (BPLP), which operates the four 
Bruce B nuclear reactors and manages the overall site located in southern Ontario. BPLP’s business is the 
generation and sale of electricity into the Ontario wholesale market. BPLP’s four B reactors have a 
combined net generation capacity of about 3,200 MW, and supply about 15% of Ontario’s electricity needs.

Nuclear Electricity Generation Business Results 
These financial results reflect the new partnership structure that was created on October 31, 2005 following 
the division of the Bruce Power site assets between Bruce B operations (BPLP) and Bruce A operations 
(Bruce Power A Limited Partnership or BALP). Effective November 1, 2005, Cameco’s 31.6% interest in 
BPLP included the four Bruce B units and does not include the A units.

Immediately following the restructuring, Cameco began to proportionately consolidate its share of BPLP’s 
financial results. Our move to this new method of accounting was driven by incremental changes to the 
partnership agreement, which resulted in joint control among the three major partners. Proportionate 
consolidation is required for investments in jointly controlled entities. For 2006, our results reflect a four-
unit operation. Our financial results for the first 10 months of 2005 reflected a six-unit operation, which was 
accounted for on an equity basis.  
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Bruce Power Limited Partnership (100% basis) 1
 2006 2005 % Change 

 Output - terawatt hours (TWh) 1 25.8 30.8 (16) 
 Capacity factor (%) 2 91 79 15 
 Realized price ($/MWh) 48 58 (17) 
 Average Ontario electricity  
 spot price ($/MWh) 46 68 (32) 

 ($ millions) 
 Revenue 1,242 1,787 (31) 

807 1,202 (33)  Operating costs 3
    Cash costs 
     - operating & maintenance 
     - fuel 
     - supplemental rent 4
    Non cash costs (amortization) 

701
523
65

113
106

1,008
779
73

156
194

(31)
(33)
(11)
(28)
(45)

 Income before interest 
 and finance charges 435 585 (26) 

 Interest and finance charges 47 65 (28) 
 Earnings before taxes 5 388 520 (25) 
 Cash from operations 514 771 (33) 
 Capital expenditures 103 323 (68) 
 Operating costs ($/MWh) 31 39 (21) 
 Distributions 6 480 1,033 (54) 
1 In 2006, BPLP consists of the four B units, while in 2005 it included six units (four B and two A units) for the first 10 months
and four B units for the remainder of the year.

2 Capacity factor for a given period represents the amount of electricity actually produced for sale as a percentage of the amount
of electricity the plants are capable of producing for sale. 

3 Net of cost recoveries. 
4 Supplemental rent is about $28.3 million per operating reactor for 2006. 
5 Excludes $149 million loss recorded on the restructuring of BPLP on October 31, 2005. 
6 Distributions in 2005 include $633 million due to the Bruce Power restructuring. Cameco’s share was $200 million.

Cameco’s Earnings from BPLP 
 $ millions 2006 2005 % Change 
 BPLP’s earnings before taxes (100%)1 388 520 (25) 
 Cameco’s share of pre-tax earnings  
 before adjustments 122 164 (26) 

 Proprietary adjustments 6 6 - 
 Pre-tax earnings from BPLP 128 170 (25) 
1 Excludes $149 million loss recorded on the restructuring of Bruce Power on October 31, 2005. 

Nuclear Electricity Generation Business Highlights 

EARNINGS BEFORE TAXES
For 2006, BPLP earnings before taxes were $388 million compared to $520 million (which excludes the 
$149 million loss recorded on the restructuring of Bruce Power) in 2005. 
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Fewer days lost to planned outages in 2006, combined with substantially fewer forced outages, contributed 
to a significantly higher capacity factor and reduced unit operating costs. However, lower electricity spot 
prices offset these gains. 

OUTPUT
For 2006, the BPLP units achieved a capacity factor of 91%, compared with 79% in the same period last 
year. These units produced 25.8 TWh during 2006 compared to 30.8 TWh (including 8.2 TWh from the A 
units up to October 31, 2005) over the same period last year. The decrease primarily reflects the loss of 
output from the A units as a result of the restructuring from six to four units in late 2005. The decrease was 
partially offset by higher output from the B units.

PRICE
For 2006, BPLP’s electricity revenue totalled $1,242 million, compared to $1,787 million in 2005. During 
the year, BPLP’s realized price averaged $48 per MWh from a mix of contract and spot sales compared with 
$58 per MWh last year. The Ontario electricity spot price averaged about $46 per MWh during the year, 
compared to $68 per MWh in 2005. 

During 2006, about 51% of BPLP’s output was sold under fixed-price contracts compared to 48% in 2005. 

COSTS
For 2006, operating costs were $807 million, compared with $1,202 million in 2005. This decrease 
primarily reflects the costs of four units in 2006 versus the six units during most of 2005, and higher costs 
associated with planned and forced outages in 2005. The operating cost declined to $31 per MWh in 2006 
from $39 per MWh in 2005. 

CASH FROM OPERATIONS 
For 2006, BPLP generated $514 million in cash from operations compared to $771 million in 2005 due to 
significantly weaker spot electricity prices and changes in working capital requirements. Due to the timing 
of sales, the accounts receivable balance increased by $32 million in the fourth quarter of 2006, whereas it 
decreased by $42 million in the fourth quarter of 2005. 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
In 2006, capital expenditures were $103 million, down from $323 million in 2005 principally due to lower 
or completed expenditures for new steam generators, low pressure turbines and the new Bruce Power 
Support Centre building in 2005. 

CASH DISTRIBUTIONS
BPLP also distributed $480 million to the partners in 2006. Cameco’s share was $152 million. The partners 
have agreed that all future excess cash will be distributed on a monthly basis and that separate cash calls 
will be made for major capital projects. 

BPLP Outlook Considerations 
The results from BPLP are influenced by a number of factors including operating performance, costs and 
realized price. The operating performance is affected by planned and unplanned outages. Total costs are 
relatively insensitive to output shifts as about 95% of BPLP’s operating costs are fixed and most of the costs 
are incurred whether the plant is operating or not. As such, unit costs are dependent on output and subject to 
large variability if output changes. Cameco reports BPLP costs net of recoveries. Realized prices are made 
up of a mixture of sales under contract at fixed prices and sales in the Ontario spot electricity market. The 
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Ontario spot price is dependent on a number of factors such as the supply of and demand for electricity. The 
demand for electricity is very sensitive to Ontario weather patterns. 

BPLP’S OUTLOOK FOR 2007

In 2007, capacity factors for the B units are expected to average in the low 90% range similar to the 91% 
achieved in 2006. After investing significant capital on refurbishing the B units over the past few years, we 
anticipate continuing through 2007 with a significant reduction in time and expenditure on refurbishment 
programs, with only one planned outage in the first quarter of 2007. Unit B6 was shut down on January 20, 
2007 and is expected back in service early in the second quarter. 

For 2007, the average unit cost is expected to rise to $34 per MWh compared to $31 in 2006. Total costs are 
expected to rise by 12% in 2007 over 2006. The increase is due primarily to a rise in staff costs, operating 
and maintenance costs for heavy water treatment and fuel costs as well as lower incidental recoveries 
compared to 2006. In addition, higher amortization expenses are expected in 2007 reflecting the addition of 
the new administration building and other capital projects.

For 2007, we anticipate BPLP’s revenue to be 18% higher than in 2006, almost entirely due to higher 
expected realized prices, which are made up of fixed contract prices and Ontario spot market electricity 
prices. The spot prices are very sensitive to Ontario weather patterns. The average realized price was $48 
per MWh in 2006. 

The 2007 outlook for BPLP assumes the B units will achieve their targeted capacity factor and that there 
will be no significant changes in current estimates for costs and prices.  

2007 BPLP CAPITAL EXPENDITURES (100% BASIS)

BPLP’s capital expenditure program is expected to total $103 million. This includes $55 million for 
sustaining capital, with the balance for major projects and improvements.  

 2007 BPLP Capital Plan 
 $ millions

Bruce B 
Specific

Common
Capital Total BPLP 

 Category    
 Major Projects $17 $16 $33 
 Improvement 15 - 15 
 Sustaining 23 32 55 

 Total Capital Plan $55 $48 $103

Cameco expects that funding of these projects will come entirely from BPLP cash flows. However, 
available funds will depend on the electricity market prices and the operational performance of the BPLP 
reactors.
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ELECTRICITY PRICE SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS
For 2007, BPLP has 7 TWh under contract, which would represent about 25% of Bruce B generation at its 
planned capacity factor. For 2007, a $1.00 per MWh change in the spot price for electricity in Ontario 
would change Cameco’s after-tax earnings from BPLP by about $4 million.  

NEW FUEL PROGRAM
As part of its Bruce B power uprate project, BPLP had initiated plans to refuel the B units with modified 
fuel containing slightly enriched uranium (SEU) and blended dysprosium uranium beginning in 2008. Until 
recently, all four of the B units were operating at 90% of maximum power, based on an operating limitation 
imposed by the CNSC. The operating limitation ensures that necessary safety margins are maintained. The 
use of the modified fuel is intended to allow the reactors to operate at designed capacity, while maintaining 
necessary safety margins. Approval is required from the CNSC to operate the B units with the modified 
fuel.

In early 2007, Bruce Power revised its fuel deployment strategy and is now developing plans to load the 
modified fuel into the Bruce A reactors prior to loading any fuel into the B reactors, subject to the 
finalization of all commercial arrangements and Bruce Power board approvals. This will effectively delay 
the power uprate program at Bruce B.

While the delay of the new fuel program at the B units will result in the inability to restore power to 100%, 
Bruce Power has successfully taken other steps to partially restore power ratings at the B units. In 2004, unit 
B6 received CNSC approval to operate at 93% on the basis of improved safety margins attributed to 
completion of the first phase of a fuel core reordering program. Units B7 and B8 have since also achieved 
this power uprate to 93%. Unit B5 is expected to receive this uprate by 2008. 

GOLD

Centerra
Cameco owns 52.7% of Centerra, which is listed and publicly traded on the Toronto Stock Exchange under 
the symbol CG. We transferred substantially all of our gold assets to Centerra in 2004 as part of our strategy 
to unlock the value contained in these gold properties. Gold is not a core business for Cameco. Centerra was 
created as a vehicle for Cameco to eventually exit the gold business.  

The geographic focus of Centerra’s exploration, development, and acquisition efforts is in Central Asia, the 
former Soviet Union, and other emerging markets. Centerra owns 100% of the Kumtor mine in the Kyrgyz 
Republic and a 95% interest in the Boroo mine in Mongolia. Centerra is the operator of both mines. 
Centerra also has interests in exploration properties, including a 100% interest in the Gatsuurt property in 
Mongolia, 35 kilometres from the Boroo mine, and a 62% joint-venture interest in the REN property in 
Nevada.

• Centerra’s growth strategy is to increase its reserve base and expand its current portfolio of gold 
mining operations by: 

o developing new reserves at existing mines from in-pit, adjacent and regional exploration, 
o advancing late stage exploration properties by additional drill programs, and feasibility 

studies as warranted, and 
o actively pursuing selective acquisitions or mergers primarily in Central Asia, the former 

Soviet Union and other emerging markets. 
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Centerra recently issued updated estimates on the reserves and resources at its operating mines. At Kumtor, 
208,000 ounces of reserves were added before accounting for mining of 416,000 contained ounces in 2006. 
The reserve grade increased by 20% from 3.8 g/t to 4.7 g/t due to the higher grade mineralization being 
delineated in the SB Zone. Measured and indicated resources increased by approximately 500,000 ounces 
and inferred resources significantly increased by 1.1 million ounces. Centerra will proceed with a $39 
million (US) underground exploration and development program at Kumtor.  

At Boroo, 342,000 contained ounces have been added, which replace reserves mined in 2006. Centerra will 
invest $19 million (US) to develop a heap leach addition to process approximately 645,000 ounces of 
contained gold.

As of December 31, 2006, on a 100% project basis, Centerra’s proven and probable reserves totalled 7.0 
million ounces of contained gold (Cameco’s share is 3.6 million ounces).  

Centerra has an aggressive exploration program to further expand its reserve and resource base and is 
actively seeking acquisitions. Cameco believes that Centerra will be successful in its growth strategy and 
ultimately add more value to our investment in Centerra. 

In the longer term, Cameco will look for the right opportunity to reduce and ultimately fully divest of its 
gold investment. It is not our intention to sell quickly, but rather to encourage Centerra to grow and gain 
value for Cameco’s shareholders. The decision whether to divest will also depend on the need to fund 
investment opportunities in the nuclear energy business. 

For further information on Centerra, refer to its annual report and annual information form for 2006. 

Gold Operating Results 
Cameco fully consolidates the results of Centerra’s operations. Cameco adjusts for a 47% minority interest 
in Centerra, which reflects that share of earnings attributable to shareholders other than Cameco.  

Gold Highlights 2006 2005 % Change 
Revenue ($ millions) 414 412 1 
Gross profit ($ millions) 101 107 (6) 
Gross profit % 24 26 (8) 
Realized price ($US/ounce) 597 433 38 
Sales volume (ounces) 610,000 781,000 (22) 
Production (ounces) 587,000 787,000 (25) 

Gold Financial Results 
In 2006, revenue from our gold business increased by $2 million to $414 million compared to 2005. This 
increase was attributable to higher gold prices, offset by lower production at Kumtor. The realized price for 
gold increased to $597 (US) per ounce in 2006 compared to $433 (US) per ounce in 2005, due to higher 
spot prices. 

Kumtor’s production for the year was 304,000 ounces compared to 501,000 ounces in 2005. This decrease 
was primarily due to the pit wall movement that occurred in July 2006 and a lower mill head grade that 
averaged 2.3 g/t in the period compared to 3.4 g/t in 2005. 
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Production at Boroo was 283,000 ounces for the year compared to 286,000 ounces in 2005. The average 
head grade of ore fed to the mill was 4.3 g/t compared to 4.2 g/t in the same period last year. 

The gross profit margin for gold declined to 24% in 2006 compared to 26% in 2005 due to the higher cost of 
labour and consumables, lower head grade at Kumtor and lower recoveries at Kumtor and Boroo. Partially 
offsetting the increase in cost of sales was significantly higher realized gold prices and lower depreciation, 
depletion, amortization and accretion expense. 

Gold Outlook for 2007 
Overall, 2007 production, on a 100% basis, is expected to total between 700,000 to 720,000 ounces of gold. 
At Kumtor, production for 2007 is expected to be about 450,000 to 460,000 ounces of gold. At Boroo, on a 
100% basis, we expect production in the range of 250,000 to 260,000 ounces of gold in 2007. Gold revenue 
is expected to increase by about 20% in 2007 over 2006. This outlook for the gold business is based on the 
following key assumptions: 

• Centerra’s forecast production is achieved, 
• spot gold price of $600 (US) per ounce, and 
• a US/Canadian dollar spot exchange rate of $1.16. 

Centerra expects the current gold industry’s strong fundamentals to continue to exert upward pressure on 
price. As such, Centerra currently plans to leave its gold production unhedged. 

Gold Price Sensitivity Analysis  
For 2007, a $25.00 (US) per ounce change in the gold spot price would change Cameco revenue by about 
$21 million (Cdn), cash flow by about $15 million (Cdn) and net earnings by about $8 million (Cdn). 

Qualified Person
The disclosure in this MD&A of scientific and technical information regarding Centerra’s gold properties, 
including reserve and resource estimates and the description of the geology, was prepared by or under the 
supervision of the following qualified person: 

Ian Atkinson, a certified professional geologist, and employed by Centerra as vice-president exploration 
(Kumtor and Boroo). He is a qualified person for the purpose of National Instrument 43-101.  
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2006 FOURTH QUARTER CONSOLIDATED RESULTS 

Financial Highlights 
($ millions except per share amounts) 

Three months 
ended Dec 31 
2006 2005 

% Change 

Revenue 1 512 522 (2) 
Earnings from operations 36 59 (39) 
Cash provided by operations 2 13 91 (86) 
Net earnings 40 83 (52) 
Earnings per share (EPS) – basic ($) 0.11 0.24 (54) 
EPS – diluted ($) 0.11 0.23 (52) 
EPS – adjusted and diluted ($) 0.11 0.21 (48) 
Adjusted net earnings 3 40 76 (47) 

1 In 2006, revenue from Bruce Power Limited Partnership (BPLP) was proportionately consolidated. In 2005, consolidated 
revenue included Cameco’s proportionate share of BPLP revenue following the restructuring of the partnership as of October 31, 
2005. Prior to that date, we accounted for BPLP using the equity accounting method. 
2 After working capital changes. 
3 Net earnings for 2006 have been adjusted to exclude a $73 million ($0.19 per share diluted) recovery of future income taxes 
related to reductions in federal and provincial income tax rates and adjusted to exclude a $29 million gain ($0.08 per share 
diluted) on sale of our interest in the Fort à la Corne joint venture. Net earnings for the quarter and year ended December 31, 2005 
have been adjusted to exclude $69 million ($0.19 per share diluted) in net earnings related to the gain on sale of Energy Resources
of Australia Ltd shares as well as $62 million ($0.17 per share diluted) in net loss related to the restructuring of the Bruce Power 
Limited Partnership. Adjusted net earnings is a non-GAAP measure used to provide a representative comparison of the financial 
results. 

For the three months ended December 31, 2006, our net earnings were $40 million ($0.11 per share diluted), 
$43 million lower than the net earnings of $83 million ($0.23 per share diluted) recorded in 2005. The 
decrease was due to lower earnings in the electricity and gold businesses, and a $20 million (pre-tax) charge 
at Cigar Lake. As highlighted in our third quarter report, we are required to write down the value of assets 
lost in the Cigar Lake inflow. The write down results in a $15 million (pre-tax) charge in the fourth quarter 
of 2006. In addition, we expensed $5 million (pre-tax) in costs related to remediation activities at the 
project.

In the fourth quarter of 2006, our total costs for administration, exploration, interest and other were $62 
million, $6 million higher than in the same period of 2005. Administration costs were $14 million higher 
due largely to increased costs of $4 million at Centerra Gold Inc (Cameco’s 53% owned subsidiary), 
information systems and process enhancements ($3 million), Sarbanes Oxley compliance ($2 million), 
business development ($1 million) and higher workforce related costs ($1 million).  

Exploration expenditures were $3 million lower, at $15 million, with uranium exploration expenditures 
down $2 million at $7 million (focused in Saskatchewan, Australia and Nunavut). Gold exploration 
expenditures at Centerra were down $1 million from the fourth quarter of 2005. 

Interest and other charges declined by $5 million due to higher interest income on higher cash balances ($7 
million) and foreign exchange gains ($3 million) partially offset by mark to market losses on foreign 
exchange contracts that are not designated as hedges ($5 million).  
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In the fourth quarter of 2006, we recorded a $9 million net recovery of income taxes. During the quarter, 
Centerra recorded $10 million in recoveries related mainly to losses at its Kumtor operation. The portion of 
our income taxable in Canada was relatively low in the quarter due to the Cigar Lake remediation charges 
and lower earnings from BPLP. Our tax rate varies from the Canadian statutory tax rate primarily due to 
differences between Canadian tax rates and rates applicable to subsidiaries in other countries. 

Earnings from operations decreased to $36 million in the fourth quarter of 2006, from $59 million in the 
fourth quarter of 2005. The aggregate gross profit margin increased in the fourth quarter to 23% from 22% 
in 2005.

For more information on the fourth quarter of 2006, refer to Cameco’s news release dated February 6, 2007. 

2005-2006 QUARTERLY CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
Highlights
($ millions except per share amounts)

2006 2005 

Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1 Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1 
Revenue 512 360 417 542 522 287 287 216 

Net earnings 40 73 150 112 83 79 34 20 

EPS – basic ($) 0.11 0.21 0.43 0.32 0.24 0.23 0.10 0.06 

EPS – diluted ($) 0.11 0.20 0.40 0.30 0.23 0.22 0.10 0.06 

EPS – adjusted & diluted ($) 0.11 0.12 0.21 0.30 0.21 0.22 0.10 0.06 

Cash from operations 13 79 40 286 91 148 (45) 84 

The following points are intended to assist the reader in analysing the trends in the quarterly financial 
highlights for 2006: 
• Revenue of $512 million in the fourth quarter of 2006 was 42% higher than in the third quarter due to 

higher sales volumes and improved prices in the uranium and fuel services businesses. Revenue is 
driven by timing of deliveries in our uranium and fuel services businesses, and has tended to be higher 
in the fourth quarter. However in 2006, the deliveries were more heavily weighted in the first quarter of 
the year. 

• Net earnings do not trend directly with revenue because past results are significantly influenced by 
results from BPLP. Prior to November 1, 2005, the equity method of accounting was applied to the 
investment in BPLP and thus no BPLP revenue or costs were recorded. On November 1, 2005, Cameco 
moved to proportionate consolidation of BPLP’s financial results. For 2006, we have included our share 
of revenue, expenses and cash flow from the Bruce B reactors. The adjustment in our accounting method 
for BPLP does not change the reporting of our net earnings.

• Cash from operations tends to fluctuate largely due to the timing of deliveries and product purchases in 
the uranium production and fuel services businesses. 
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2006 CONSOLIDATED RESULTS 

Consolidated Earnings 

Earnings
In 2006, Cameco recorded a non-cash recovery of $73 million of future income taxes related to reductions 
in federal and provincial income tax rates. Also in 2006, Cameco recorded a $29 million after-tax gain on 
the sale of our interest in the Fort à la Corne joint venture. Consolidated earnings in the following discussion 
are adjusted to exclude these items for period-to-period comparisons of the financial results. Adjusted net 
earnings is a non-GAAP measure that should be considered supplemental in nature and not a substitute for 
related financial information prepared in accordance with GAAP. 

For 2006, our net earnings were $376 million ($1.02 per share diluted). Our adjusted net earnings were $274 
million ($0.75 per share diluted and adjusted), $66 million higher than the adjusted net earnings of $208 
million ($0.58 per share diluted) recorded in 2005 due to improved results in the uranium and gold 
businesses. These improvements were partially offset by lower earnings from BPLP, charges related to the 
Cigar Lake water inflow and higher administration expenses. 

The improvement in the uranium business was due to a higher realized price, the result of both the 
significant increase in the spot price for uranium and higher realized prices under fixed-price contracts. In 
the gold business, an increase in the realized price more than offset the impact of reduced production caused 
by the movement of the pit wall at Kumtor. In 2006, our earnings from BPLP declined in comparison to 
2005 due to a 32% decrease in the average Ontario electricity spot price. 

Earnings from operations increased to $335 million in 2006 from $121 million in 2005. The aggregate gross 
profit margin increased in 2006 to 28% from 23% in 2005 due to higher realized prices for uranium and 
gold.

Corporate Expenses 
ADMINISTRATION
In 2006, administration costs were $143 million, an increase of $33 million due largely to an $11 million 
increase in costs at Centerra, related to stock-based compensation and business development. In addition, 
Cameco recorded increased expenses for stock compensation primarily attributable to increased share prices 
($4 million) and incurred higher charges for Sarbanes-Oxley compliance ($7 million), business process 
enhancements ($5 million) and higher workforce related costs ($4 million). 

INTEREST AND OTHER
In 2006, interest and other costs declined by $16 million compared to 2005 due primarily to higher interest 
income on cash balances ($22 million) partially offset by higher gross interest costs ($5 million) related 
mainly to the proportionate consolidation of BPLP. Refer to note 13 in the notes to the financial statements.  

INCOME TAXES
In 2006, we recorded a net tax recovery of $69 million compared to an expense of $30 million for 2005.  

In 2006, the government of Saskatchewan amended the provincial income tax laws to provide for a 5% 
reduction in the general corporate income tax rate. The provincial tax rate is declining from 17% to 12% 
over a three-year period commencing July 1, 2006. Also in 2006, the federal government introduced 
amendments to the Canadian Income Tax Act that provide for a 2% reduction in the general corporate 

50



income tax rate. The federal tax rate will decline from its previous level of 21% to 19% over a three-year 
period commencing in 2008. Amendments were also introduced to eliminate the corporate surtax, which 
effectively will decrease the federal income tax rate by 1%, starting in 2008.  

Under Canadian accounting rules, the cumulative effect of a change in income tax legislation on future 
income tax assets and liabilities is included in a company’s financial statements in the period of substantive 
enactment. Accordingly, Cameco reduced its balance sheet provision for future income taxes and 
recognized a non-cash income tax adjustment of $73 million ($0.19 per share diluted) in 2006. 

In addition, confirmation was received with respect to the deductibility of the Saskatchewan provincial 
resource surcharge for the years prior to 2001. As a result, a $17 million reduction of future taxes was 
recorded.  

Our effective tax rate decreased to 6% in 2006 from 20% in 2005 due to a lower proportion of total income 
being taxable in Canada. The effective rate for 2006 excludes the $73 million recovery related to the change 
in tax rates and the $17 million recovery due to the deductibility of the resource surcharges. The effective 
rate for 2005 is based on adjusted net earnings and also excludes $10 million in recoveries related to the 
deductibility of the resource surcharges. 

Income tax expense also includes capital taxes of approximately $2 million and $6 million in 2006 and 2005 
respectively. The amount reported in 2005 also included large corporations tax which was eliminated 
effective January 1, 2006. Refer to note 16 in the notes to the financial statements. 

Cash Resources 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
In 2006, Cameco generated record cash from operations of $418 million compared to the previous record of 
$278 million in 2005. The increase of $140 million reflects higher revenue compared to 2005 and the 
proportionate consolidation of BPLP results in 2006.

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
In 2006, Cameco used $527 million in its investing activities, an increase of $548 million compared to the 
prior year when the investing activities generated positive cash flow of $21 million. In 2005, Cameco 
collected $302 million as a result of the restructuring of BPLP ($200 million) and the sale of its shares in 
ERA ($102 million). Excluding these inflows, the net increase in cash used in investing activities in 2006 
over 2005 was $247 million and was largely attributable to the acquisition of Zircatec ($84 million), higher 
development charges at Cigar Lake ($37 million) and Inkai ($19 million) as well as greater capital 
expenditures by Centerra ($81 million).  

For 2006, investing activities included $29 million for sustaining capital at McArthur River/Key Lake, $120 
million in development costs at Cigar Lake and $31 million in capitalized interest charges.  

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
In 2006, Cameco used $182 million in its financing activities. In January 2006, Cameco redeemed $150 
million in debentures. In 2006, the company paid a record total of $53 million in dividends, up from $40 
million in 2005. 
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Balance Sheet

CASH
At December 31, 2006, our consolidated cash balance totalled $334 million with Centerra holding about 
$217 million of this amount.  

INVENTORIES
Compared to the end of 2005, our product inventories increased by $17 million to $416 million. The 
increase in the inventory value was attributable to higher unit costs due primarily to higher unit costs for 
uranium, which were largely offset by a 20% decline in the quantity of uranium inventory. The average cost 
of our uranium and conversion services has risen due primarily to an increase in the cost of purchased 
material. Refer to note 4 in the notes to the financial statements.  

DEBT
At December 31, 2006, our total debt was $705 million, representing a decrease of $154 million compared 
to December 31, 2005. Included in the December 31, 2006 balance was $198 million, which represents our 
proportionate share of BPLP’s capital lease obligation. At December 31, 2006, our consolidated net debt to 
capitalization ratio was 12%, up from 9% at the end of 2005. In 2006, we used cash on hand to redeem a 
total of $150 million in debentures. Refer to note 7 in the notes to the financial statements. 

INVESTMENTS
Cameco has a number of investments in publicly traded entities. The following table illustrates the book and 
market values for its more significant holdings. 

 Book Value Market Value 1
Investment ($ millions) Dec 31/06 Dec 31/06 Dec. 31/05 
Centerra Gold Inc. $443 $1,504 $1,069 
UEX Corporation 19 220 167 
UNOR Inc. 9 14 - 

Total $471 $1,738 $1,236 
    

1 Market value is calculated as the number of shares outstanding multiplied by the closing share price as quoted on the TSX on 
December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2006.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS
In the normal course of operations, Cameco enters into certain transactions which are not required to be 
recorded on its balance sheet. These activities include the issuing of financial assurances, derivative 
instruments and long-term product purchase contracts. These arrangements are discussed in the following 
sections of this MD&A and the notes to the financial statements: 

• Financial Assurances: 
o Nuclear Electricity Business, 
o Liquidity and Capital Resources,
o Risks and Risk Management and  
o Notes 7, 8, 19 and 25 of the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

• Derivative Instruments: 
o Uranium Business,  
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o Risks and Risk Management,  
o Critical Accounting Estimates and  
o Note 25 of the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

• Long-term Product Purchase Contracts 
o Uranium Business, 
o Liquidity and Capital Resources and
o Note 24 of the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

CONSOLIDATED OUTLOOK FOR 2007 

In 2007, Cameco expects consolidated revenue to grow by about 25% over 2006 due to higher revenue from 
uranium and fuel services. In the uranium business, we expect revenue to increase by approximately 45% 
due to stronger average realized prices under our contracts relative to 2006. This projection for the uranium 
business does not include all the expected adjustments for the Cigar Lake water inflow incident as they are 
being finalized and assumes that the product loan arrangements in place remain unchanged. We may 
consider terminating a portion or all of the product loans. Excluding the impact of any deferrals related to 
the product loans, we anticipate uranium revenue to increase by about 50% in 2007 primarily due to higher 
realized prices. 

We also anticipate that revenue from the fuel services business will be about 20% higher than in 2006 due to 
an anticipated 10% increase in deliveries and an increase in the average realized selling price. 

For 2007, we anticipate BPLP revenue to be 18% higher than in 2006, almost entirely due to higher 
expected realized prices. This outlook for BPLP assumes the B units will achieve a targeted capacity factor 
in the low 90% range. 

In 2007, we expect gold production (100% basis) to increase to 700,000 to 720,000 ounces from 587,000 
ounces in 2006. Gold revenue is expected to increase by about 20% in 2007 over 2006. 

The financial outlook noted above for the company is based on the following key assumptions: 
• no significant changes in our estimates for sales volumes, purchases and prices, as discussed above,
• no disruption of supply from our facilities or third-party sources, and 
• a US/Canadian dollar spot exchange rate of $1.16. 

Administration costs are projected to be about 10% greater than in 2006. The increase reflects higher 
charges for operations related regulatory compliance, business development and costs to maintain the 
workforce. Exploration costs are expected to be about $72 million in 2007. Of this, $45 million is targeted 
for uranium, a 41% increase over 2006. 

For 2007, the effective tax rate is expected to be in the range of 15% to 20%. Our expected tax rate varies 
from the Canadian statutory tax rate primarily due to differences between Canadian tax rates and rates 
applicable to subsidiaries in other countries. This range is based on the projected distribution of income 
among the various tax jurisdictions being weighted less heavily toward foreign subsidiaries compared to 
2006.

In 2007, we expect total capital expenditures, including the gold business, to increase by 25% to $577 
million.  
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Capital expenditures are classified as growth or sustaining. Growth capital is defined as capital spent to 
bring on incremental production plus business development initiatives. The remainder is classified as 
sustaining capital. For growth projects, total expenditures are projected to be $256 million. 

We expect sustaining capital expenditures to be higher in 2007 than in 2006 due to revitalization programs 
at Key Lake and Rabbit Lake, and well field expansions at the US ISL operations. Sustaining capital 
expenditures will also increase at fuel services to improve production processes and meet new regulatory 
requirements.  

Capital Expenditures
(Cameco’s share in $ millions) 2007 Plan 2006 Actual
Growth Capital
 McArthur River - $9 
 US ISL 2 1 
  Cigar Lake 74 120 
 Fuel Services 19 - 
  Inkai 62 37 
 Gold1 99 94 
Total Growth $256 $261

Sustaining Capital
  McArthur River/Key Lake $78 $29 
  US ISL 33 23 
 Rabbit Lake 63 24 
  Fuel Services 37 18 
 Bruce Power (BPLP) 33 33 
 Gold1 28 27 
  Other 14 14 
Total Sustaining $286 $168 
   
Capitalized interest 35 31 
Total $577 $460
1Represents 100% of Centerra’s expenditures. 

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 

Overview 
Financial liquidity represents the company’s ability to fund future operating activities and investments. 
Some important measures of liquidity are summarized in the table below. 

In 2006, Cameco arranged for standby product loan facilities with two Cameco customers that allow 
Cameco to borrow up to 5,560,000 pounds U3O8 equivalent over the period 2006 to 2008, with repayment in 
2008 and 2009. Cameco also extended its revolving credit facility by one year to be available until 
November 30, 2011.  
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Liquidity Indicators 
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 

Cash provided by 
operations ($ millions) 418 278 228 250 241 

Cash provided by 
operations/net debt1 (%) 113 118 69 48 66 

Net debt*/total 
capitalization (%) 12 9 13 22 18 

1 Total debt less cash and cash equivalents based on consolidated amounts. 

Indicators Defined 
Cash provided by operations reflects the net cash flow generated by operating activities after consideration 
for changes in working capital.

Cash provided by operations to net debt indicates the company’s ability to meet debt obligations from 
internally generated funds.

Net debt to total capitalization measures the company’s use of financial leverage. A lower percentage means 
less reliance upon debt as a source of financing. Although debt is a lower cost form of financing compared 
to equity, a lower percentage of debt also represents lower repayment obligations. At December 31, 2006, 
the consolidated cash balance totalled $334 million with Centerra holding about $217 million of this amount 
for its own use.

Credit Ratings 
The following table provides Cameco’s third party ratings for our commercial paper, senior debt and 
convertible debentures, as of December 31, 2006: 

Security DBRS S&P 
Commercial Paper R-1 (low) A-1 (low)1

Senior Unsecured 
Debentures A (low) BBB+ 

Convertible Debentures BBB (high) Not Rated 
1 A-1 (low) is the Canadian National Scale Rating while the Global Scale Rating is A-2. 

Debt
In addition to cash from operations, debt is used to provide liquidity. Cameco has sufficient borrowing 
capacity to meet its current requirements with access to about $750 million in unsecured lines of credit. 

Commercial lenders have provided a $500 million five-year unsecured revolving credit facility, available 
until November 30, 2011. Upon mutual agreement the facility can be extended for an additional year. In 
addition to direct borrowings under the facility, up to $100 million can be used for the issuance of letters of 
credit and, to the extent necessary, up to $400 million may be allocated to provide liquidity support for the 
company’s commercial paper program. The facility ranks equally with all of Cameco’s other senior debt. At 
December 31, 2006, there were no amounts outstanding under this credit facility.  
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Cameco may borrow directly from investors by issuing up to $400 million in commercial paper. At 
December 31, 2006, there were no amounts outstanding under the commercial paper program. 

Various financial institutions have entered into agreements to provide Cameco up to approximately $250 
million in short-term borrowing and letters of credit facilities. These arrangements are predominantly used 
to fulfill regulatory requirements to provide financial assurance for future decommissioning and reclamation 
of our operating sites. At December 31, 2006, outstanding letters of credit amounted to $213 million under 
these facilities. Cameco has established separate letter of credit facilities to support standby product loan 
facilities, as described below.  

Cameco has operated within the investment-grade segment (high-credit quality) of the market when 
obtaining credit. The cost, terms and conditions under which financing is available vary over time. While 
future access to credit cannot be assured, it was readily available in 2006. 

Product Loan Facilities
Cameco has arranged for standby product loan facilities with two of its customers. The arrangements, which 
were finalized in June and July of 2006, allow Cameco to borrow up to 5.6 million pounds U3O8 equivalent 
over the period 2006 to 2008 with repayment in 2008 and 2009. Of this material, up to 1.4 million kgU can 
be borrowed in the form of UF6. Under the loan facilities, standby fees of 0.5% to 2.25% are payable based 
on the market value of the facilities, and interest is payable on the market value of any amounts drawn at 
rates ranging from 4.0% to 5.0%. Any borrowings will be secured by letters of credit and are repayable in 
kind.

Revenue from future deliveries to these counterparties (up to the limit of the loan facilities) will be deferred 
until the loan arrangements have been terminated, or if drawn upon, when the loans are repaid and that 
portion of the facility is terminated. 

The market value of the facilities is based on the quoted market price of the products at December 31, 2006 
and was approximately $416 million (US). As at December 31, 2006, the company did not have any loan 
amounts outstanding under the facilities.  

Cameco has established $300 million (US) of letter of credit facilities maturing in 2010 to support these 
standby product loan facilities. At December 31, 2006, there were no amounts outstanding under these letter 
of credit facilities. 

Debentures 
Cameco’s senior unsecured debentures consist of $300 million of debentures that bear interest at the rate of 
4.7% per annum and which mature September 16, 2015.  

Convertible Debentures 
Cameco has $230 million outstanding in convertible debentures. The debentures bear interest at 5% per 
annum, mature on October 1, 2013, and at the holder’s option are convertible into common shares of 
Cameco. The debentures are redeemable by the company beginning October 1, 2008 at a redemption price 
of par plus accrued interest. Refer to note 7 in the notes to consolidated financial statements. 

Debt Covenants 
Cameco is bound by certain covenants in its general credit facilities. The financially related covenants place 
restrictions on total debt, including guarantees, and set minimum levels for net worth. As of December 31, 
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2006, Cameco met these financial covenants and does not expect its operating and investment activities in 
2007 to be constrained by them. 

Contractual Cash Obligations  

As at December 31, 2006 
($ million) Total

Due in 
Less Than 

1 Year

Due in 1 
–3 Years

Due in 4 –
5 Years

Due After 
5 Yrs 

Long-term debt 1 727 8 19 25 675 
Interest on long-term debt 207 26 51 51 79 
Other liabilities 373 11 11 1 350 
Unconditional product purchase 
obligations 2,3 1,171 202 308 281 380 

Total contractual cash obligations 2,478 247 389 358 1,484 
1 Includes the amortized value of the conversion option associated with the convertible debentures. Refer to note 7 in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements.  
2 Denominated in US dollars. Converted to Canadian dollars at the December 31, 2006 rate of $1.1653. 
3 Virtually all of Cameco’s product purchase obligations are under long-term, fixed-price arrangements.

Commercial Commitments 
Commercial commitments at December 31, 2006 decreased to $297 million from $463 million at December 
31, 2005. Our obligations to provide financial guarantees supporting BPLP decreased by $100 million, 
Kumtor Gold Company purchase commitments decreased by $72 million and standby letters of credit 
increased by $6 million to the end. At December 31, 2006, commercial commitments included standby 
letters of credit of $213 million and financial guarantees for BPLP of $84 million. 

As at December 31, 2006 
($ millions)

Total amounts 
committed

Standby letters of credit 1 213
BPLP guarantees 2 84
Total commercial commitments  297

1 The standby letters of credit maturing in 2007 were issued with a one-year term and will be automatically renewed on a year-by-
year basis until the underlying obligations are resolved. These obligations are primarily the decommissioning and reclamation of
Cameco’s mining and conversion facilities. As such, the letters of credit are expected to remain outstanding well into the future.  
2 At December 31, 2006, Cameco’s total commitment for financial assurances given on behalf of BPLP was estimated to be $84 
million. Refer to note 19 in the notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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2004-2006 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

For the Years Ended December 31 
($ millions except per share amounts) 2006 2005 2004 

Revenue 1,832 1,313 1,048 
Earnings from operations 335 121 123 
Net earnings 376 215 277 
 - per common share (basic) 1.07 0.62 0.81 
 - per common share (diluted) 1.02 0.60 0.77 
Adjusted net earnings 1 274 208 183 
Cash provided by operations 418 278 228 
Total assets 5,140 4,773 4,052 
Long-term financial liabilities 1,582 1,687 1,306 
Dividends per common share $0.20 $0.12 $0.10 

1 Net earnings for 2006 have been adjusted to exclude a $73 million ($0.19 per share diluted) recovery of future income taxes 
related to reductions in federal and provincial income tax rates and adjusted to exclude a $29 million gain ($0.08 per share 
diluted) on sale of our interest in the Fort à la Corne joint venture. Net earnings for 2005 have been adjusted to exclude $69 
million ($0.19 per share diluted) in net earnings related to the gain on sale of Energy Resources of Australia Ltd shares as well as 
$62 million ($0.17 per share diluted) in net loss related to the restructuring of the Bruce Power Limited Partnership. Adjusted net 
earnings is a non-GAAP measure used to provide a representative comparison of the financial results. 

The following points are intended to assist the reader in analyzing the trends in the annual financial 
highlights for the years 2004 through 2006. 

• Revenue has trended higher over the three-year period, rising by 75% over 2004 to a record $1,832 
million in 2006. Approximately half of this increase was related to the electricity business where the 
restructuring undertaken late in 2005 required a change in accounting, from equity method to 
proportionate consolidation. In 2006, we reported electricity revenues of $408 million.  

• Revenue has also been influenced by improved prices in the uranium and gold businesses. Our 
realized price for uranium concentrates has increased consistently over the three-year period, 
averaging $24.72 (Cdn) per pound in 2006 compared to $17.97 (Cdn) per pound for 2004, a 38% 
improvement. We have also seen consistent improvement in the price for gold, where our average 
realized price has risen by 50% during the period due to higher spot prices. In addition, revenues in 
our fuel services business have risen by 55% due to increased volumes and realized prices as well as 
the acquisition of Zircatec in early 2006. 

• Earnings from operations have also trended higher during the period but the rise has been tempered 
by higher costs for product sold, higher administration charges and greater investment in 
exploration. The increase in the cost of sales was attributable to higher costs for purchased uranium 
and conversion services, driven by rising spot prices. Our administration costs have risen 
significantly over the three-year period due to establishing Centerra as a separate publicly traded 
company, higher stock compensation expenses and higher costs for regulatory compliance.  

• Net earnings have not trended with revenue due to two main reasons. First, our results are 
significantly influenced by operating results from Bruce Power. Until November 1, 2005, we used 
the equity method to account for the investment in Bruce Power and therefore no revenue was 
recorded prior to that time. Second, our earnings have been influenced by unusual, one-time items 
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over the past three years. In 2004, we recorded a gain of $94 million (after tax) on the restructuring 
of our gold business. In 2005, there were two unusual items: 1) the disposition of our investment in 
ERA which resulted in a gain of $69 million (after tax), and 2) the restructuring of the BPLP 
partnership which resulted in an after-tax loss of $62 million. In 2006, we recorded income tax 
recoveries of $73 million as the result of changes in tax legislation and we recognized a gain of $29 
million (after tax) on the sale of our interest in the Fort à la Corne joint venture. 

• Excluding the adjustments noted above, net earnings have increased by 50% in 2006 over the $183 
million recorded in 2004. The 14% increase to $208 million in 2005 from 2004 was attributable to 
improved results in the uranium business as well as stronger performance at BPLP. The 
improvement in the uranium business was due to a higher realized price, which was related mainly 
to the significant increase in the spot price for uranium. Earnings from BPLP benefited from a 23% 
increase in realized price due to higher spot prices in Ontario. The improvement in net earnings from 
2005 to 2006 was due largely to improved results in our uranium and gold businesses. The higher 
earnings were partially offset by reduced earnings from BPLP as well as higher charges for 
administration and the recognition of remediation costs at Cigar Lake. The improvement in the 
uranium profits was due to the higher average realized price, which was mainly the result of higher 
prices under fixed-price contracts and a higher uranium spot price. The gold business also benefited 
from higher realized prices with the spot price averaging $602 (US) per ounce in 2006, an increase 
of 35% over 2005. The earnings from BPLP declined due to a $10 per MWh (17%) decrease in the 
average realized price to $48.00 per MWh as a result of lower electricity spot prices. 

• In 2006, Cameco generated record cash from operations of $418 million compared to $278 million 
in 2005. This increase of $140 million was mainly attributable to higher revenues and the 
proportionate consolidation of BPLP results in 2006. Cash from operations of $278 million in 2005 
represented an increase of $50 million compared to the $228 million recorded in 2004. This increase 
was mainly due to higher revenues in the uranium and gold businesses compared to 2004. 

• The major components of Cameco’s long-term financial liabilities are long-term debt, future income 
taxes and the provision for reclamation. In 2006, Cameco’s total long-term financial liabilities 
declined to $1,582 million from $1,687 million at the end of 2005 due to a $154 million decrease in 
long-term debt, and a $133 million reduction in future income taxes due largely to changes in 
Canadian tax rates. These reductions were partially offset by an increase in other liabilities related to 
revenue deferrals under our product loan arrangements and higher liabilities for reclamation at our 
fuel services facilities in Ontario.  

• At the end of 2006, Cameco’s total assets amounted to $5,140 million, an increase of $367 million 
over the previous year. Most of the change was due to the increased investment in property, plant 
and equipment related to the acquisition of Zircatec and development expenditures for Cigar Lake, 
Inkai and gold.

OUTSTANDING SHARE DATA 

At March 12, 2007, there were 352.4 million common shares and one Class B share outstanding. In 
addition, there were 7.3 million stock options outstanding with exercise prices ranging from $3.13 to $41.00 
per share. Cameco also has convertible debentures in the amount of $230 million outstanding. This issue 
may be converted into a total of 21.2 million common shares at a conversion price of $10.83 per share. The 
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debentures are redeemable by Cameco beginning on October 1, 2008 at a redemption price of par plus 
accrued interest. At current share prices, we expect existing holders to convert to equity. 

RESERVES AND RESOURCES 

Canadian Securities Administrators’ National Instrument 43-101 requires mining companies to disclose 
reserves and resources using the subcategories of proven reserves, probable reserves, measured resources, 
indicated resources and inferred resources. Cameco reports reserves and resources separately.

Cameco reports all its mineral reserves as a quantity of contained ore supporting the mining plans and 
includes an estimate of the metallurgical recovery for each of its properties. Metallurgical recovery is a term 
used in the mining industry to indicate the proportion of valuable material physically recovered by the 
metallurgical extraction process. The estimated recoverable amount of a commodity is obtained by 
multiplying the reserves “Content” by the “Estimated Metallurgical Recovery Percentage”. 
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Uranium Reserves 

The following table shows the estimated uranium reserves as at December 31, 2006 on a property basis and 
Cameco’s share. 

RESERVES PROVEN
(100% basis) 

PROBABLE
(100% basis) 

TOTAL RESERVES 
(100% basis)    

Tonnes  
Grade
%U3O8

Content
(lbs

U3O8) Tonnes 
Grade
%U3O8

Content
(lbs

U3O8) Tonnes 
Grade
%U3O8

Content
(lbs

U3O8)

Cameco’s 
Share 

 (lbs U3O8)

Estimated
Metallurgical 
Recovery %

Mining
Method 

PROPERTY    (tonnes in thousands; pounds in millions)      

Cigar Lake 497.0 20.67 226.3 -- -- -- 497.0 20.67 226.3 113.2 98.5% UG  
Crow Butte 901.6 0.33 6.5 -- -- -- 901.6 0.33 6.5 6.5 85.0% ISL  
Gas Hills – 
Peach -- -- -- 6,851.0 0.13 19.7 6,851.0 0.13 19.7 19.7 65.0% ISL  
Highland 278.5 0.13 0.8 935.1 0.13 2.7 1,213.6 0.13 3.5 3.5 80.0% ISL  
Inkai 22,694.0 0.07 35.4 63,727.0 0.06 79.0 86,421.0 0.06 114.4 68.6 80.0% ISL  
Key Lake 61.9 0.52 0.7 -- -- -- 61.9 0.52 0.7 0.7 98.7% OP  
McArthur
River 530.2 17.49 204.5 280.0 26.33 162.5 810.2 20.55 367.0 256.2 98.7% UG  
North Butte/ 
Brown Ranch -- -- -- 3,874.6 0.10 8.5 3,874.6 0.10 8.5 8.5 80.0% ISL  
Rabbit Lake 40.0 1.15 1.0 696.5 1.18 18.1 736.5 1.18 19.1 19.1 96.7% UG  
Ruby Ranch -- -- -- 2,832.2 0.09 5.5 2,832.2 0.09 5.5 5.5 80.0% ISL  
Ruth -- -- -- 853.7 0.09 1.7 853.7 0.09 1.7 1.7 80.0% ISL  
Smith Ranch 676.9 0.10 1.5 3,143.1 0.12 8.3 3,820.0 0.12 9.8 9.8 80.0% ISL  
Total 25,680.1 -- 476.7 83,193.2 -- 306.0 108,873.3 -- 782.7 513.0    --                   -- 
   
Notes:
1 Cameco reports reserves and resources separately.  
2 Cigar Lake reserves are current as at March 16, 2007. 
3 Mill recovery factors must be applied in order to obtain the expected amounts of recovered pounds U3O8.
4 Mineral Reserves incorporate allowances for dilution and mining losses. 
5 Mining Method: OP – Open Pit; UG – Underground; ISL – In situ leaching. 
6 Reserves are estimated using current geological models and current and/or projected operating costs and mine plans. Cameco’s normal

data verification procedures have been employed in connection with the reserve estimations for each property, unless otherwise set out in 
this MD&A. 

7 For the purpose of estimating mineral reserves in accordance with NI 43-101, a uranium price of $38.50 (US)/lb U3O8 was used. For the 
purpose of estimating mineral reserves in accordance with US Securities Commission Industry Guide 7, a uranium price of $32.30 (US)/lb
U3O8 was used. Estimated mineral reserves are identical at either price. 

8 The key economic parameters underlying the mineral reserves include an exchange rate of $0.91 US=$1.00 Cdn. 
9 Except as otherwise set out in this MD&A, environmental, permitting, legal, title, taxation, socio-political, marketing or other issues are 

not expected to materially affect the above estimates of mineral reserves. 
10 Totals may not add up due to rounding. 

In addition to the above reserves, Cameco has contractually committed supplies, including supplies under 
the HEU Commercial Agreement, of approximately 51 million pounds of uranium from January 1, 2007 
until the end of 2013.
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Uranium Measured and Indicated Resources

CAUTIONARY NOTE TO INVESTORS CONCERNING ESTIMATES OF MEASURED AND INDICATED RESOURCES
This section uses the terms “measured resources” and “indicated resources”. US investors are advised that 
while those terms are recognized and required by Canadian securities regulatory authorities, the US 
Securities and Exchange Commission does not recognize them. Investors are cautioned not to assume that 
any part or all of the mineral deposit in these categories will ever be converted into proven or probable 
reserves.   

The following table shows the estimated uranium measured and indicated resources as at December 31, 
2006 on a property basis and Cameco’s share. 

RESOURCES MEASURED
(100% basis) 

INDICATED 
(100% basis) 

MEASURED AND 
INDICATED 
(100% basis)   

Tonnes 
Grade

% U3O8

Content
(lbs

U3O8) Tonnes 
Grade

% U3O8

Content
(lbs

U3O8) Tonnes
Grade

% U3O8

Content
(lbs

U3O8)

Cameco’s 
Share 

(lbs U3O8)
Mining 
Method 

PROPERTY (tonnes in thousands; pounds in millions)    
     

Cigar Lake -- -- -- 61.2 4.86 6.6 61.2 4.86 6.6 3.3 UG 
Crow Butte 64.5 0.23 0.3 1,475.8 0.25 8.1 1,540.3 0.25 8.4 8.4 ISL 
Dawn Lake -- -- -- 347.0 1.69 12.9 347.0 1.69 12.9 7.4 OP&UG 
Gas Hills – 
Peach 2,013.0 0.08 3.3 1,153.0 0.07 2.3 3,166.0 0.08 5.6 5.6 ISL 
Highland 782.3 0.10 1.7 47.0 0.09 0.1 829.3 0.10 1.8 1.8 ISL 
Inkai -- -- -- 11,042.0 0.06 14.2 11,042.0 0.06 14.2 8.5 ISL 
McArthur
River 75.0 8.51 14.1 39.8 8.37 7.4 114.8 8.49 21.5 15.0 UG 
Millennium -- -- -- 446.0 3.81 37.5 446.0 3.81 37.5 15.7 UG 
North Butte/ 
Brown Ranch 1,008.8 0.08 1.9 3,923.6 0.07 6.3 4,932.4 0.07 8.2 8.2 ISL 
Northwest
Unit -- -- -- 4,000.7 0.03 2.3 4,000.7 0.03 2.3 2.3 ISL 
Rabbit Lake  -- -- -- 180.4 0.54 2.2 180.4 0.54 2.2 2.2 UG 
Reynolds 
Ranch 3,073.5 0.07 4.5 5,245.3 0.06 7.0 8,318.8 0.06 11.5 11.5 ISL 
Ruby Ranch  156.0 0.17 0.6 108.0 0.06 0.1 264.0 0.12 0.7 0.7 ISL 
Ruth 99.8 0.10 0.2 125.2 0.07 0.2 225.0 0.07 0.4 0.4 ISL 
Shirley Basin  89.1 0.15 0.3 1,635.9 0.11 4.1 1,725.0 0.12 4.4 4.4 ISL 
Smith Ranch 30.8 0.20 0.1 2,406.4 0.09 5.0 2,437.2 0.09 5.1 5.1 ISL 
Total 7,392.8 -- 27.0 32,237.3 -- 116.3 39,630.1 -- 143.3 100.5 --

Notes:
1 Cameco reports reserves and resources separately. The amount of reported resources does not include those amounts 

identified as reserves.  
2 Cigar Lake resources are current as at March 16, 2007. 
3 Mining Method: OP – Open Pit; UG – Underground; ISL – In situ leaching. 
4 Resources are estimated using current geological models. Cameco’s normal data verification procedures have been employed 

in connection with the resource estimations for each property, unless otherwise set out in this MD&A. 
5 Totals may not add up due to rounding. 
6 Mineral resources that are not mineral reserves do not have demonstrated economic viability. 
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Uranium Inferred Resources 

CAUTIONARY NOTE TO INVESTORS CONCERNING ESTIMATES OF INFERRED RESOURCES
This section uses the term “inferred resources”. US investors are advised that while this term is recognized 
and required by Canadian securities regulatory authorities, the US Securities and Exchange Commission 
does not recognize it. “Inferred resources” have a great amount of uncertainty as to their existence and great 
amount of uncertainty as to their economic and legal feasibility. It cannot be assumed that all or any part of 
an inferred resource will ever be upgraded to a higher category. Under Canadian securities regulations, 
estimates of inferred resources may not form the basis of feasibility or pre-feasibility studies.  Investors are 
cautioned not to assume that part or all of an inferred resource exists or is economically or legally mineable.  

The following table shows the estimated uranium inferred resources as at December 31, 2006 on a property 
basis and Cameco’s share. 

INFERRED RESOURCES 
(100% basis)  

Tonnes 
Grade

% U3O8

Content
(lbs U3O8)

Cameco’s 
Share 

(lbs U3O8)
Mining 
Method 

PROPERTY (tonnes in thousands; pounds in millions)   

Cigar Lake 317.0 16.92 118.2 59.1 UG 
Crow Butte 2,802.1 0.16 10.1 10.1 ISL 
Dawn Lake -- -- -- -- -- 
Gas Hills-Peach 656.8 0.05 0.8 0.8 ISL 
Highland 587.6 0.15 2.0 2.0 ISL 
Inkai 253,918.0 0.05 268.0 160.8 ISL 
McArthur River  584.6 7.35 94.8 66.2 UG 
Millennium 217.0 2.03 9.7 4.1 UG 
North Butte/ 
Brown Ranch 618.5 0.07 1.0 1.0 ISL 
Northwest Unit  627.8 0.04 0.5                0.5 ISL 
Rabbit Lake 312.2 0.59 4.0 4.0 UG 
Reynolds Ranch 5,333.3 0.04 4.9 4.9 ISL 
Ruby Ranch 60.8 0.14 0.2 0.2 ISL 
Ruth 210.5 0.08 0.4 0.4 ISL 
Shirley Basin  506.8 0.10 1.1 1.1 ISL 
Smith Ranch   595.7 0.07 0.9 0.9 ISL
Total 267,348.7 -- 516.6 316.1 --

Notes:
1 Cameco reports reserves and resources separately. The amount of reported 

resources does not include those amounts identified as reserves. 
2 Cigar Lake inferred resources are current as at March 16, 2007. 
3 Mining Method: OP – Open Pit; UG – Underground; ISL – In situ leaching. 
4 Resources are estimated using current geological models.  Cameco’s normal 

data verification procedures have been employed in connection with the 
resource estimations for each property, unless otherwise set out in this MD&A. 

5 Totals may not add up due to rounding. 
6 Mineral resources that are not mineral reserves do not have demonstrated 

economic viability. 
7 Inferred resources have a great amount of uncertainty as to their existence and 

as to whether they can be mined legally or economically. It cannot be assumed 
that all or any part of the inferred resources will ever be upgraded to a higher 
category.
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Uranium Reserves Reconciliation

The following reconciliation of Cameco’s share of uranium reserves reflects the changes in reserves during 
2006. The 2006 additions and deletions result from additional information provided by mining and milling, 
analysis of drilling results, change in mining plans, re-estimation and reclassification.

There were only modest changes in reserves in 2006 as outlined in the table below. The more noteworthy of 
these changes are:

• At McArthur River, 19 million pounds were upgraded from probable reserves to proven reserves 
following a review of the mining plan for a portion of zone 2.

• At Rabbit Lake, 13.5 million pounds of reserves were added as a result of underground drilling and 
increased confidence in the geological interpretation.

• At Cigar Lake, 2.6 million pounds of probable reserves were converted to indicated resources 
following a revision of the cut-off grade. 
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Reconciliation of Cameco’s Share of Uranium Reserves 
(in thousands of pounds U3O8)

 December 31, 2005 
2006

Throughput 1
2006

Addition (Deletion) 2 December 31, 2006 
Reserves - Proven      
Cigar Lake 113,222 0 -  113,222 
Crow Butte 6,815 (897) 597  6,515 
Highland 1,807 (1,169) 144  782 
Inkai 21,211 0 -  21,211 
Key Lake 590 0 -  590 
McArthur River 136,323 (12,799) 19,226  142,750 
Rabbit Lake 3,127 (1,405) (711)  1,011 
Smith Ranch     2,845   (1,390)          3      1,458
Total Proven Reserves 285,940 (17,660) 19,259  287,539
      
Reserves – Probable  
Cigar Lake 2,625 0 (2,625)  0 
Crow Butte 1,013 0 (1,013)  0 
Gas Hills – Peach 19,684 0 -  19,684 
Highland 2,663 0 -  2,663 
Inkai 47,412 0 -  47,412 
McArthur River 135,258 0 (21,816)  113,442 
North Butte/Brown Ranch 8,524 0 -  8,524 
Rabbit Lake 7,863 (4,000) 14,241  18,104 
Ruby Ranch 5,462 0 -  5,462 
Ruth  1,689 0 -  1,689 
Smith Ranch    8,317           0          -      8,317
Total Probable Reserves 240,510   (4,000) (11,213)  225,297

     
Total Reserves 526,450 (21,660) 8,046  512,836
Notes:
1 Corresponds to millfeed.  The discrepancy between the 2006 mill feed and Cameco’s share of 2006 pounds U3O8 produced

is due to mill recovery, mill inventory and the processing of low-grade material. 
2 Changes in reserves or resources, as applicable, include reassessment of geological data, results of information provided 

by mining and milling, and subsequent re-classification of reserves or resources, as applicable.  

Uranium Resources Reconciliation

The following reconciliation of Cameco’s share of uranium resources reflects the changes in resources 
during 2006. The 2006 additions and deletions result from additional information provided by mining and 
milling, analysis of drilling results, property acquisitions, change in mining plans, re-estimation and 
reclassification.

There were only modest changes in resources in 2006 as outlined in the table below. The more noteworthy 
of these changes are: 

• At McArthur River, measured resources increased by 3.4 million pounds due to reclassification. 
• At Rabbit Lake, 5.3 million pounds of resources were converted to reserves.  
• At Millennium, resources decreased as a result of additional drilling. 
• At Cigar Lake, the increase in resources is due to a change in the cut-off. 
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Reconciliation of Cameco’s Share of Uranium Resources 
(in thousands of pounds U3O8)

 December 31, 2005 
Addition (Deletion)1

2006 December 31, 2006 
Resources – Measured    
Crow Butte 0 322  322 
Gas Hills – Peach 3,346 -  3,346 
Highland 1,663 -  1,663 
McArthur River 6,427 3,400  9,827 
Millenium 0 -  0 
North Butte/Brown Ranch  1,857 -  1,857 
Reynolds Ranch 4,493 -  4,493 
Ruby Ranch 585 -  585 
Ruth 216 -  216 
Shirley Basin 304 -  304 
Smith Ranch 138 -  138
Total Measured Resources 19,029 3,722  22,751
     
Resources-Indicated 
Cigar Lake 0 3,282  3,282 
Crow Butte 8,100 -  8,100 
Dawn Lake 7,436 -  7,436 
Gas Hills – Peach 2,310 -  2,310 
Highland 92 -  92 
Inkai 8,521 (5)  8,516 
McArthur River 5,136 -  5,136 
Millennium 19,220 (3,483)  15,737 
North Butte/Brown Ranch  6,303 -  6,303 
Northwest Unit 2,341 -  2,341 
Rabbit Lake 7,486 (5,322)  2,164 
Reynolds Ranch 6,960 -  6,960 
Ruby Ranch 143 -  143 
Ruth 192 -  192 
Shirley Basin 4,085 -  4,085 
Smith Ranch 4,984 -  4,984
Total Indicated Resources 83,309 (5,528)  77,781

    
Total Measured & Indicated 
Resources 

102,338 (1,806)  100,532

1 Changes in reserves or resources, as applicable, include reassessment of geological data, results of 
information provided by mining and milling, and subsequent re-classification of reserves or 
resources, as applicable. 
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Reconciliation of Cameco’s Share of Uranium Resources 
(in thousands of pounds U3O8) (Continued) 

 December 31, 2005 
2006

Addition (Deletion) 1 December 31, 2006 
Resources – Inferred     
Cigar Lake 59,105 -  59,105 
Crow Butte 10,083 -  10,083 
Gas Hills – Peach 845 -  845 
Highland 1,977 -  1,977 
Inkai 160,793 -  160,793 
McArthur River 66,151 -  66,151 
Millennium 4,700 (629)  4,071 
North Butte/Brown Ranch 966 -  966 
Northwest Unit 508 -  508 
Rabbit Lake 3,701 332  4,033 
Reynolds Ranch 4,912 -  4,912 
Ruby Ranch 184 -  184 
Ruth 365 -  365 
Shirley Basin 1,132 -  1,132 
Smith Ranch        896     -         896
Total Inferred Resources 316,318 (297)  316,021

1 Changes in reserves or resources, as applicable, include reassessment of geological data, results of 
information provided by mining and milling, and subsequent re-classification of reserves or 
resources, as applicable. 
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QUALIFIED PERSONS
The disclosure in this MD&A of scientific and technical information regarding Cameco’s uranium 
properties, including reserve and resource estimates and the description of the geology, was prepared and 
verified by or under the supervision of the following individuals, who are qualified persons for the purposes 
of National Instrument 43-101:

Qualified Persons Properties 

Doug Beattie, Chief Mine Engineer, Engineering and Projects, Cameco 
Chuck Edwards, Director, Engineering and Projects, Cameco 
Alain G. Mainville, Director, Mineral Resources Management, Cameco 

Dawn Lake 
Key Lake 
Millennium 
Rabbit Lake 

Cameron Chapman, Technical Superintendent, McArthur River, Cameco 
Chuck Edwards, Director, Engineering and Projects, Cameco 
Alain G. Mainville, Director, Mineral Resources Management, Cameco  
Gary Haywood, General Manager, McArthur River, Cameco 

McArthur River 

Doug McIlveen, Cigar Lake Chief Geologist, Cameco 
Barry Schmitke, Cigar Lake General Manager, Cameco 
Alain G. Mainville, Director, Mineral Resources Management, Cameco 
Chuck Edwards, Director, Engineering and Projects, Cameco 

Cigar Lake 

Dave Crawford, Manager, Project Development, PRI 
Chuck Foldenauer, Smith-Ranch Highland Mine Manager, PRI 
Steve Lundsford, Sr. Evaluation Geologist, PRI 

Crow Butte 
Gas Hills – Peach 
North Butte/Brown Ranch 
Northwest Unit 
Reynolds Ranch 
Ruby Ranch 
Ruth
Shirley Basin 
Smith Ranch-Highland 

Dave Crawford, Manager, Project Development, PRI 
Steve Magnuson, VP, Engineering & Development, PRI 
Alain G. Mainville, Director, Mineral Resources Management, Cameco 

Inkai

The qualified persons as a group, beneficially own, directly or indirectly, less than 1% of the issued and 
outstanding common shares of Cameco. 

RISKS AND RISK MANAGEMENT 

Cameco attempts to mitigate risks that may affect its future performance through a systematic process of 
identifying, assessing, reporting and managing risks of corporate significance.

Management and the board, both separately and together, discuss the principal risks of our businesses, 
particularly during the strategic planning and budgeting processes. The board sets policies for the 
implementation of systems to manage and monitor identifiable risks. The nominating, corporate governance 
and risk committee is responsible for the oversight of risk management. Management has developed and 
implemented an enterprise risk management system that reports quarterly to this committee and annually to 
the board. This enhances the directors’ understanding of the principal business risks facing Cameco and 
improves the company’s risk management systems. The reserves oversight committee oversees the 
estimation of our reserves and the risks inherent in this estimation. In addition, the audit committee monitors 

68



certain financial risks and the safety, health and environment committee reviews systems and performance 
related to safety, health and environmental risk. 

The following discusses our approach to managing our most significant risks that may affect our future 
performance. Also, see the discussion of the company’s risk factors contained in Cameco’s annual 
information form and that are likely to influence investors’ decisions to purchase or sell our securities. The 
annual information form is filed on SEDAR at sedar.com and available on the company’s website at 
cameco.com. 

Business Risks 

REGULATORY APPROVAL AND EXPEDIENCY
Regulators must approve the construction, startup, continued operation, including any significant changes, 
and decommissioning of most of Cameco’s facilities. These facilities are subject to numerous laws and 
regulations regarding safety and environmental matters, including the management of hazardous wastes and 
materials.  

Significant economic value is dependent on our ability to obtain and renew the licences and other approvals 
necessary to operate. Failure to obtain regulatory approvals or failure to obtain them in a timely manner 
would result in project delays or modifications, leading to higher costs. In the extreme, a project may be 
suspended or terminated, which would negatively impact future earnings and cash flow. For example, 
periodically we are required to apply for licence renewals or seek amendments to existing licences for many 
of our uranium and fuel services operations and a failure to obtain these would have a significant impact on 
our operations. 

McArthur River/Key Lake 
In November 2004, we submitted an EA for an increase in the annual licensed capacity at McArthur River 
and Key Lake to 22 million pounds U3O8 per year from 18.7 million pounds. Currently, the CNSC is 
considering the appropriate process to complete its review of the potential impacts associated with this 
proposed expansion. Specifically, the CNSC is considering the significance of the local impact of the 
accumulation of trace elements in the effluent. Cameco has developed a three phase action plan that 
modifies the effluent treatment process to reduce concentrations of selenium and molybdenum discharged to 
the environment. At a commission level hearing in January 2007, the CNSC subsequently considered a 
proposed licence condition for the Key Lake mill to implement this plan and we expect their decision 
shortly. The first phase of the plan will be in place later in 2007. 

Reducing the current level of these metals discharged to the environment is expected to help advance the 
EA to increase the annual licensed production limit at the McArthur River mine and Key Lake mill.  

In addition to obtaining approval for the EA, we need to transition to new mining zones at McArthur River 
and to implement various mill process modifications at Key Lake in order to sustain increased production 
levels. Mine planning, development and freeze hole drilling for the McArthur River transition is ongoing. A 
revitalization pre-feasibility assessment for the Key Lake mill was initiated in October 2006. Revitalization 
of Key Lake will include upgrading circuits to new technology for simplified operation and increased 
production capacity.

If EA approval is received and we successfully make the transition to new mining areas as well as advance 
our mill revitalization program, we expect it will take about two years to ramp up production to a sustained 
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planned production rate of approximately 21 million pounds per year. This production rate may change as 
we gain experience in ramping up production at this operation. Our share of the planned annual production 
increase of 2.3 million pounds U3O8 is 1.6 million pounds. The financial impact of not receiving the licence 
is the loss of potential sales revenue and earnings.

In 2006, we applied for licence renewals for all three fuel services facilities. Each of the existing five-year 
licences expires in early 2007. New five-year licences for all three sites were received on February 26, 2006.  

Key Lake/Rabbit Lake Tailings Management Facilities 
At the Key Lake mill, tailings are deposited in the Deilmann tailings management facility (TMF). Currently 
approved capacity of the Deilmann TMF is sufficient to operate at current production rates for 
approximately 10 years, assuming only minor storage capacity losses due to sloughing from the pit walls. 

Cameco has initiated the necessary work to achieve regulatory approval for a final higher tailings elevation 
that will be sufficient to hold all tailings generated from processing of McArthur River reserves. This higher 
final tailings elevation was incorporated conceptually in the EA process which granted approval to develop 
the McArthur River mine, but the detailed technical analysis to support formal regulatory acceptance of the 
expansion has not yet been completed. 

At Rabbit Lake, the existing approved tailings capacity at the Rabbit Lake TMF is sufficient to store tailings 
from the processing of Eagle Point ore until the end of 2010. Approval for a higher tailings elevation would 
be required to continue milling beyond that time.  

Cigar Lake ore will be processed at Areva’s McClean Lake mill into a uranium solution. Under the Rabbit 
Lake Toll Milling agreement, about 57% of the uranium solution will be shipped to the Rabbit Lake mill 
and further processed into U3O8. This process will generate tailings at Rabbit Lake. Although there was 
sufficient capacity for Cigar Lake tailings in the Rabbit Lake TMF when the Rabbit Lake toll-milling 
agreement was originally signed, unanticipated ongoing production from the Eagle Point mine has 
consumed some of the existing tailings capacity planned for Cigar Lake tailings. Cameco has determined 
that the Rabbit Lake TMF will require expansion and is working with the regulators to determine what 
regulatory approvals are required.

Failure to receive regulatory approval for TMF expansion at Key Lake and Rabbit Lake could constrain 
uranium production. The financial impact is the loss of uranium sales revenue and earnings. 

Zircatec
Zircatec has signed an agreement covering all of the fuel manufacturing requirements for the Bruce B and A 
reactors until the initial term of the lease expires in 2018. Under the arrangement, Zircatec will manufacture 
UO2 provided by Cameco into finished nuclear fuel bundles for the Bruce A and B units. 

Bruce Power A Limited Partnership (BALP) is also pursuing the use of SEU as part of its refurbishment 
project for the two Bruce A units. Cameco is working with BALP, Zircatec and others in SEU development. 
Cameco expects BALP’s use of SEU will not significantly reduce natural UO2 conversion services sold to 
BALP.

We are planning to modify Zircatec’s Port Hope plant to produce fuel bundles containing SEU, subject to 
reaching agreement with BALP. Zircatec has commenced the process to obtain regulatory approval from the 
CNSC to produce these fuel bundles. The CNSC carried out a new review of the licence application under 
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the Canadian Environmental Assessment Agency (CEAA) and concluded, contrary to a past decision, that a 
new screening level EA was required to support the licence amendment. The licence renewal hearings are 
proceeding on the basis of a renewal of the existing licence. We expect to apply for an amendment to the 
licence once the EA has been approved. The draft scope of the EA has been issued for public comment. This 
will be followed by the formal issuing of the scope and completion of the EA. The schedule for this process 
will be determined by the CNSC. 

Blind River Refinery 
At our refinery in Blind River, Ontario, we received CNSC approval of the EA for the addition of pollution 
abatement equipment to the incinerator in mid December 2006. This equipment is required to meet new 
Canadian standards for incinerator emissions that came into force in January 2007. The installation of the 
equipment has begun. The Blind River refinery needs an amendment to its operating licence in order to use 
this new equipment, which is subject to CNSC approval. We anticipate that the incinerator will be ready to 
commission late in the first quarter of 2007 and start receipt of material in the second quarter. 

To support our agreement with SFL, we have also applied to expand the capacity of the Blind River refinery 
from 18 to 24 million kgU per year. The draft EA study report for the proposed increase in the Blind River 
licensed production was filed with the CNSC for review. If we do not receive approval for the licence 
capacity expansion at Blind River, it would result in reduced production either at our Port Hope conversion 
facility or the SFL facility. The combined production from the two facilities would be limited to between 15 
million and 16 million kgU. 

Cigar Lake
Cameco will be making the appropriate application for relicensing as the current Cigar Lake licence expires 
at the end of 2007.

Inkai
At the Inkai project, there are two production areas currently in development (blocks 1 and 2). In 2005, the 
regulatory authorities approved the EA and design plan for a commercial processing facility in block 1 and 
we began construction. In 2007, we expect to complete and begin commissioning the commercial facility, 
subject to regulatory approvals. We expect commercial production in 2008. Assuming that resources are 
converted to reserves this year, we would apply for a mining licence in 2007 for block 2. Commercial 
development of block 2 could start in 2008. Production from block 1 and 2 is expected to total 5.2 million 
pounds U3O8 by 2010. If these approvals are not received in a timely fashion, we could face a delay in 
commencing operations, which would result in the loss of sales and revenue. Cameco’s share of production 
from Inkai, at full production, is expected to be 3.1 million pounds annually. Through its experience in 
constructing and operating the test mine, Cameco is familiar with the statutory, regulatory and procedural 
framework governing new mining projects in Kazakhstan and based upon its experience to date, Cameco 
believes that all permits and approvals required for operation of the new ISL mine will be obtained in a 
timely fashion. 

Other
Cameco expends significant financial and managerial resources to comply with laws and regulations. A 
standards and policy department was established in 2005 to enhance the integration of the safety, health and 
environmental management systems. During 2005, we adopted a new safety, health and environment policy 
which moves us beyond compliance to a leadership role.  
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ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS
Environmental regulation affects nearly all aspects of Cameco’s operations, imposing very strict standards 
and controls. Regulation is becoming more stringent in Canada and the US. For example, changes to our 
operational processes are increasingly subject to regulatory approval, which may in turn result in delays due 
to the longer and more complex regulatory review and approval processes. These increasing requirements 
are expected to result in higher administration costs and capital expenditures for compliance. 

Changes to environmental regulation could impose further requirements on companies involved in the 
nuclear fuel cycle. Such changes could include more stringent regulation on emissions and water quality 
standards, and on property decommissioning and reclamation. These changes could affect Cameco’s 
operational costs, or future decommissioning costs, or lower production levels, negatively impacting future 
earnings and cash flow. 

One example of a regulatory change that impacted our costs was the requirement to reduce the 
concentrations of molybdenum and selenium in the effluent released from Cameco’s Northern 
Saskatchewan operations. Currently, the CNSC has focused on an evaluation of the longer-term 
environmental impact in downstream receiving environments. For example, at the Key Lake mill, Cameco 
has proposed an action plan to further reduce selenium and molybdenum discharges in the mill effluent. In 
December 2006, we finalized this action plan in consultation with the CNSC. At a public hearing in January 
2007, the CNSC considered a proposed licence condition for the Key Lake mill to implement this plan. We 
expect a CNSC decision later in the first quarter of 2007 and the first phase of the plan to be in place later in 
2007. The cost of implementing this action plan is being estimated and will be disclosed when finalized. We 
have initiated plans to decrease these elements at our other Northern Saskatchewan operations. 

Cameco seeks to reduce its environmental impacts as one way to mitigate risks from changes in 
environmental regulations. For example, at the Port Hope conversion facility, emissions of fluoride from the 
UF6 plant stack were reduced by about 60% from 2002 to 2006. This reduction was achieved through the 
installation of new equipment and changes to operating procedures. 

The historical trend toward stricter environmental regulation is likely to continue. Cameco is investing more 
capital to improve technical processes in order to lessen our environmental impact.  

Going forward, since regulatory requirements change frequently and are subject to changing interpretations 
and may be enforced in varying degrees in practice, we are unable to predict the ultimate cost of compliance 
with these requirements or their effect on operations. 

LIMITED NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS
The nuclear industry is highly consolidated. As a result, Cameco relies on a relatively small number of 
customers that purchase a significant portion of the company’s uranium concentrates and conversion 
services. BPLP also relies on a number of major customers for its sales and Zircatec has a significant 
portion of its sales committed to BPLP and Bruce A Limited Partnership. The loss of any of these large 
customers, or the reduction in product purchases by these customers, could have a material adverse effect on 
Cameco’s financial condition, liquidity and results of operations. 
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Uranium and Conversion Services 
For the period 2007 through 2009, our five largest customers are anticipated to account for about 45% of 
our contracted supply of U3O8. For the period 2007 through 2009, our five largest UF6 conversion customers 
are anticipated to account for approximately 35% of our contracted supply of UF6 conversion services. 
Cameco is currently the only commercial supplier of UO2 for use in Canadian Candu heavy water reactors 
with sales to its largest customer, Ontario Power Generation Inc., accounting for approximately 37% of the 
company’s UO2 sales in 2006. For 2006, one customer of Cameco’s uranium and conversion services 
amounted to $64 million or 7% of our combined revenue from those businesses. 

We have worked hard to build long-term, trusting relationships with our customers. In addition, Cameco 
continues to implement a strategy that focuses on achieving longer contract terms. Today, new contracts 
tend to reflect delivery terms up to 10 years or more. Taking our legacy contracts into account, our current 
contract portfolio for uranium and conversion services has contract terms averaging about six years. 
Cameco has never had a customer default while it was under contract to purchase uranium or conversion 
services.

While there are a small number of buyers for uranium and conversion services, there are also a small 
number of suppliers. As such, customers have limited opportunity to exclude major producers from their 
contracting activities.  

In 2006, we estimate world production was 103 million pounds U3O8. Seven producers including Cameco 
provided 80% of this production. Cameco accounted for about 20% of world production in 2006. World 
production for 2005 totalled 108 million pounds. The 5% decrease in production in 2006 from 2005 was due 
largely to a variety of operating difficulties experienced at a few large production centres. 

There are four significant producers of UF6 conversion services in the western world. Cameco manages 
almost 40% of the production capacity.  

Zircatec
Sales to BPLP and BALP represent a significant portion of Zircatec’s sales. There are two suppliers of 
Candu fuel bundles and Cameco owns one of them. The capacity of the two producers currently exceeds 
demand, but neither producer alone can supply all of the demand.  

Bruce Power (BPLP)
BPLP also relies on some major customers for its electricity sales. During 2005, electricity revenue from 
one customer of BPLP represented about 16% of BPLP’s total revenue. 

In Ontario, during periods of peak demand there is a shortage of electrical generation capacity and BPLP is 
well positioned as a baseload supplier and has the capacity to supply about 15% of Ontario’s electricity.

RESERVE ESTIMATES

Our uranium reserves are the foundation of the company and fundamental to our success. Uranium reserves 
and resources are estimated on a number of variables and assumptions, including geological interpretation, 
commodity prices and operating and capital costs. If our reserves or resource estimates are inaccurate or 
reduced in the future, it could have an adverse impact on our future cash flows and earnings. For example, if 
there are fewer reserves at any site, our future earnings would decrease from reduced sales and higher 
depreciation costs. Depreciation of mine assets is generally calculated over the mine life. A decrease in 
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actual reserves could decrease the mine life, which would result in increased depreciation expenses over the 
same period of time. 

The mine life at McArthur River is not at risk as it has about 20 years of reserves at the current production 
level. At Rabbit Lake, the current reserves will sustain mill production until 2011. We are seeking to extend 
the mine life at both operations by conducting exploration drilling near the mine and have been successful in 
the past.

Cameco estimates production startup in 2010, ramping up to the company’s share of full production of 
about 9 million pounds U3O8 in just over two years. As of March 16, 2007, Cameco’s share of proven 
reserves at Cigar Lake was 113.2 million pounds. At a mill recovery rate of 98.5%, Cameco anticipates that 
its share of proven reserves will produce 111.5 million recoverable pounds of U3O8 over 14.8 years of 
production. Cigar Lake will produce less than Cameco’s share of full production of 9 million pounds in the 
early and late years resulting in an average total recovery of 7.5 million pounds annually over the reserve 
life.  

Inkai is expected to start commercial production in 2008. We expect Inkai to ramp up to full production of 
5.2 million pounds U3O8 per year by 2010. At the end of 2006, Inkai had 114 million pounds of proven and 
probable reserves. Cameco’s share of production and reserves is 60%.

At Centerra’s Kumtor gold mine, the existing reserves of the Kumtor mine, Sarytor Deposit and the 
Southwest Zone should support gold production activities in excess of seven years. Mill and heap leach 
production from Boroo over the next seven years is expected to include ore from the Boroo and Gatsuurt 
deposits. The combined Boroo and Gatsuurt reserves represent seven years of total operation.

Reserve estimates are based on our knowledge, mining experience and analysis of drilling results. We 
estimate reserves and disclose them in a manner that conforms to industry practices and applicable 
regulations including National Instrument 43-101.  

While we believe the reserve and resource estimates included are well established and reflect management’s 
best estimates, by their nature reserve and resource estimates are imprecise and depend upon, among other 
things, to a certain extent, geological and statistical inferences which may ultimately prove inaccurate.  

The technical and scientific information discussed under this section, “Reserves Estimates”, was prepared 
and verified by or under the supervision of the following individuals, who are qualified persons for the 
purposes of National Instrument 43-101: 

• Kumtor and Boroo 
o Ian Atkinson, a certified professional geologist, and employed by Centerra as VP, 

Exploration.
• McArthur River: 

o Cameron Chapman, Technical Superintendent, McArthur River, Cameco,  
o Chuck Edwards, Director, Engineering and Projects, Cameco,  
o Alain G. Mainville, Director, Mineral Resources Management, and 
o Cameco Gary Haywood, Mine Manager, McArthur River, Cameco. 
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• Cigar Lake: 
o Doug McIlveen, Cigar Lake Chief Geologist, Cameco, 
o Barry Schmitke, Cigar Lake General Manager, Cameco, 
o Alain G. Mainville, Director, Mineral Resources Management, Cameco, and 
o Chuck Edwards, Director, Engineering and Projects, Cameco. 

LABOUR RELATIONS
Cameco has unionized employees at its McArthur River mine, Key Lake mill and Port Hope conversion and 
fuel manufacturing facilities. In November 2006, unionized employees at the McArthur River and Key Lake 
operations ratified a new four-year agreement that Cameco and the United Steelworkers of America (USW) 
had negotiated. The new collective agreement will expire December 31, 2009. The collective agreements 
covering the unionized employees at Zircatec and the Port Hope conversion facility expire on June 1, 2007 
and June 30, 2007 respectively. 

BPLP has 3,700 employees and most of them are unionized. The Power Workers’ Union’s, representing 
2,500 employees, have signed a three year collective agreement. The agreement extends until December 31, 
2009. The Society of Energy Professionals’ collective agreement, which began January 1, 2005, expires 
December 31, 2009. Under the 2005 restructuring agreements, all employees remain with BPLP and all 
employee costs are apportioned between BPLP and BALP. 

The Kumtor mine is unionized and all of Centerra’s national employees in the Kyrgyz Republic are subject 
to a collective agreement between the Kumtor Operating Company (KOC) and the Trade Union Committee 
(TUC). Throughout 2006, Centerra and the TUC were in negotiations to extend the collective agreement. A 
new collective agreement was agreed to for a two-year period ending December 31, 2008. Despite a 5-day 
work stoppage, relationships between Centerra, the TUC and the workforce are positive. The primary issue 
during the negotiations was Centerra’s compliance with a Parliamentary Decree that significantly increased 
wage rates for site based employees. Centerra believes that the Investment Agreement with The Kyrgyz 
Republic exempts Kumtor from the Decree. In the interests of maintaining good operations and 
relationships with the workforce, Centerra is complying with the Decree under protest and has submitted the 
issue to International Arbitration for resolution and recovery of the additional costs. 

We cannot predict at this time whether we will be able to reach new collective agreements with our 
unionized employees without a work stoppage. Any lengthy work disruptions could affect our earnings 
adversely.

COUNTERPARTY RISK
In addition, Cameco’s sales of uranium product, conversion and fuel manufacturing services expose the 
company to the risk of non-payment. We manage this risk by monitoring the credit worthiness of its 
customers and seeking pre-payment or other forms of payment security from customers with an 
unacceptable level of credit risk. As of December 31, 2006, about 6% of Cameco’s forecast revenue under 
contract, for the period 2007 to 2009, is with customers whose creditworthiness does not meet Cameco’s 
standards for unsecured payment terms. As well, Cameco’s purchase of uranium product and conversion 
services, such as under the HEU Commercial Agreement and Springfields toll-conversion agreement, 
exposes the company to the risk of the supplier’s failure to fulfill its delivery commitment. 
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Market Risks 

PRODUCT PRICES
As a significant producer and supplier of uranium, nuclear fuel processing, gold and electricity, Cameco 
bears significant exposure to changes in prices for these products. A substantial downturn in prices will 
negatively affect the company’s net earnings and operating cash flows. Prices for our products are volatile 
and are influenced by numerous factors beyond the company’s control, such as supply and demand 
fundamentals, geopolitical events and, in the case of electricity prices, weather.

Uranium
Uranium spot prices have mostly been in a downturn since the company was formed in 1988. Beginning 
mid-2003, the uranium price increased rapidly, primarily as a result of market participants recognizing that 
secondary supplies would contribute less to future supply than anticipated. The following graph shows the 
month-end uranium spot prices since 1988 in current (i.e. non-inflation adjusted) dollars. 

Historically, deliveries under new contracts typically did not begin for one to three years after the contract 
was signed. As a result, many of the contracts in our current portfolio reflect market conditions when 
uranium prices were significantly lower. Cameco’s current contract portfolio has limited sensitivity to 
further increases in the spot price over the next three years. For information on Cameco’s sensitivity to spot 
prices in 2007, see “Uranium Price Sensitivity 2007” in this MD&A. 

Our contracting objective is to secure a solid base of earnings and cash flow to allow us to maintain our core 
asset base and pursue growth opportunities over the long-term. Our contracting strategy focuses on reducing 
the volatility in our future earnings and cash flow, while providing both protection against decreases in 
market price and retaining exposure to future market price increases. This is a balanced approach, which we 
believe delivers the best value to our shareholders over the long-term. 

Our current portfolio reflects a 60/40 mix of market-related and fixed pricing (escalated by inflation) 
mechanisms. Currently, our contracting is more focused on market-related pricing. Consequently, we expect 
this ratio to change over time.  
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The overall strategy will continue to focus on achieving longer contract terms of up to 10 years or more, 
floor prices that provide downside protection, and retaining an adequate level of upside potential. In general, 
most new offers include price mechanisms with an 80% market-related and 20% fixed component. The 
fixed-price component generally is equal to or higher than the industry long-term price indicator at the time 
of offer and is adjusted by inflation. The market-related component will include a floor price (escalated by 
inflation).  

For more information on uranium contracting, see “Uranium Strategies” in this MD&A. 

Conversion Services
The majority of our conversion sales are at fixed prices with inflation escalators. In the short term, 
Cameco’s financial results are relatively insensitive to changes in the spot price for conversion. The newer 
fixed-price contracts generally reflect longer-term prices at the time of contract award. Therefore, in the 
coming years, our contract portfolio will be positively impacted by higher fixed-price contracts. 

Bruce Power 
Similarly, BPLP reduces price volatility by committing sales under fixed price contracts. BPLP has 7 TWh 
sold under fixed-price contracts for 2007. This would represent about 25% of Bruce B’s generation at its 
planned capacity factor. A $1.00 per MWh change in the spot price for electricity in Ontario would change 
Cameco’s after-tax earnings from BPLP by about $4 million.  

In addition, the BPLP restructuring agreement provides for a floor price of $45.00 per MWh (escalated by 
inflation) for the electricity sold into the spot market. The floor price extends to 2019. The floor price has a 
true-up mechanism, which is settled on a monthly basis with a contingent support payment. The aggregate 
of contingent support payments is tracked, so that if in the following year(s), the market price exceeds the 
floor price, BPLP would have to pay back the difference between the market and floor price, up to a value 
not exceeding the current contingent support payment balance. If a repayment is made, this amount is then 
subtracted from the contingent support payment balance. 

Gold
Centerra is totally exposed to the fluctuations in the spot market for gold. Centerra currently plans to leave 
its gold production unhedged due to the strong industry fundamentals which it expects to continue to put 
upward pressure on price. 

The average spot price for gold increased to $602 (US) per ounce in 2006 compared to $444 (US) per ounce 
in 2005. For 2007, a $25.00 (US) per ounce change in the gold spot price would change Cameco revenue by 
about $21 million (Cdn), cash flow by about $15 million (Cdn) and net earnings by about $8 million (Cdn). 

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK
Cameco sells most of its uranium and conversion services in US dollars while most of its uranium and 
conversion services are produced in Canada. As such, these revenues are denominated mostly in US dollars, 
while production costs are denominated primarily in Canadian dollars. As a result, Cameco’s earnings are 
negatively affected by a strengthening Canadian dollar. At December 31, 2006 the Canadian/US dollar 
exchange rate was $1.17, unchanged from December 31, 2005. Over the course of the year, the exchange 
rate averaged $1.13 compared to an average rate of $1.21 in 2005. 

We attempt to provide some protection against exchange rate fluctuations by planned hedging activity 
designed to smooth volatility. Hedging activities partly shelter our uranium and fuel services revenues 
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against declines in the US dollar in the shorter term. Cameco also has a natural hedge against US currency 
fluctuations as a portion of its annual cash outlays, including purchases of uranium and fuel services, is 
denominated in US dollars. The influence on earnings from purchased material in inventory is likely to be 
dispersed over several fiscal periods and is more difficult to identify. 
For more information on our foreign currency hedging program, see the “Foreign Exchange” section under 
“Uranium Business” in this MD&A. 

Our foreign currency hedging program in 2006 provided an incremental $53 million in Canadian dollar 
revenue. After deducting carrying charges and income taxes, this resulted in an additional $36 million of net 
earnings.

For 2007, every one-cent increase/decrease in the US to Canadian dollar exchange rate would result in a 
corresponding increase/decrease in net earnings of about $6 million (Cdn).  

Political Risks 

POLITICAL INSTABILITY RISK
Cameco’s Inkai project is located in the Republic of Kazakhstan. All of Centerra’s current gold production 
and reserves are derived from assets located in the Kyrgyz Republic and Mongolia. All three countries are 
developing countries that have experienced political and economic difficulties in recent years. Cameco’s 
operations and assets are subject to potential risks from actions by governmental authorities or internal 
unrest.

Losses due to political instability could have an adverse impact on Cameco’s future cash flows, earnings, 
results of operations and financial condition. The company has made an assessment of the political risk 
associated with each of its foreign investments and has purchased political risk insurance to partially 
mitigate losses.  

In analyzing political risk in the Kyrgyz Republic, Mongolia and the Republic of Kazakhstan, we have made 
reference to the Index of Economic Freedom. The Heritage Foundation, a US research and educational 
institute in partnership with the Wall Street Journal, publish the Index of Economic Freedom. The report is 
an in-depth analysis of 50 independent variables that contribute most directly to economic freedom and 
prosperity. The index measures factors such as corruption, trade barriers, fiscal burden of governments, rule 
of law and health, safety, environment and labour regulations in 161 countries. Cameco believes this 
analysis helps to quantify political risk in developing countries. 

Kyrgyz Republic 
The 2007 Index of Economic Freedom categorizes the Kyrgyz Republic as “Mostly Unfree,” with a rank of 
79 out of 161 surveyed countries. Its overall score is three percentage points lower than last year, partially 
reflecting new quantitative methods used in the report. The Kyrgyz Republic is ranked 12th out of 30 
countries in the Asia–Pacific region, and its overall score is equal to the regional average. The Kyrgyz 
Republic has opened most of its economy to foreign investment and has adopted guarantees, consistent with 
international standards, against expropriation or nationalization. 

To mitigate risk, when Cameco restructured its gold assets into Centerra, Kyrgyzaltyn, a Kyrgyz joint stock 
company whose shares are 100% owned by the government of the Kyrgyz Republic, agreed to retain an 
ownership interest and, today, owns about 16% of Centerra. The president of Kyrgyzaltyn is currently a 
member of Centerra’s board of directors. The agreement, at the time the Kumtor restructuring closed, also 
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provides that, until June 22, 2009, Kyrgyzaltyn will maintain ownership of at least 5% of the outstanding 
common shares, as long as the Kyrgyz government continues to control Kyrgyzaltyn. 

In 2005, the Kyrgyz Republic went through a major change in its political life. On February 28, 2005, the 
105 member two-chamber parliament ceased to exist and was replaced by a one-chamber parliament with 
75 seats. The new one-chamber parliament has broader constitutional powers, with certain powers being 
transferred to it by the president. These changes were made pursuant to constitutional referendums which 
were conducted in 2003.

The political situation in the Kyrgyz Republic continues to evolve. The Kyrgyz President has gained 
substantial constitutional powers through constitutional amendments introduced at the end of 2006. The 
government resigned on December 19, 2006. A new prime minister was appointed on February 1, 2007 and 
the new structure of the government has been approved by Parliament. Additionally, a Cabinet was formed. 
Centerra continues its efforts to establish a closer relationship with local communities to ensure broad-based 
regional support for its operations. 

Kumtor’s high profile in the Kyrgyz Republic continues to attract attention from government agencies and 
discussion by parliamentarians. In mid December, the mine department and some support services personnel 
had begun an illegal work stoppage at the Kumtor mine site. At the centre of the labour dispute was a 
Government amendment of the existing regulation with regard to the high altitude premium for the Kumtor 
mine site that had the effect of an increase in salaries for national employees. Centerra has taken the position 
that it is entitled under the stabilization provision of its Investment Agreement with the Government not to 
be subject to this amendment and, as previously disclosed, has therefore commenced international 
arbitration. In November, the Government had asked Centerra to postpone the arbitration and formed a 
special Government commission to review this issue. The day after the illegal work stoppage commenced, 
the Government commission instructed Centerra that it did not intend to change its position that the 
amendment applies to Kumtor and for Centerra to comply with its decision. In order to mitigate its losses 
and potential losses for the Kyrgyz Republic, Centerra made the decision to make the payments required by 
the amendment under protest and to immediately pursue damages in arbitration. As a result, the illegal work 
stoppage at the Kumtor Mine ended and operations returned to normal. Pending the final decision in 
arbitration, the increased labour costs of complying with the amendment will be about $7 million (US) in 
2006.

Based on the long-term relationship between the Government of the Kyrgyz Republic and Cameco as 
original founders of Centerra, the newly appointed Prime Minister invited Cameco to conduct discussions 
regarding a number of issues concerning Kumtor. Cameco and Centerra are meeting with the new 
government to discuss these issues. The positive resolution of these issues would help to provide a stable 
and favourable operational environment for Kumtor and an improved investment climate in the Kyrgyz 
Republic. If the issues between Cameco and the Kyrgyz Republic are not resolved to their mutual 
satisfaction, the risks to Cameco’s investment in Centerra may increase significantly. We are uncertain if an 
agreement can be reached to resolve the issues with the Kyrgyz government. 

In July 2005, protesters, in an action related to the 1998 cyanide spill, illegally blocked access to the Kumtor 
mine alleging, among other things, a lack of compensation from the Government. In response to the 
roadblock, the Government created a State Committee to inquire into various aspects of the Kumtor 
operations and the consequences of the spill. Based on the inquiries of the State Committee, the Government 
issued a decree in September 2005, requesting that certain government agencies enter into negotiations with 
Kumtor Operating Company (KOC) and ask that KOC provide new funds to compensate local residents. 
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Throughout these negotiations Kumtor Gold Company’s (KGC) position continued to be that the settlement 
agreement previously entered into with the Government in 1998 was a final settlement of all claims and that 
any new compensation was the responsibility of the Government. On November 14, 2005, there was a 
further illegal roadblock by protesters that blocked access to the mine. This roadblock was lifted on 
November 21, 2005 after further negotiations among the protesters, the Government and KGC. As a result 
of these negotiations, the Government acknowledged its responsibility for any new compensation relating to 
the spill. To assist the Government in fulfilling its responsibilities in December 2006, KGC agreed to make 
interest free advances of $4.4 million to the Government.  

Pursuant to an agreement dated December 7, 2006 between the Government, KGC, Centerra and 
Kyrgyzaltyn, KGC has advanced a total of $3 million with the final instalment of $1.4 million due in 2007. 
This money has been distributed to members of the local communities by a committee created by the 
Government to administer the distribution of compensation. One half of the loan ($2.2 million) is repayable 
no later than 2010 and is secured by shares of Centerra owned by Kyrgyzaltyn and the other half of the loan 
($2.2 million) is forgivable if there is no event of default, pursuant to the Investment Agreement between 
KGC, Centerra and the Government of the Kyrgyz Republic.  

Mongolia
The 2007 Index of Economic Freedom categorizes Mongolia as “Moderately Free.” with a rank of 78 out of 
161 surveyed countries. Its overall score is 3.1 percentage points lower than last year, partially reflecting the 
new quantitative methods used in the analysis. Mongolia is ranked 11th out of 30 countries in the Asia–
Pacific region, and its overall score is slightly higher than the regional average.

In 2000, the Mongolian People’s Revolutionary Party (“MPRP”) won a strong majority in the Mongolian 
legislature. It continued many of the reform policies and focused on social welfare and public order 
priorities. In the June 2004 election, the MPRP lost its majority but regained it in January 2005 when several 
members of the coalition government joined the MPRP to form a coalition cabinet. Presidential elections 
were held in May 2005, and Mr. Enkhbayar from the MPRP was elected in the first round of voting. In late 
2005, the coalition cabinet dissolved, and in early 2006, the government was reformed and is now 
dominated by members of the MPRP. 

On July 8, 2006, the Mongolian parliament enacted a new Minerals Law, which became effective on August 
26, 2006. The amendments introduced a new definition of strategic mineral deposits. Mineral deposits that 
have a potential impact on national security, economic and social development, or deposits that have a 
potential of producing above 5% of the country’s GDP may be designated as deposits of strategic 
importance.  

The amendments provide that the state may take up to a 50% interest in the exploitation of a mineral deposit 
of strategic importance where state funded exploration was used to determine proven reserves. The 
percentage of the state share would be determined by an agreement made with the license holder on 
exploitation of the deposit, considering the amount of investment made by the state.  

Mongolia could also take up to a 34% interest in an investment to be made by a license holder in a mineral 
deposit of strategic importance where reserves were determined through funding sources other than the state 
budget.
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Under the new Minerals Law, a company operating under the laws of Mongolia, holding a mining license 
for a mineral deposit of strategic importance, is required to sell no less than 10% of its shares through the 
Mongolian Stock Exchange.

The new Minerals Law contains a new single-rate royalty for all metals of 5%. This doubles the 2.5% rate 
that had applied to hard-rock gold. 

The new Minerals Law also contemplates new investment agreements (formerly referred to as stability 
agreements) with respect to mineral properties. Agreements relating to investments in excess of $100 
million (US) must be ratified by the Mongolian parliament. Investment agreements provide increased 
protection to investors making large, long-term commitments. Projects involving an investment of $50 to 
$100 million (US) will have 10-year terms; $100 to $300 million (US) projects will have 15-year terms; and 
projects involving more than $300 million (US) will have 30-year terms. 

While it is still early to make a definitive assessment, the new Minerals Law appears likely to have a 
negative impact on the investment climate for the mining industry, especially foreign investors. 

The new Government of Mongolia has imposed a windfall profits tax of 68% when gold reaches $500 (US) 
per ounce. The new windfall profits tax will not have an impact on Centerra’s Boroo project, which is 
protected by a stability agreement with the Government of Mongolia. The stability agreement, which is in 
effect until July 2013, provides that Boroo is liable only for taxes at agreed rates in effect when the 
agreement was entered into. 

The new law was passed by Mongolian parliament on May 14, 2006 with little advance warning and 
therefore took the industry by surprise. Since the passing of the law, Centerra, with both national and 
international investors, has strongly indicated its opposition to the proposed tax. Centerra will continue to 
advocate for the new tax to be repealed and for the adoption of tax and minerals laws that will encourage 
foreign investment in the minerals sector. 

Centerra is continuing to analyse the impact of the law on the proposed development of the Gatsuurt project, 
which is not currently protected by a stability agreement. As previously announced, Centerra completed a 
feasibility study on the Gatsuurt deposit in late 2005. Current plans provide for the investment in Mongolia 
of about $75 million (US) over the next three years to develop the deposit, including the capital required to 
modify the existing Boroo facility to process Gatsuurt ore. As a result of the decision to impose a windfall 
profits tax, Centerra anticipates that it may suspend further development of the deposit until a stability 
agreement acceptable to Centerra has been signed.  

Centerra continues its negotiations regarding its Boroo stability agreement and Gatsuurt investment 
agreement with the Mongolian Government amid strong nationalistic sentiment in the country. The Ministry 
of Finance has alleged certain tax-related violations by Centerra and notified it on January 15, 2007 that the 
Boroo stability agreement will be terminated unless the alleged violations are resolved within 120 days. 
Centerra has responded that in all cases it has either remedied the alleged violations or strongly disputes that 
a violation exists. On February 13, 2007, Centerra received a reply from the Minister of Finance reiterating 
the allegations. Centerra believes that this dispute will be resolved through negotiations with the 
government. The termination of the Stability Agreement, however, could result in the government taking up 
to a 50% interest in the project, subject the Centerra subsidiary to the new windfall profits tax and would 
subject it to generally applicable tax rates. 
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The Mongolian Parliament continues to debate the recent changes to mining legislation and the applicability 
of windfall profit tax as well as state participation in various mining projects. The government has 
acknowledged that the windfall tax will not apply to the Boroo project; however, it is reluctant to afford 
similar protection with respect to the windfall tax and other changes to Centerra’s Gatsuurt project. 
Centerra has a history of cooperative relations with the Mongolian government and believes that the 
strength of this relationship will facilitate discussion on an investment agreement for the Gatsuurt project. 

To partially mitigate losses, Centerra continues to purchase political risk insurance. 

Kazakhstan 
The 2007 Index of Economic Freedom categorizes Kazakhstan as “Moderately Free.” with a rank of 75 out 
of 161 surveyed countries. Its overall score is 0.8 percentage points lower than last year, partially reflecting 
the new quantitative methods used in the analysis. Kazakhstan is ranked 10th out of 30 countries in the 
Asia–Pacific region, and its overall score is slightly higher than the regional average. To mitigate risk at our 
Inkai project, we formed a strategic alliance, through a joint venture, with KazAtomProm, a state-owned 
entity of the Kazakhstan. Cameco has agreed to provide funding of up to $100 million (US) to the Joint 
Venture Inkai for project development. We have also agreed to invest at least $4 million (US) over the next 
four years on sustainable development activities. To date, the Kazakhstan government has supported the 
project. In the event of a dispute arising at our foreign operations at Inkai, the dispute will be submitted to 
international arbitration. Cameco also continues to purchase political risk insurance to partially mitigate 
losses.

Cameco and Centerra practise the principles of sustainable development - to be a leader in business ethics, 
workplace safety, environmental protection and community economic development. As a result, we believe 
our commitment to sustainable development will further enhance our goal of becoming a partner of choice 
for governments and state-owned enterprises where we operate. 

RESTRUCTURING OF ONTARIO’S ELECTRICITY INDUSTRY
Through Cameco’s investment in BPLP, we are exposed to various business risks associated with the 
generation and marketing of electricity. In Ontario, political risk results from uncertainty over the future 
direction of government energy policies. BPLP sells electricity into the wholesale spot market and the 
contract market. 

In Ontario, the retail and wholesale power markets were deregulated in May 2002. Due to a number of 
factors, including weather, electricity spot prices climbed to an average of $83.00 per MWh in September 
2002 compared to an average price before deregulation of about $38.00 per MWh. In response, the Ontario 
government abandoned the deregulation of the retail electricity market and froze retail (but not wholesale) 
market prices at $43.00 per MWh for smaller consumers. In April 2004, a new pricing plan was 
implemented which fixed the first 750 kWh of consumption at $47.00 per MWh and monthly consumption 
above that level at $55.00 per MWh. More recently, the government has moved to gradually introduce the 
“true cost” of electricity into the retail market using an annual adjustment mechanism.  

To mitigate price increases, the government has caused its provincially owned utility OPG to provide fixed 
rates for large industrial electricity users to allow them a transition to a market rate.  

In 2005, the government set an average price of $45.00 per MWh on the output of OPG’s regulated assets, 
which include OPG’s baseload nuclear and large hydro plants. The new prices took effect on April 1, 2005 
and will stay in place until the Ontario Energy Board sets new prices, no earlier than March 31, 2008. The 
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government also set a new price limit of $47.00 per MWh on most of the output from OPG’s unregulated 
assets, which include 85% of OPG’s coal fired and smaller hydro operations that are not included in its 
regulated assets. The price limit was to act as a transitional measure from April 1, 2005 to April 30, 2006. 

In February 2006, the Ontario government extended the transition rate for OPG’s unregulated assets for 
three years (2006 to 2008). The rate per MWh will be $46.00, $47.00 and $48.00 in each of the three years. 
We expect this action may depress the wholesale contract market, which remains unregulated. BPLP sells 
all of its production into the wholesale contract and spot markets. Given the constant struggle between 
encouraging new supplies of electricity and providing low electricity costs to users, uncertainty for Ontario 
electricity generators continues.

BPLP engages in risk management activities, including trading of electricity and related contracts to 
mitigate these risks. BPLP receives a reliable stream of revenue from fixed-price contracts. Approximately 
51% of BPLP’s output was sold under fixed-price contracts in 2006. BPLP also sells electricity on the open 
spot market. Prices are determined by bids from suppliers and buyers that reflect changes in supply and 
demand by the hour. In addition, the Bruce Power restructuring agreement provides for a floor price of 
$45.00 per MWh (escalated by inflation) for the electricity sold by the Bruce B reactors into the spot 
market. 

In 2006, the Ontario Power Authority (OPA) held two power auctions and helped to facilitate a third to help 
promote liquidity in the Ontario electricity market. In the third auction, Natural Gas Exchange (NGX) took 
on overall responsibility and will continue to do so in the future. BPLP participated in all three auctions, 
selling 10.3 TWh at an average price of $74.07. The auctions represent one of a number of initiatives the 
OPA is co-ordinating to help develop the electricity market in Ontario. 

There is a risk that the Ontario government could regulate the wholesale market in the future. This would 
limit the upside potential for BPLP’s revenue. Given the shortage of generating capacity in Ontario, the 
need to attract new investment and recent market structure changes made by the government, we believe the 
risk that the wholesale market will be regulated is low. Ontario imported 6.2 TWh in 2006 down from the 
11 TWh imported during 2005. The IESO is responsible for managing Ontario’s bulk electricity system and 
operating the wholesale electricity market.  

Although Ontario set a new all-time record for electricity demand of 27,005 MW on August 1, 2006, the 
province’s total demand for electricity decreased slightly in 2006. Ontarians consumed a total of 151 TWh, 
a decrease of nearly 4% from 2005. The decrease was primarily due to moderate weather. 

Operational Risks 

OVERVIEW
Cameco’s businesses are subject to a number of operational risks and hazards, including environmental 
pollution, accidents or spills; industrial and transportation accidents; fires; blockades or other acts of social 
or political activism; changes in the regulatory environment; impact of non-compliance with laws and 
regulations; natural phenomena; encountering unusual or unexpected geological conditions; and 
technological failure of mining methods.  

We also contract for the transport of our uranium and uranium products to refining, conversion, fuel 
manufacturing, enrichment facilities and nuclear facilities in North America and Europe, as well as 
processing facilities in Kazakhstan, which exposes the company to transportation risks. The potential risk is 
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damage to the environment from a transportation incident, which results in a spill of product. We may be 
held liable as owner of the product. This could damage our reputation, which could make it more difficult to 
ship our products. 

Although we maintain insurance to cover some of these risks and hazards in amounts we believe to be 
reasonable, this insurance may not provide adequate coverage in all circumstances.  
ENGINEERING AND TECHNICAL 

Water Inflow
Due to the unique geological conditions of the deposits at McArthur River and Cigar Lake, some technical 
challenges exist, including the potential inflow of water into a mine.  

In April 2003, a rockfall that resulted in a water inflow into the McArthur mine suspended mining for nearly 
three months. Similar difficulties could result in lower uranium production levels. (See Cameco’s 2003 
annual report for more information). 

In October 2006, a rockfall causing a water inflow at Cigar Lake flooded the underground development. 
Cameco’s share of additional capital costs to develop Cigar Lake, including mill modifications at Rabbit 
Lake and McClean Lake (where the uranium will be processed), is currently estimated at $274 million. 
Adding this new cost estimate to the $234 million that Cameco has already spent on Cigar Lake 
construction brings Cameco’s share of total construction cost to develop the project to about $508 million.  

In addition to capital costs, Cameco’s share of remediation expenses are expected to total $46 million, of 
which $5 million was expensed in 2006. In 2007, Cameco anticipates its share of remediation costs will be 
$32 million, which will be expensed and reduce pre-tax earnings accordingly. In 2008, Cameco expects its 
pre-tax earnings to be reduced by $9 million of remediation expenses for Cigar Lake. 

After construction is complete, Cameco estimates production startup in 2010, ramping up to the company’s 
share of full production of about 9 million pounds in just over two years. This is subject to regulatory 
approval and the remediation being completed in a timely fashion.  

The baseload contracts put in place to support the development of Cigar Lake also contain supply 
interruption language, which allows Cameco to reduce, defer or cancel deliveries in the event of any delay 
or shortfall in Cigar Lake production. Since the Cigar Lake water inflow, we have been in discussions with 
our customers to address the production delay at the mine and its possible effect on uranium deliveries. In 
the case of the Cigar Lake baseload contracts containing deliveries in 2007, we plan to defer the volumes to 
the end of the various contracts. For the remainder of the contracts that are impacted by the supply 
interruption language in 2007, we plan to defer the portion of deliveries impacted by this language for a five 
to seven-year period. The full impact to net earnings is currently not known.

Cameco has operational controls in place to reduce this risk including detailed procedural training for 
employees, equipment inspections and testing, weekly ground control inspections by our site engineers, and 
a program of quarterly rock mechanics reviews. The quarterly reviews include annual formal audits of 
ground control practices and geotechnical aspects of current and planned mining and a mid-year ground 
control review by our corporate rock mechanics engineer as well as third-party ground control inspections 
by engineering consultants twice per year, such that a third-party or corporate review takes place every 
quarter. This water inflow risk may not be fully insurable. 
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Jet Boring Mining Method 
At Cigar Lake, the major technical factors influencing the mining method selection include ground stability, 
control of groundwater, radiation exposure, and ore handling and storage. Various studies on ground 
conditioning and non-entry mining methods were conducted. A test mine program which ran three 
campaigns, resulted in the selection and validation of the jet boring mining method.  

The overall test mine program was considered successful with all initial objectives fulfilled. However, as the 
jet boring mining method is new to the uranium mining industry, the potential for unforeseeable technical 
challenges exist. We are confident that our engineers will be able to solve the challenges that may arise 
during the initial rampup period, but failure to do so would have a significant impact on Cameco. We could 
experience a delay in production startup, which would result in the delay of sales and revenue. Costs would 
likely rise as we examined solutions to deal with the technical challenges. Given that we cannot foresee 
what these solutions might be, we cannot predict the costs at this time. 

Transition to New Mining Areas at McArthur River  
We are currently mining in zone 2 (panels 1, 2, and 3) at the McArthur River mine and will continue to 
mine exclusively in zone 2 (panels 1, 2 and 3) through 2007 and 2008. In 2009, we will transition to panel 5 
of zone 2 and bring lower zone 4 into operation. Zone 1 will also begin production in 2009. All production 
from these zones will continue to come from our mining method of raiseboring.  

The McArthur River mine schematic above illustrates the location of the four ore zones. 

All tunnels have been developed for zone 1 and we do not expect any technical issues. At zone 2 (panel 5) 
and lower zone 4, freeze hole drilling and tunnel construction commenced in 2006. Through much of 2006, 
freeze-hole drilling advanced at a slower than expected rate due to technical challenges with drilling through 
frozen ground, additional time required to address operational challenges such as improvements to the drill 
setups, and earlier staffing challenges associated with getting sufficient experienced drillers given the high 
levels of activity in the exploration diamond drilling industry. We have modified our freeze-hole drilling 
technique and equipment and have since achieved our scheduled target drilling rates. If progress on freeze-
hole drilling and tunnel development is delayed, it would be difficult to expedite the process and future 
production from these zones would likely be postponed. We have good experience with freeze hole drilling 
and tunnel development and do not expect any significant further challenges or delays. Failure to 
successfully transition to new zones could delay production and could result in a loss of sales. 
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Boxhole Boring Mining Method 
Work also progressed on the planning of a boxhole boring mining method, which we anticipate using for 
production from upper zone 4 beginning in 2012. Boxhole boring is used to excavate an orebody where 
there is limited or no access from above. The machine is set up on the lower level, and a raise is bored 
upward into the orebody. The ore and rock are carried by gravity down the hole, and are deflected away 
from the machine. Boxhole boring is a mining development technique used around the world; however it 
would be a first in uranium mining and as a production method. We have experience with boxhole boring as 
we have conducted trials and tested the boxhole method at Rabbit Lake and Cigar Lake.  

Technical challenges associated with this mining method include reaming through frozen ground, raise 
stability (thawing from reaming and backfill), controlling raise deviation, reaming through backfilled raises 
and control of radiation exposure. Accordingly, we have scheduled a long lead-time for implementation to 
ensure the technical challenges are understood and prevented. Until Cameco has fully developed and tested 
the boxhole boring method at McArthur River, there is uncertainty in the estimated productivity. A 
dedicated “Mining Methods Development” team has been assembled at McArthur River to develop the 
boxhole method and capital equipment, including a boxhole raise drill that has already been ordered. We 
have confidence our engineers will be able to successfully implement this mining method at McArthur 
River. Failure to do so would delay production from this zone and could result in a loss of sales.

Kumtor Highwall Ground Movement 
The current pit design is a response to the pit wall failure in 2002 at the Kumtor mine, also referred to as the 
“highwall ground movement,” which resulted in the temporary suspension of operations. While some 
ground movement is common, this was a significant and unexpected movement, which affected the pit wall 
over a vertical distance of 280 metres and caused one fatality. Although mine production resumed seven 
days later in an area away from the pit wall failure, the highwall ground movement led to a considerable 
shortfall in 2002 gold production because a high-grade zone was rendered temporarily inaccessible to 
mining. As of December 31, 2004, the entire area affected by the highwall ground movement had been 
mined out. 

In February 2004, some movement in the southeast wall of the Kumtor open pit was detected by the 
monitoring system. A crack was also discovered at the crest of the wall. The affected area of the southeast 
wall extends over a face length of about 300 metres and a wall height of about 200 metres. This area has 
now been mined out. In February 2006, additional minor movement was detected. Remedial 
recommendations of Centerra’s geotechnical consultants have been implemented. Kumtor will continue to 
closely monitor the southeast wall. 

In July 2006, a pit wall ground movement occurred along the northeast wall at its Kumtor mine site. 
Kumtor’s extensive slope monitoring system was effective, enabling safe advance evacuation of the mining 
area. The movement occurred above the higher-grade stockwork area that was planned to be mined 
beginning late in 2006 and continuing into 2007. While the stockwork area was not covered, safety concerns 
identified by engineering analysis undertaken after the event required a new mining sequence, which 
deferred production from this area.

As a result, gold production for 2006 was reduced and total cash costs were higher. Gold reserves are not 
affected as a result of the rockslide as the wall movement lies entirely within the ultimate pit design. 
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RECLAMATION AND DECOMMISSIONING
The company plans for the closure, reclamation and decommissioning of its operating sites. 
Decommissioning and reclamation costs may increase over time due to increasingly stringent regulatory 
requirements. 

Periodically, Cameco re-estimates its total decommissioning and reclamation costs, based on current 
operations to date, for its operating assets. At the end of 2006, the total estimate was $313 million, which is 
the undiscounted value of the obligation. Most of these expenditures are typically incurred at the end of the 
useful lives of the operations to which they relate and, therefore, only a very small percentage of total 
estimated decommissioning and reclamation costs are expected to be incurred over the next five years. At 
the end of 2006, Cameco’s accounting provision for future reclamation costs totalled $228 million, which 
represents the present value of the $313 million mentioned above. See note 8 to the consolidated financial 
statements. 

Cameco typically provides letters of credit (LOC) to provide financial assurances, where required, for 
decommissioning and reclamation costs. 

Since 2001, all Cameco’s North American operations have had in place LOCs providing financial 
assurance, which are aligned with preliminary plans for site-wide decommissioning. Beginning in 1996, the 
company has conducted regulatory-required reviews of its decommissioning plans for all Canadian sites. 
These periodic reviews are done on a five-year basis, or at the time of an amendment to or renewal of an 
operating licence.

Cameco’s LOCs totalled $213 million at the end of 2006. As part of the upcoming licence renewals for our 
operations, we will be reassessing our decommissioning estimates which are expected to result in the need 
for additional LOCs. 

Cameco currently has firm revised decommissioning estimates for our Port Hope, Blind River and Zircatec 
operations. These estimates have resulted in an increase of about $100 million over prior estimates and are 
reflected in the 2006 accounting provision for future reclamation costs. 

SAFETY, HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT
Cameco is subject to the normal worker health, safety and environmental risks associated with all mining 
and chemical processing. In addition, our workforce faces other risks associated with radiation related to 
uranium mining and milling, and fuel services operations.  

Over the last few years Cameco has been implementing a QMS that recently also integrates our 
environmental management and health and safety management systems. Most of Cameco’s uranium 
facilities are ISO 14001 certified or in the process of developing the program and obtaining certification. 

Monitoring and reporting programs for environmental, health and safety performance in all our operations 
are in place, to ensure that environmental and regulatory standards are met. For 2006, we invested about $40 
million for environmental monitoring, protection, assessment and safety and health programs. Inspections, 
assessments and audits are also designed to provide reasonable assurances of our performance to 
management. Contingency plans are in place for a timely response to an environmental event.  
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ELECTRICITY BUSINESS
The capacity factor is directly related to the operating performance of BPLP’s generating assets. The 
capacity factor for a given period represents the amount of electricity actually produced for sale as a 
percentage of the amount of electricity the plants are capable of producing for sale. BPLP’s anticipated 
contribution to Cameco’s financial results in a given year could be significantly impacted if the aggregate 
capacity factor is less than expected due to planned outages extending significantly beyond their scheduled 
periods or if there are unplanned outages for an extended period of time. The impact of lower capacity 
factor is reduced electricity sales and revenue. 

In 2006, estimated capacity for the four B units were expected to average in the low 90% range. The actual 
capacity factor for 2006 was 91%. In 2005, we expected Bruce Power’s average capacity factor for all six 
units to be 85% compared to the 80% that was ultimately achieved. This reduction in capacity factor is 
equivalent to about 2 TWh, which could have been sold by Bruce Power. Reduced generation capacity may 
cause electricity prices to rise, which can partially offset the loss in sales volume. 

Bruce Power manages this risk through preventive maintenance to improve overall equipment reliability, by 
adopting more efficient operational processes and by improving employee performance at all levels. In 
2007, BPLP plans to invest $55 million in sustaining capital. 

DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 
As of December 31, 2006, we evaluated our disclosure controls and procedures as defined in the rules under 
the US Securities and Exchange Commission and the Canadian Securities Administrators. This evaluation 
was carried out under the supervision and participation of management, including the president and chief 
executive officer and the chief financial officer. Based on that evaluation, the president and chief executive 
officer and chief financial officer concluded that the design and operation of these disclosure controls and 
procedures were effective. No significant changes were made in our internal controls over financial 
reporting during the year ended December 31, 2006, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely 
to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting, expect for as follows: On May 1, 2006, the 
second implementation phase of an enterprise resource planning application became operational at 
Cameco’s Canadian operations, including the plant maintenance, purchasing, materials management, 
accounts payable and project systems modules. The first phase, completed as of January 1, 2003, included 
human resources, payroll and finance modules. Cameco believes that certain changes made to the 
company’s internal control structure, in connection with this implementation, strengthened its internal 
control structure.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 
Cameco prepares its financial statements in accordance with Canadian GAAP. In doing so, management is 
required to make various estimates and judgments in determining the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities, revenues and expenses for each year presented, and in the disclosure of commitments and 
contingencies. Management bases its estimates and judgments on its own experience, guidelines established 
by the Canadian Institute of Mining, Metallurgy and Petroleum and various other factors believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances. Management believes the following critical accounting estimates reflect 
its more significant judgments used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements. 

Depreciation and depletion on property, plant and equipment is primarily calculated using the unit of 
production method. This method allocates the cost of an asset to each period based on current period 
production as a portion of total lifetime production or a portion of estimated recoverable ore reserves. 
Estimates of lifetime production and amounts of recoverable reserves are subject to judgment and 
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significant change over time. If actual reserves prove to be significantly different than the estimates, there 
could be a material impact on the amounts of depreciation and depletion charged to earnings. 

Significant decommissioning and reclamation activities are often not undertaken until substantial 
completion of the useful lives of the productive assets. Regulatory requirements and alternatives with 
respect to these activities are subject to change over time. A significant change to either the estimated costs 
or recoverable reserves may result in a material change in the amount charged to earnings. 

Cameco assesses the carrying values of property, plant and equipment, and goodwill annually or more 
frequently if warranted by a change in circumstances. If it is determined that carrying values of assets or 
goodwill cannot be recovered, the unrecoverable amounts are written off against current earnings. 
Recoverability is dependent upon assumptions and judgments regarding future prices, costs of production, 
sustaining capital requirements and economically recoverable ore reserves. A material change in 
assumptions may significantly impact the potential impairment of these assets. 

Cameco uses derivative financial and commodity instruments to reduce exposure to fluctuations in foreign 
currency exchange rates, interest rates and commodity prices. As long as these instruments are effective, 
they have the effect of offsetting future changes in these underlying rates and prices. Future earnings may be 
adversely impacted should these instruments become ineffective. 

Cameco operates in a number of tax jurisdictions and is therefore required to estimate its income taxes in 
each of these tax jurisdictions in preparing its consolidated financial statements. In calculating the income 
taxes, consideration is given to factors such as tax rates in the different jurisdictions, non-deductible 
expenses, valuation allowances, changes in tax laws and management’s expectations of future results. 
Cameco estimates future income taxes based on temporary differences between the income and losses 
reported in its consolidated financial statements and its taxable income and losses as determined under the 
applicable tax laws. The tax effect of these temporary differences is recorded as future tax assets or 
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements. The calculation of income taxes requires the use of 
judgment and estimates. If these judgments and estimates prove to be inaccurate, future earnings may be 
materially impacted. 

CAUTION REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION 
Statements contained in this MD&A, which are not historical facts, are forward-looking statements that 
involve risks, uncertainties and other factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those 
expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause such differences, without 
limiting the generality of the following, include: the impact of the sales volume of fuel fabrication services, 
uranium, conversion services, electricity generated and gold; volatility and sensitivity to market prices for 
uranium, conversion services, electricity in Ontario and gold; competition; the impact of change in foreign 
currency exchange rates and interest rates; imprecision in capital cost, production decommissioning, 
reclamation, reserve and tax estimates; environmental and safety risks including increased regulatory 
burdens and long-term waste disposal; unexpected geological or hydrological conditions; adverse mining 
conditions; political risks arising from operating in certain developing countries; terrorism; sabotage; a 
possible deterioration in political support for nuclear energy; changes in government regulations and 
policies, including tax and trade laws and policies; demand for nuclear power; replacement of production; 
failure to obtain or maintain necessary permits and approvals from government authorities; legislative and 
regulatory initiatives regarding deregulation, regulation or restructuring of the electric utility industry in 
Ontario; Ontario electricity rate regulations; natural phenomena including inclement weather conditions, 
fire, flood, underground floods, earthquakes, pitwall failure and cave-ins; ability to maintain and further 
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improve positive labour relations; strikes or lockouts; operating performance, disruption in the operation of, 
and life of the company’s and customers’ facilities; decrease in electrical production due to planned outages 
extending beyond their scheduled periods or unplanned outages; success of planned development projects; 
and other development and operating risks.  

Although Cameco believes that the assumptions inherent in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, 
undue reliance should not be placed on these statements, which only apply as of the date of this report. 
Cameco disclaims any intention or obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statement, whether as 
a result of new information, future events or otherwise. 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION  
Additional information related to the company including Cameco’s annual information form is available at 
sedar.com and cameco.com.  
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REPORT OF MANAGEMENT'S ACCOUNTABILITY 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian generally 
accepted accounting principles. Management is responsible for ensuring that these statements, which include amounts based upon 
estimates and judgment, are consistent with other information and operating data contained in the annual report and reflect the
corporation's business transactions and financial position.   

Management is also responsible for the information disclosed in the management’s discussion and analysis including 
responsibility for the existence of appropriate information systems, procedures and controls to ensure that the information used
internally by management and disclosed externally is complete and reliable in all material respects. 

In addition, management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an adequate system of internal control over financial 
reporting. The internal control system includes an internal audit function and a code of conduct and ethics, which is 
communicated to all levels in the organization and requires all employees to maintain high standards in their conduct of the 
corporation's affairs. Such systems are designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial information is relevant, reliable 
and accurate and that the company’s assets are appropriately accounted for and adequately safeguarded. Management conducted 
an evaluation of the effectiveness of the system of internal control over financial reporting based on the criteria established in 
“Internal Control – Integrated Framework” issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. 
Based on this evaluation, management concluded that the company’s system of internal control over financial reporting was 
effective as at December 31, 2006. 

Our shareholders' independent auditors, KPMG LLP, whose report on their examination follows, have audited management’s 
assessment of the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial reporting.  In addition, KPMG LLP has audited 
the consolidated financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. 

The board of directors annually appoints an audit committee comprised of directors who are not employees of the corporation. 
This committee meets regularly with management, the internal auditor and the shareholders' auditors to review significant 
accounting, reporting and internal control matters.  Both the internal and shareholders' auditors have unrestricted access to the
audit committee.  The audit committee reviews the financial statements, the report of the shareholders' auditors, and 
management’s discussion and analysis and submits its report to the board of directors for formal approval. 

Original signed by Gerald W. Grandey Original signed by O. Kim Goheen 

President and Chief Executive Officer Senior Vice-President and Chief Financial Officer

March 16, 2007 March 16, 2007 
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AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Shareholders of Cameco Corporation

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Cameco Corporation as at December 31, 2006 and 2005 and the consolidated 
statements of earnings, retained earnings and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2006.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the corporation's management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  With respect to the consolidated 
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006, we also conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the 
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).  Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. 

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
corporation as at December 31, 2006 and 2005 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the 
three-year period ended December 31, 2006 in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. 

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the 
effectiveness of the corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on the criteria 
established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway 
Commission (COSO), and our report dated March 16, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of, 
and the effective operation of, internal control over financial reporting. 

Original signed by KPMGLLP

Chartered Accountants 
Saskatoon, Canada

March 16, 2007 
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
(As adjusted -

note 3(b))

As at December 31 2006 2005
($Cdn thousands)

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $334,089 $623,193

Accounts receivable 403,280               340,498               

Inventories [note 4] 416,479               399,675               

Supplies and prepaid expenses 191,831               152,790               

Current portion of long-term receivables, investments and other [note 6] 8,745                   8,303                   

1,354,424            1,524,459            

Property, plant and equipment [note 5] 3,312,152            2,871,337            

Long-term receivables, investments and other [note 6] 293,714               196,747               

Goodwill [note 22] 180,139               180,232               

Total assets $5,140,429 $4,772,775

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $402,806 $350,398

Dividends payable 14,092                 10,487                 

Current portion of long-term debt [note 7] 7,900                   156,699               

Current portion of other liabilities [note 9] 30,881                 43,725                 

Future income taxes [note 16] 46,289                 73,910                 

501,968               635,219               

Long-term debt [note 7] 696,691               702,109               

Provision for reclamation [note 8] 228,496               167,568               

Other liabilities [note 9] 232,370               98,609                 

Future income taxes [note 16] 339,451               444,942               

1,998,976            2,048,447            

Minority interest 400,071               360,697               

Shareholders' equity

Share capital [note 10] 812,769               779,035               

Contributed surplus [note 10] 540,173               529,245               

Retained earnings 1,428,206            1,108,748            

Cumulative translation account [note 11] (39,766)                (53,397)                

2,741,382            2,363,631            

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $5,140,429 $4,772,775

Commitments and contingencies  [notes 8,24,25]

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Approved by the board of directors

Original signed by Gerald W. Grandey and Nancy E. Hopkins
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Consolidated Statements of Earnings
(As adjusted - (As adjusted -

note 3(b)) note 3(b))

For the years ended December 31 2006 2005 2004
($Cdn thousands, except per share amounts)

Revenue from

Products and services $1,831,690 $1,312,655 $1,048,487

Expenses

Products and services sold 1,127,772            814,032               623,125               

Depreciation, depletion and reclamation 199,665               197,516               180,229               

Administration 143,014               110,187               71,844                 

Exploration 58,152                 57,468                 35,972                 

Cigar Lake remediation [note 12] 20,559                 -                       -                       

Interest and other [note 13] (3,708)                  12,103                 14,264                 

Research and development 2,682                   2,410                   1,911                   

Gain on sale of assets [note 14] (51,826)                (1,739)                  (1,958)                  

1,496,310            1,191,977            925,387               

Earnings from operations 335,380               120,678               123,100               

Earnings from Bruce Power [note 19] -                       165,775               120,722               

Other income (expense) [note 15] 10,046                 (13,989)                133,421               

Earnings before income taxes and minority interest 345,426               272,464               377,243               

Income tax expense (recovery) [note 16] (68,843)                30,257                 73,285                 

Minority interest 38,554                 26,738                 27,452                 

Net earnings $375,715 $215,469 $276,506

Basic earnings per common share [note 26] $1.07 $0.62 $0.81

Diluted earnings per common share [note 26] $1.02 $0.60 $0.77

Consolidated Statements of Retained Earnings
(As adjusted - (As adjusted -

note 3(b)) note 3(b))

For the years ended December 31 2006 2005 2004
($Cdn thousands)

Retained earnings at beginning of year

As previously reported $1,114,693 $938,809 $694,423

Change in accounting policy for stock-based compensation [note 3(b)] (5,945)                  (3,783)                  (1,504)                  

As adjusted 1,108,748            935,026               692,919               

Net earnings 375,715               215,469               276,506               

Dividends on common shares (56,257)                (41,747)                (34,399)                

Retained earnings at end of year $1,428,206 $1,108,748 $935,026

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(As adjusted - (As adjusted -

note 3(b)) note 3(b))

For the years ended December 31 2006 2005 2004
(Cdn$ thousands)

Operating activities

Net earnings $375,715 $215,469 $276,506

Items not requiring (providing) cash:

Depreciation, depletion and reclamation 199,665               197,516               180,229               

Provision for future taxes [note 16] (184,639)              (51,723)                31,058                 

Deferred revenue recognized (43,449)                (25,286)                (19,085)                

Unrealized losses (gains) on derivatives 10,400                 10,513                 (7,217)                  

Stock-based compensation [note 20] 17,549                 16,913                 9,485                   

Gain on sale of assets [note 14] (51,826)                (1,739)                  (1,958)                  

Cigar Lake remediation [note 12] 15,356                 -                       -                       

Earnings from Bruce Power -                       (165,775)              (120,722)              

Equity in (earnings) loss from associated companies [note 15] 5,320                   (184)                     (990)                     

Other expense (income) -                       16,577                 (124,050)              

Minority interest 38,554                 26,738                 27,452                 

Other operating items [note 17] 35,375                 38,517                 (22,666)                

Cash provided by operations 418,020               277,536               228,042               

Investing activities

Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired (83,856)                -                       (3,717)                  

Additions to property, plant and equipment (459,559)              (284,929)              (148,273)              

Restructuring of Bruce Power -                       200,000               -                       

Net proceeds on sale of investment in Energy Resources Australia Ltd -                       101,956               -                       

Increase in long-term receivables, investments and other (29,687)                (6,077)                  (10,466)                

Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment 46,404                 10,532                 1,769                   

Cash provided by (used in) investing (526,698)              21,482                 (160,687)              

Financing activities

Short-term financing -                       (14,544)                14,544                 

Decrease in debt (156,700)              (167,233)              (169,083)              

Increase in debt -                       -                       100,300               

Issue of debentures, net of issue costs -                       297,750               -                       

Issue of shares 27,058                 25,199                 41,281                 

Subsidiary issue of shares -                       -                       101,234               

Dividends (52,660)                (39,970)                (34,262)                

Cash provided by (used in) financing (182,302)              101,202               54,014                 

Increase (decrease) in cash during the year (290,980)              400,220               121,369               

Exchange rate changes on foreign currency cash balances 1,876                   (9,662)                  (15,906)                

Increase in cash due to accounting change [note 19] -                       43,103                 -                       

Cash at beginning of year 623,193               189,532               84,069                 

Cash at end of year $334,089 $623,193 $189,532

Supplemental cash flow disclosure

Interest paid $53,551 $26,610 $35,968

Income taxes paid $115,352 $48,429 $18,262

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 

($Cdn thousands except per share amounts and as noted)

1. Cameco Corporation
Cameco Corporation is incorporated under the Canada Business Corporations Act.  Cameco Corporation and its subsidiaries
(collectively, “Cameco” or “the company”) are primarily engaged in the exploration for and the development, mining,
refining, conversion and fabrication of uranium for sale as fuel for generating electricity in nuclear power reactors in Canada
and other countries.  The company has a 31.6% interest in Bruce Power L.P. (“BPLP”), which operates the four Bruce B
nuclear reactors in Ontario.  The company wholly owns Zircatec Precision Industries, Inc., whose primary business is the
fabrication of nuclear fuel bundles.  Cameco’s 52.7% subsidiary Centerra Gold Inc. (“Centerra”) is involved in the
exploration for and the development, mining and sale of gold.

2. Significant Accounting Policies 
(a) Consolidation Principles

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Cameco and its subsidiaries. Interests in joint ventures are 
accounted for by the proportionate consolidation method. Under this method, Cameco includes in its accounts its 
proportionate share of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared by management in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles. Management makes various estimates and assumptions in determining the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses for each year presented, and in the disclosure of
commitments and contingencies.  The most significant estimates are related to the lives and recoverability of mineral
properties, provisions for decommissioning and reclamation of assets, future income taxes, financial instruments and
mineral reserves. Actual results could differ from these estimates.  This summary of significant accounting policies is a
description of the accounting methods and practices that have been used in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements and is presented to assist the reader in interpreting the statements contained herein.

(b) Cash
Cash consists of balances with financial institutions and investments in money market instruments, which have a term to
maturity of three months or less at time of purchase.

(c) Inventories
Inventories of broken ore, uranium concentrates, refined and converted products and gold are valued at the lower of
average cost and net realizable value. Average cost includes direct materials, direct labour, operational overhead
expenses and depreciation, depletion and reclamation.

(d) Supplies
Consumable supplies and spares are valued at the lower of cost or replacement value.

(e) Investments
Investments in associated companies over which Cameco has the ability to exercise significant influence are accounted
for by the equity method. Under this method, Cameco includes in earnings its share of earnings or losses of the
associated company.  Portfolio investments are carried at cost or at cost less amounts written off to reflect a decline in
value that is other than temporary.

(f) Property, Plant and Equipment
Assets are carried at cost.  Costs of additions and improvements are capitalized. When assets are retired or sold, the
resulting gains or losses are reflected in current earnings.  Maintenance and repair expenditures are charged to cost of 
production.
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(g) Non-Producing Properties
The decision to develop a mine property within a project area is based on an assessment of the commercial viability of
the property, the availability of financing and the existence of markets for the product.  Once the decision to proceed to 
development is made, development and other expenditures relating to the project area are deferred and carried at cost
with the intention that these will be depleted by charges against earnings from future mining operations.  No depreciation
or depletion is charged against the property until commercial production commences.  After a mine property has been
brought into commercial production, costs of any additional work on that property are expensed as incurred, except for
large development programs, which will be deferred and depleted over the remaining life of the related assets. 

The carrying values of non-producing properties are periodically assessed by management and if management
determines that the carrying values cannot be recovered, the unrecoverable amounts are written off against current
earnings.

(h) Property Evaluations
Cameco reviews the carrying values of its properties when changes in circumstances indicate that those carrying values
may not be recoverable.  Estimated future net cash flows are calculated using estimated recoverable reserves, estimated
future commodity prices and the expected future operating and capital costs. An impairment loss is recognized when the
carrying value of an asset held for use exceeds the sum of undiscounted future net cash flows. An impairment loss is
measured as the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its fair value.

(i) Goodwill
Acquisitions are accounted for using the purchase method whereby acquired assets and liabilities are recorded at fair
value as of the date of acquisition.  The excess of the purchase price over such fair value is recorded as goodwill.
Goodwill is assigned to assets and is not amortized.

(j) Future Income Taxes
Future income taxes are recognized for the future income tax consequences attributable to differences between the
carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective income tax bases.  Future income tax assets and liabilities are 
measured using enacted or substantively enacted income tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in
which temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.  The effect on future income tax assets and
liabilities of a change in rates is included in earnings in the period, which includes the enactment date. Future income
tax assets are recorded in the financial statements if realization is considered more likely than not.

(k) Capitalization of Interest
Interest is capitalized on expenditures related to construction or development projects actively being prepared for their
intended use. Capitalization is discontinued when the asset enters commercial operation or development ceases. 

(l) Depreciation and Depletion
Conversion services assets, mine buildings, equipment and mineral properties are depreciated or depleted according to
the unit-of-production method.  This method allocates the costs of these assets to each accounting period.  For
conversion services, the amount of depreciation is measured by the portion of the facilities' total estimated lifetime
production that is produced in that period.  For mining, the amount of depreciation or depletion is measured by the
portion of the mines' economically recoverable proven and probable ore reserves which are recovered during the period.

Nuclear generating plants are depreciated according to the straight-line method based on the lower of useful life and
remaining lease term.

Other assets are depreciated according to the straight-line method based on estimated useful lives, which generally range
from three to 10 years.

(m) Research and Development and Exploration Costs
Expenditures for research and technology related to the products and processes and expenditures for geological
exploration programs are charged against earnings as incurred.
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(n) Environmental Protection and Reclamation Costs
The fair value of the liability for an asset retirement obligation is recognized in the period incurred. The fair value is 
added to the carrying amount of the associated asset and depreciated over the asset’s useful life.  The liability is accreted 
over time through periodic charges to earnings and it is reduced by actual costs of decommissioning and reclamation.
Cameco's estimates of reclamation costs could change as a result of changes in regulatory requirements and cost
estimates. Expenditures relating to ongoing environmental programs are charged against earnings as incurred.

(o) Employee Future Benefits
Cameco accrues its obligations under employee benefit plans. The cost of pensions and other retirement benefits earned
by employees is actuarially determined using the projected benefit method pro-rated on service and management's best
estimate of expected plan investment performance, salary escalation, retirement ages of employees and expected health 
care costs.  For the purpose of calculating the expected return on plan assets, those assets are measured at fair value.
Cameco measures the plan assets and the accrued benefit obligations on December 31 each year.

On both the Cameco-specific and BPLP-specific defined benefit pension plans, past service costs arising from plan

amendments are amortized on a straight-line basis over the expected average remaining service life of the plan 

participants. Net actuarial gains, which exceed 10% of the greater of the accrued benefit obligation and the fair value of

plan assets, are amortized on a straight-line basis over the expected average remaining service life of the plan 

participants.

On the Cameco-specific retirement benefit plans that do not vest or accumulate, past service costs arising from plan
amendments, and net actuarial gains and losses, are recognized in the period they arise. Conversely, the BPLP-specific
amounts are amortized on a straight-line basis over the expected average remaining service life of the plan participants.

(p) Stock-Based Compensation
Cameco has four stock-based compensation plans that are described in note 20.  These encompass a stock option plan, a
performance share unit plan, a deferred share unit plan and a phantom stock option plan.

Options granted under the stock option plan on or after January 1, 2003 are accounted for using the fair value method.
Under this method, the compensation cost of options granted is measured at estimated fair value at the grant date and
recognized over the shorter of, the period to eligible retirement, or the vesting period. For options granted prior to
January 1, 2003, no compensation expense was recognized when the stock options were granted. Any consideration
received on exercise of stock options is credited to share capital.

Deferred share units, performance share units and phantom stock options are amortized over their vesting periods and re-
measured at each reporting period, until settlement, using the quoted market value.

(q) Revenue Recognition
Cameco supplies uranium concentrates and uranium conversion services to utility customers.

Cameco recognizes revenue on the sale of its nuclear products when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists,
delivery occurs, the related revenue is fixed or determinable and collection is reasonably assured.

Cameco has three types of sales arrangements with its customers in its uranium and fuel services businesses. These
arrangements include uranium supply, toll conversion services and conversion supply (converted uranium), which is a
combination of uranium supply and toll conversion services.

Uranium Supply
In a uranium supply arrangement, Cameco is contractually obligated to provide uranium concentrates to its customers.
Cameco-owned uranium is physically delivered to conversion facilities (“Converters”) where the Converter will credit
Cameco’s account for the volume of accepted uranium.  Based on delivery terms in a sales contract with its customer,
Cameco instructs the Converter to transfer title of a contractually-specified quantity of uranium to the customer’s
account at the Converter’s facility.  At this point, Cameco invoices the customer and recognizes revenue for the uranium
supply.
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Toll Conversion Services
In a toll conversion arrangement, Cameco is contractually obligated to convert customer-owned uranium to a chemical
state suitable for enrichment.  The customer delivers uranium to Cameco’s conversion facilities.  Once conversion is 
complete, Cameco physically delivers converted uranium to enrichment facilities (“Enrichers”) where the Enricher will
credit Cameco’s account for the volume of accepted processed uranium.  Based on delivery terms in a sales contract with
its customer, Cameco instructs the Enricher to transfer title of a contractually-specified quantity of converted uranium to
the customer’s account at the Enricher’s facility.  At this point, Cameco invoices the customer and recognizes revenue
for the toll conversion services.

Conversion Supply
In a conversion supply arrangement, Cameco is contractually obligated to provide uranium concentrates and conversion
services to its customers. Cameco-owned uranium is converted and physically delivered to an Enricher as described in
the toll conversion services arrangement.  Based on delivery terms in a sales contract with its customer, Cameco
instructs the Enricher to transfer title of a contractually-specified quantity of converted uranium to the customer’s
account at the Enricher’s facility.  At this point, Cameco invoices the customer and recognizes revenue for both the
uranium supplied and the conversion service provided.  It is rare for Cameco to enter into back-to-back arrangements for
uranium supply and toll conversion services. However, in the event that a customer requires such an arrangement,
revenue from uranium supply is deferred until the toll conversion service has been rendered.

Revenue from deliveries to counterparties with whom Cameco has arranged a standby product loan facility (up to the
limit of the loan facilities) and the related cost of sales are deferred until the loan arrangements have been terminated, or 
if drawn upon, when the loans are repaid and that portion of the facility is terminated.

Cameco records revenue on the sale of gold when title passes and delivery is effected.

Electricity sales are recognized at the time of generation, and delivery to the purchasing utility is metered at the point of
interconnection with the transmission system. Revenues are recognized on an accrual basis, which includes an estimate 
of the value of electricity produced during the period but not yet billed.

(r) Amortization of Financing Costs
Debt discounts and issue expenses associated with long-term financing are deferred and amortized over the term of the
issues to which they relate. 

(s) Foreign Currency Translation
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Canadian dollars at year-end rates of
exchange.  Revenue and expense transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Canadian dollars at
rates in effect at the time of the transactions.  The applicable exchange gains and losses arising on these transactions are
reflected in earnings.

The United States dollar is considered the functional currency of most of Cameco’s uranium and gold operations outside
of Canada.  The financial statements of these operations are translated into Canadian dollars using the current rate
method whereby all assets and liabilities are translated at the year-end rate of exchange and all revenue and expense
items are translated at the average rate of exchange prevailing during the year.  Exchange gains and losses arising from
this translation, representing the net unrealized foreign currency translation gain (loss) on Cameco's net investment in
these foreign operations, are recorded in the cumulative translation account component of shareholders' equity.
Exchange gains or losses arising from the translation of foreign debt and preferred securities designated as hedges of a 
net investment in foreign operations are also recorded in the cumulative translation account component of shareholders'
equity. These adjustments are not included in earnings until realized through a reduction in Cameco's net investment in
such operations.
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(t) Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging Transactions
Cameco uses derivative financial and commodity instruments to reduce exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates, interest rates and commodity prices.  Cameco formally documents all relationships between hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions.  This process includes linking all derivatives to specific assets and liabilities on the balance sheet or to
specific firm commitments or forecasted transactions.  Cameco also formally assesses, both at the hedge’s inception and 
on an ongoing basis, whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items. Gains and losses related to hedging items are deferred and
recognized in the same period as the corresponding hedged items.  If derivative financial instruments are closed before
planned delivery, gains or losses are recorded as deferred gains or deferred charges and recognized on the planned
delivery date. In the event a hedged item is sold, extinguished or matures prior to the termination of the related hedging
instrument, any realized or unrealized gain or loss on such derivative instrument is recognized in earnings.

BPLP uses various energy and related sales contracts to reduce exposure to fluctuations in the price of electricity in
Ontario. Gains or losses on hedging instruments are recognized in earnings over the term of the contract when the 
underlying hedged transactions occur. All energy contracts are designated as hedges of BPLP’s electricity sales.

(u) Earnings Per Share
Earnings per share are calculated using the weighted average number of paid common shares outstanding.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share assumes that outstanding options and warrants are exercised and the
proceeds are used to repurchase shares of the company at the average market price of the shares for the period.  The
effect is to increase the number of shares used to calculate diluted earnings per share.

3. New Accounting Pronouncements
(a) Financial Instruments – Recognition and Measurement, Hedges and Comprehensive Income

In January 2005, the CICA issued three new standards: “Financial Instruments – Recognition and Measurement”,
“Hedges” and “Comprehensive Income”.  The main consequences of implementing these standards are described below.

All financial assets and liabilities will be carried at fair value in the Consolidated Balance Sheets, except for items
classified in the following categories, which will be carried at amortized cost: loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
securities and financial liabilities not held for trading.  Realized and unrealized gains and losses on financial assets and
liabilities that are held for trading will be recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings.  Unrealized gains and
losses on financial assets that are available for sale will be reported in other comprehensive income until realized, at 
which time they will be recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings. All derivatives, including embedded
derivatives that must be accounted for separately, will be recorded at fair value in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

For fair value hedges, changes in the fair value of the derivatives and corresponding changes in fair value of the hedged
items attributed to the risk being hedged will be recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings.  For cash flow
hedges, the effective portion of the changes in the fair values of the derivative instruments will be recorded in other
comprehensive income until the hedged items are recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings.

Other comprehensive income, which comprises the above items as well as unrealized exchange gains and losses on self-
sustaining foreign operations (net of hedging activities), will be included as a separate component of the new statement
entitled “Statement of Shareholders’ Equity” that will be added to the consolidated financial statements.

These new standards will apply to Cameco effective January 1, 2007.  As at January 1, 2007, Cameco will recognize all
of its financial assets and liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets according to their classification.  Any adjustment
made to a previous carrying amount will be recognized as an adjustment to the balance of retained earnings at that date
or as the opening balance of a separate item in accumulated other comprehensive income net of taxes.  Cameco is
completing its assessment of the impact these new standards will have on its consolidated financial statements.
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(b) Stock-Based Compensation
In July 2006, the Emerging Issues Committee (“EIC”) issued abstract No. 162, Stock-Based Compensation for
Employees Eligible to Retire Before the Vesting Date. This EIC clarifies that the compensation cost attributable to
options and awards, granted to employees who are eligible to retire or will become eligible to retire during the vesting
period, should be recognized immediately if the employee is eligible to retire on the grant date or over the period
between the grant date to the date the employee becomes eligible to retire. This EIC requires retroactive application to
all stock-based compensation awards accounted for in accordance with the CICA Handbook Section 3870, Stock-Based
Compensation and Other Stock-Based Payments. This differs from the current practice that recognizes the expense over
the period from the grant date to the vesting date.

The cumulative effect of the change in policy on the balance sheet at December 31, 2005 is to increase contributed
surplus by $5,945,000, and decrease retained earnings by $5,945,000. The effect of the change in policy on the statement
of earnings for the year ended December 31, 2005 was a $2,162,000 (2004 - $2,279,000) reduction in earnings (2005 - 
$0.01 per share; 2004 - $0.01 per share). The impact on 2006 financial results was negligible.

4. Inventories

2006 2005

Uranium

        Concentrate $280,650 $292,099

        Broken ore 12,946 9,661

293,596 301,760

Fuel S ervices 98,485 63,492

Gold

        Fin is hed 5,513 14,311

        Broken ore 18,885 20,112

24,398 34,423

Total $416,479 $399,675
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5. Property, Plant and Equipment

. Long-Term Receivables, Investments and Other

her property, plant and equipment to Bruce A L.P under a sublease
under the capital lease receivable are imputed using a 7.5%

discount rate. 

Cos t

Accumulated

Depreciation

and Depletion

2006

Net

2005

Net

Uranium

        M ining $2,818,849 $1,485,452 $1,333,397 $1,329,971

        Non-producing 748,442 - 748,442 577,181

Fuel S ervices 497,118 176,334 320,784 131,657

Electricity

        A s s ets  under capital leas e 164,300 52,400 111,900 121,200

        Other 514,521 114,518 400,003 399,245

Gold

        M ining 912,948 559,071 353,877 277,485

        Non-producing 2,876 - 2,876 2,877

Other 65,567 24,694 40,873 31,721

Total $5,724,621 $2,412,469 $3,312,152 $2,871,337

6

2006 2005

BPLP [note 19]

        Capital leas e receivable from Bruce A  L.P. $97,518 $97,454

        Receivable from Ontario  Power Generation ("OPG") 11,281 19,181

        A ccrued pens ion benefit as s et [note 21] 11,992 18,119

Kumtor Gold  Company ("KGC")

        Reclamation trus t fund 6,999 5,087

Inves tments  in  as s ociated  companies

        Inves tment in  UNOR Inc. (market value $14,452) 8,893 -

        Inves tment in  UEX Corporation (market value $219,548) 19,151 11,303

Deferred charges

        Cos t of s ales  [notes  9, 2(q)] 75,854 -

        Debt is s ue cos ts 7,372 8,538

        Gold  hedges 593 3,291

Inves tment in  Huron W ind L.P. 2,340 2,527

A dvances  receivable 46,094 21,928

A ccrued pens ion benefit as s et [note 21] 7,889 9,689

Other 6,483 7,933

302,459 205,050

Les s  current portion (8,745) (8,303)

Net $293,714 $196,747

BPLP leases the Bruce A nuclear generating plants and ot
agreement.  Future minimum base rent sublease payments
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7.

On September 25, 2003 the company issued unsecured convertible debentures in the amount of $230,000,000. The
debentures bear interest at 5% per annum, mature on October 1, 2013, and at the holder's option are convertible into common
shares of Cameco. The fair value of the conversion option associated with the convertible debentures on the date of issuance
was $30,473,000, resulting in an effective interest rate of 6.85%.  The amount is reflected as contributed surplus. The
conversion price is $10.83 per share, a rate of approximately 92.3 common shares per $1,000 of convertible debentures.
Interest is payable semi-annually in arrears on April 1 and October 1. The debentures are redeemable by the company
beginning October 1, 2008 at a redemption price of par plus accrued and unpaid interest.

The fair value of the outstanding convertible debentures is based on the quoted market price of the debentures at December
31, 2006 and was approximately $957,000,000.

Cameco has $300,000,000 outstanding in senior unsecured debentures (Series C).  These debentures bear interest at a rate of
4.7% per annum and mature September 16, 2015.  Cameco had $100,000,000 outstanding in senior unsecured debentures
(Series A) that bore interest at a rate of 6.9% per annum and were to mature July 12, 2006.  Cameco also had $50,000,000
outstanding in senior unsecured debentures (Series B) that bore interest at a rate of 7.0% per annum and were to mature July
6, 2006.  On January 17, 2006, Cameco redeemed in full the Series A and B debentures.  The redemption prices under the
trust indenture were based on the yield for a Government of Canada bond with the equivalent term to maturity plus 25 basis
points for the Series A debentures and 34 basis points for the Series B debentures. The total redemption price was
$152,104,000 plus accrued and unpaid interest.

Cameco has a $500,000,000 unsecured revolving credit facility that is available until November 30, 2011. Cameco may also
borrow directly in the commercial paper market.  These amounts, when drawn, are classified as long-term debt.

Cameco has $597,080,000 ($169,320,000 (Cdn) and $367,081,000 (US)) in letter of credit facilities.  The majority of the
outstanding letters of credit at December 31, 2006 relate to future decommissioning and reclamation liabilities [note 8] and
amounted to $213,069,000 ($137,236,000 (Cdn) and $65,076,000 (US)) (2005 - $206,647,000 ($133,522,000 (Cdn) and
$62,720,000 (US))).  At December 31, 2006 there were no amounts outstanding under the $300,000,000 (US) letter of credit
facility that related to the standby product loan facilities.

BPLP holds a long-term lease with OPG to operate the Bruce nuclear power facility.  The term of the lease, which expires in
2018, is 18 years with an option to extend the lease for up to an additional 25 years. 

BPLP has a $150,000,000 revolving credit facility that is available until July 21, 2008 as well as a $30,000,000 letter of
credit facility.  As at December 31, 2006, BPLP did not have any amount outstanding under these facilities. 

Long-Term Debt

2006 2005

Convertib le debentures $207,091 $204,577

Debentures 300,000 450,000

Capital leas e obligation - BPLP [note 19] 197,500 204,231

704,591 858,808

Les s  current portion (7,900) (156,699)

Net $696,691 $702,109
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The table below represents currently scheduled maturities of long-term debt over the next five years. 

by

ucts at December 31, 2006 and

8.

nancial
s of credit to satisfy current regulatory requirements.

Standby Product Loan Facilities 

2007 $7,900

2008 8,848

2009 10,112

2010 11,692

2011 13,272

Thereafter 652,767

Total $704,591

Cameco has arranged for standby product loan facilities with two Cameco customers. The arrangements, which were
finalized in 2006, allow Cameco to borrow up to 5,560,000 pounds U3O8 equivalent over the period 2006 to 2008 with
repayment in 2008 and 2009. Of this material, up to 1,400,000 kilograms of uranium can be borrowed in the form of UF6.
Under the loan facilities, standby fees of 0.5% to 2.25% are payable based on the market value of the facilities, and interest is
payable on the market value of any amounts drawn at rates ranging from 4.0% to 5.0%. Any borrowings will be secured 
letters of credit and are payable in kind.

he market value of the available facilities is based on the quoted market price of the prodT
was approximately $416,000,000 (US). As at December 31, 2006, the company did not have any loan amounts outstanding 
under the facilities. 

Provision for Reclamation
Cameco's estimates of future asset retirement obligations are based on reclamation standards that satisfy regulatory
requirements. Elements of uncertainty in estimating these amounts include potential changes in regulatory requirements,
decommissioning and reclamation alternatives and amounts to be recovered from other parties.

Cameco estimates total future decommissioning and reclamation costs for its operating assets to be $312,600,000. These
estimates are reviewed by Cameco technical personnel as required by regulatory agencies or more frequently as 
circumstances warrant. In connection with future decommissioning and reclamation costs, Cameco has provided fi
ssurances of $209,500,000 in the form of lettera

Following is a reconciliation of the total liability for asset retirement obligations:

2006 2005 2004

Balance, beginning of year $167,568 $166,941 $150,444

A cquis ition of Zircatec in teres t [note 23] 7,129 - -

A dditions  to  liabilities 50,299 579 2,074

34) (2,031) (5,318)

852

$166,941

Liabilities  s ettled (6,420) (6,938) (4,357)

A ccretion expens e 9,954 9,017 9,246

mpact of foreign exchange (I

A cquis ition  of Kumtor in teres t - - 14,

Balance, end of year $228,496 $167,568
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Following is a summary of the key assumptions on which the carrying amount of the asset retirement obligations is based:

(i) Total undiscounted amount of the estimated cash flows - $312,600,000. 
(ii) Expected timing of payment of the cash flows - timing is based on life of mine plans. The majority of expenditures are

expected to occur after 2013. 
(iii) Discount rates – 5.25% to 7.50% for operations in North America; 8.00% for operations in Kyrgyzstan; 8.50% for

operations in Mongolia.

The asset retirement obligations liability is comprised of:

9.

90,789 44,923

1,072

568

2006 2005

Uranium $118,272 $101,573

Under the BPLP lease agreement, OPG, as the owner of the Bruce nuclear plants, is responsible to decommission the Bruce
facility and to provide funding and meet other requirements that the Canadian Nuclear Safety Commission (“CNSC”) may 
equire of BPLP as licensed operator of th

Gold 19,435 2

Total $228,496 $167,

Fuel Services

r e Bruce facility.  OPG is also responsible to manage radioactive waste associated
with decommissioning of the Bruce nuclear plants. 

Other Liabilities

2006 2005

-

71

12,166 7,403

Zircatec acquis ition holdback [note 23] 20,000 -

9

710 14,564

263,251 142,334

Les s  current portion (30,881) (43,725)

Net $232,370 $98,609

Deferred s ales  [notes  6, 2(q)] $107,330 $

Deferred currency hedges 26,333 26,1

A ccrued pos t-retirement benefit liability  [note 21]

BPLP

        A ccrued pos t-retirement benefit liability  [note 21] 86,856 78,14

        Deferred revenue - electricity  contracts 856 16,047

Other 9,
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10.
Authorized share capital:

mmon shares, and

) Common Shares

(b) Class B Share
One Class B share issued during 1988 and assigned $1 of share capital, entitles the shareholder to vote separately as a 
class in respect of any proposal to locate the head office of Cameco to a place not in the province of Saskatchewan.

(c) Contributed Surplus

11. Cumulative Translation Account
The balance represents the cumulative unrealized net exchange loss on Cameco's net investments in foreign operations and
any foreign currency debt designated as hedges of the net investments.

063

  Debenture convers ions 64 175 -

  Stock option plan  [note 20] 33,361 28,100 40,082

Is s ued s hare capital 812,845 779,420 751,145

Les s  loans  receivable (76) (385) (586)

End of year $812,769 $779,035 $750,559

Share Capital

Unlimited number of first preferred shares
Unlimited number of second preferred shares
Unlimited number of voting co
One Class B share

(a

Number Is s ued (Num ber o f Shares) 2006 2005 2004

Beginning of year 349,570,048 346,080,138 340,616,538

Is s ued:

  Debenture convers ions 5,905 16,150 -

  Stock option plan  [note 20] 2,716,679 3,473,760 5,463,600

Is s ued s hare capital 352,292,632 349,570,048 346,080,138

Amount 2006 2005 20

Beginning of year $779,420 $751,145 $711,

Is s ued:

04

(as adjust ed -

no t e 3 (b))

2006 2005

ar

y  reported $523,300 $511,674

    Change in  accounting policy  for s tock-bas ed compens ation [note 3] 5,945 3,783

    A s  adjus ted $529,245 $515,457

Stock-bas ed compens ation [note 20] 17,549 16,913

Options  exercis ed [note 20] (6,612) (3,102)

Debenture convers ions (9) (23)

End of year $540,173 $529,245

Beginning of ye

    A s  previous l
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12. Cigar Lake Remediation
ow at Cigar Lake, Cameco recorded an expense of $20,559,000. Of the amount recorded,

15 while $5,203,000 related to remediation efforts.  Future costs associated with
e

n board of directors approved a new plan for the remediation and continued development of the Cigar
Lake uranium project. Cameco’s share of additional development costs is estimated to be $274 million, bringing the total
construction costs to develop the project to $508 million. In addition, Cameco expects to incur remediation expenses of $32
million in 2007 and $9 million in 2008. The new plan is subject to the approval of the partners of the Cigar Lake Joint
Venture.

13. Interest and Other

r Income (Expense)

As a result of the water infl
$ ,356,000 related to the write-down of assets
th remediation will be expensed as incurred.

O March 16, 2007, the

2006 2005 2004

Interest on long-term debt $43,223 $35,388 $40,014

Redemption of preferred securities - - 6,817

Other interest and financing charges 4,642 1,600 3,870

Foreign exchange losses 1,413 3,719 331

(Gains) losses on derivatives 10,400 7,754 (7,217)

Interest income (32,348) (10,517) (4,819)

Capitalized interest (31,038) (25,841) (24,732)

Net $(3,708) $12,103 $14,264

14. Gain on Sale of Assets 

2006 2005 2004

Interes t in  Fort a la Corne Joint Venture $(44,782) $             - $             -

a Corne Joint Venture (5,889) (161) -

(1,155) (1,578) (1,958)

Voting rights  in  Fort a l

therO

Net $(51,826) $(1,739) $(1,958)

15. Othe

2006 2005 2004

Ins urance s ettlement (Kumtor) $15,366 $             - $             -

Equity  in  earnings  (los s ) of as s ociated  companies (5,320) 184 990

Sale of inves tment in  Energy Res ources  A us tralia Ltd - 83,673 -

Dividends  on portfo lio  inves tments - 2,022 1,383

W ritedown of portfo lio  inves tments - (6,323) -

Res tructuring of Bruce Power - (93,545) -

Res tructuring of gold  bus ines s - - 122,946

South  Texas  Project break fee - - 8,102

Net $10,046 $(13,989) $133,421
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16. Income Taxes
The significant components of future income tax assets and liabilities at December 31 are as follows:

2006 2005

The provision for income taxes differs from the amount computed by applying the combined expected federal and provincial
income tax rate to earnings before income taxes.  The reasons for these differences are as follows:

3,618

  Other 37,031 53,691

  Future income tax as s ets  before valuation allowance 307,183 271,033

  Valuation allowance (128,771) (112,519)

  Future income tax as s ets , net of valuation allowance $178,412 $158,514

Liabilities

  Property , p lant and equipment $502,579 $571,585

  Inventories 18,935 12,100

  Long-term inves tments  and other 42,638 93,681

  Future income tax liabilities $564,152 $677,366

  Net future income tax liabilities $385,740 $518,852

  Les s  current portion (46,289) (73,910)

$339,451 $444,942

As s ets

  Property , p lant and equipment $173,774 $129,823

  Provis ion for reclamation 65,234 53,901

  Foreign exploration and  development 31,144 3

(as adjust ed - (as adjust ed -

no t e 3 (b)) no t e 3 (b))

2006 2005 2004

axes  and minority  in teres t $345,426 $272,464 $377,243

  Combined federal and provincial tax rate 39.3% 42.4% 43.5%

Computed income tax expens e 135,752 115,525 164,101

Increas e (decreas e) in  taxes  res ulting from:

  Reduction in  income tax rates (66,749) - -

  Provincial royalties  and  other taxes 1,092 3,079 5,541

  Federal res ource allowance (6,617) (8,181) 2,251

  M anufacturing and proces s ing deduction (5,719) (1,321) (7,439)

  Difference between Canadian rate and rates

     applicable to  s ubs idiaries  in  o ther countries (133,988) (91,049) (61,398)

  Non-taxable portion of capital gain - (10,300) (28,448)

  Change in  valuation allowance 19,126 17,019 (11,185)

  Capital and other taxes 2,296 8,602 5,780

  Stock-bas ed compens ation plans 6,700 7,037 4,119

mendment of tax treatment (16,950) (10,342) -

(3,786) 188 (37)

Income tax expens e (recovery) $(68,843) $30,257 $73,285

Earnings  before income t

  Recovery of taxes  due to  a

  Other tax deductions
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During 2006, the federal and provincial governments enacted amendments to current tax legislation, which provided for a 
rate tax rates. The cumulative effect of the change in income tax legislation on Cameco’s future income tax

liability was a reduction of $73,000,000.

In addition, confirmation was received with respect to deductibility of the Saskatchewan provincial resource surcharge for
years prior to 2001. As a result, a $16,950,000 reduction of future taxes was recorded.

7.

2006 2005 2004

Changes  in  non-cas h working capital:

     A ccounts  receivable $36,180 $(78,552) $4,660

     Inventories (63,623) (21,079) (51,913)

     Supplies  and prepaid  expens es (38,393) (22,282) (16,629)

     A ccounts  payable and accrued liabilities 58,258 44,381 39,083

Hedge pos ition s ettlements 32,113 43,571 3,634

Bruce Power dis tributions - 83,740 -

Other 10,840 (11,262) (1,501)

Total $35,375 $38,517 $(22,666)

reduction in corpo

2006 2005 2004

Earnings  before income taxes  and minority  in teres t

   Canada $(17,703) $(94,978) $202,518

   Foreign 363,129 367,442 174,725

$345,426 $272,464 $377,243

Current income taxes

   Canada $91,730 $53,719 $34,486

   Foreign 24,066 28,261 7,741

$115,796 $81,980 $42,227

Future income taxes  (recovery)

   Canada $(167,189) $(56,923) $38,153

   Foreign (17,450) 5,200 (7,095)

$(184,639) $(51,723) $31,058

57 $73,285Income tax expens e (recovery) $(68,843) $30,2

1 Statements of Cash Flows
Other Operating Items
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18.

are comprised of:

Uranium joint ventures allocate uranium production to each joint venture participant and the joint venture participant derives
revenue directly from the sale of such product.  Mining and milling expenses incurred by the joint venture are included in the
cost of inventory. At December 31, 2006, Cameco’s share of property, plant and equipment in these joint ventures amounted
to $1,862,000,000 (2005 - $1,714,000,000) [note 5].

Cameco previously accounted for its investment in BPLP using the equity method. As a result of the restructuring of the
partnership agreement, which provides for joint control among the three major partners, Cameco began accounting for this 
investment as a joint venture effective November 1, 2005 [note 19].

19. Investment in BPLP 
 (a) Restructuring

On October 31, 2005, a new Bruce A limited partnership was formed to hold the lease for the four Bruce A reactors.
Cameco was not part of this new partnership but it has maintained its existing 31.6% interest in BPLP, which retained
ownership of the four Bruce B reactors.  BPLP received an initial payment for the assets transferred to the Bruce A
partnership which resulted in a special distribution to the partners.  Cameco’s share of the special distribution was
$200,000,000.  The reorganization involving Bruce A triggered a loss of about $62,000,000 (Cameco’s share after tax) 

to the existing partnership agreement.  These amendments led to joint control among the
esult, effective November 1, 2005, Cameco has proportionately consolidated its 31.6%

interest. Prior to November 1, 2005, Cameco was using the equity method to account for this investment.

(b) Fuel Supply Agreements
Cameco has entered into fuel supply agreements with BPLP for the procurement of fabricated fuel. Under these
agreements, Cameco will supply uranium and conversion services and finance the purchase of fabrication services.
Contract terms are at market rates and on normal trade terms. During 2006, sales of uranium and conversion services to
BPLP amounted to $41,650,000 (2005 - $22,017,000), approximately 2.3% (2005 – 1.7%) of Cameco’s total revenue. At
December 31, 2006, amounts receivable under these agreements totalled $15,055,000 (2005 - $26,666,000). 

(c) Supplementary Information
Since November 1, 2005, Cameco has proportionately consolidated its share of BPLP. For 2005, $114,000,000 of
earnings before taxes was accounted for under the equity method.  The following tables represent Cameco’s
proportionate share of BPLP. 

Joint Ventures
Cameco conducts a portion of its exploration, development, mining and milling activities through joint ventures. Cameco’s
significant uranium joint venture interests

Producing:

        M cA rthur River 69.81%

        Key Lake 83.33%

Non-producing:

        Cigar Lake 50.03%

        Inkai 60.00%

and resulted in amendments
three major partners. As a r
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Balance Sheets

ments of Cash Flows

20. Sto
Sto
Cam ion plan under which options to purchase common shares may be granted to directors,
officers and other employees of Cameco.  Options granted under the stock option plan have an exercise price of not less than
the closing price quoted on the TSX for the common shares of Cameco on the trading day prior to the date on which the
option is granted.  The options vest over three years and expire eight years from the date granted. Options granted prior to
1999 expire 10 years from the date of the grant of the option. Options have not been awarded to directors since 2003.

$677 $692

(M illions) 2006 2005

Current as s ets $129 $133

Property , p lant and equipment 417 415

Long-term receivables  and inves tments 131 144

$677 $692

Current liabilities $100 $98

Long-term liabilities 358 354

458 452

Equity 219 240

Statements of Earnings 

(M illions) 2006 2005 2004

4

128

21

7

Revenue $393 $565 $49

Operating cos ts 256 380 366

Earnings  before in teres t and taxes 137 185

Interes t 14 21

Los s  on res tructuring - 47 -

Earnings  before taxes $123 $117 $10

State

(M illions) 2006 2005 20

Cas h provided by operations $163 $244 $140

Cas h provided by (us ed in) inves ting (38) 103

04

(114)

(143) (328) (33)

ck-Based Compensation Plans 
ck Option Plan 

stablished a stock opt

Cas h us ed in  financing

eco has e
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Prio ts were eligible to receive loans from Cameco to assist in the purchase of common shares pursuant to
the exercise of options.  The maximum term of the loans was 10 years from the date of the grant of the related option.  The
loans bear interest at a rate equivalent to the regular dividends paid on the common shares to which the loans were provided.
Common shares purchased by way of a company loan are held in escrow in the account of the option holder and are pledged
as security for the respective loan until the loan has been repaid in full. Outstanding loans are shown as a reduction of share
capital [note 10].

The aggregate number of common shares that may be issued pursuant to the Cameco stock option plan shall not exceed
43,017,198, of which 22,329,713 shares have been issued.

Stock option transactions for the respective years were as follows:

Total options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2006 were as follows: 

going options have expiry dates ranging from March 3, 2007 to December 8, 2015. 

r to 1999, participan

(Num ber o f Opt ions) 2006 2005 2004

Beginning of year 8,723,170 9,737,340 12,240,000

Options  granted 1,537,330 2,631,180 4,170,000

Options  exercis ed [note 10] (2,716,679) (3,473,760) (5,463,600)

Options  cancelled (153,768) (171,590) (1,209,060)

End of year 7,390,053 8,723,170 9,737,340

Exercis able 3,088,841 2,859,318 3,253,800

Upon exercise of certain existing options, additional options in respect of 55,000 shares would be granted.

Weighted average exercise prices were as follows:

The fore

2006 Options  Outs tanding Options  Exercis able

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Remaining Exercis able Exercis able

Number Life Price Number Price

4

Option Price Per S hare

$3.13 - 4.81 228,200 2 $4.23 228,200 $4.23

4.82 - 10.51 3,622,280 5 8.43 2,388,296 7.78

10.52 - 41.00 3,539,573 8 32.69 472,345 27.0

7,390,053 3,088,841

2006 2005 2004

Beginning of year $13.29 $7.64 $6.71

Options  granted 41.04 27.11 11.42

Options  exercis ed 9.84 7.16 7.20

Op ns  cancelled 32.92 28.79 13.17

En $19.92 $13.29 $7.64

Exercis able $10.46 $6.93 $6.27

tio

d of year
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CICA Handbook Section 3870, Stock-based Compensation and Other Stock-based Payments, establishes a fair value based
method of accounting for stock-based compensation plans which Cameco has adopted effective January 1, 2003.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, Cameco has recorded compensation expense of $17,549,000 (2005 - $16,913,000; 
2004 - $9,485,000) with an offsetting credit to contributed surplus to reflect the estimated fair value of stock options granted
to employees.

Executive Performance Share Unit (PSU), Deferred Share Unit (DSU), and Other Plans
ommencing in 2005, Cameco provides each planned participant an annual grant of PSUs in an amount determined by the

ameco common
hare purchased on the open market, or cash at the board’s discretion, at the end of each three-year period if certain

nal value of the PSUs will be based on the value of Cameco common
shares at the end of the three-year period and the number of PSUs that ultimately vest. Vesting of PSUs at the end of the
three-year period will be based on total shareholder return over the three years, Cameco’s ability to meet its annual cash flow
from operations targets and whether the participating executive remains employed by Cameco at the end of the three-year
vesting period.  As of December 31, 2006, the total PSUs held by the participants was 292,150 (2005 - 196,200).

Cameco offers a deferred share unit plan to non-employee directors. A DSU is a notional unit that reflects the market value
of a single common share of Cameco. In 2006, 60% of each director’s annual retainer was paid in DSUs.  In addition, on an
annual basis directors can elect to receive the remaining 40% of their annual retainer and any additional fees in the form of 
DSUs. Each DSU fully vests upon award. The DSUs will be redeemed for cash upon a director leaving the board.  The
redemption amount will be based upon the weighted average of the closing prices of the common shares of Cameco on the
TSX for the last 20 trading days prior to the redemption date multiplied by the number of DSUs held by the director.  As of
December 31, 2006, the total DSUs held by participating directors was 299,928 (2005 - 281,766). 

s in the form of phantom stock options.
 granted under the phantom stock option

plan have an award value equal to the closing price quoted on the TSX for the common shares of Cameco on the trading day
prior to the date on which the option is granted.  The options vest over three years and expire eight years from the date
granted.  As of December 31, 2006, the number of options held by participating employees was 383,181 (2005 - 443,760)
with exercise prices ranging from $4.81 to $41.00 per share (2005 - $4.81 to $27.04) and a weighted average exercise price
of $18.63 (2005 - $12.12).

The fair value of the options issued was determined using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following
assumptions:

2006 2005 2004

Number of options  gran ted 1,537,330 2,631,180 4,170,000

A verage s trike price $41.04 $27.11 $11.42

Expected dividend $0.16 $0.12 $0.10

Expected volatility 35% 34% 37%

Ris k-free in teres t rate 4.0% 3.5% 3.3%

Expected life of option 4 years 4 years 4 years

Expected forfeitures 15% 15% 15%

W eighted average grant date fair values $13.19 $8.36 $3.39

C
board.  Each PSU represents one phantom common share that entitles the participant to a payment of one C
s
performance and vesting criteria have been met. The fi

Cameco makes annual grants of bonuses to eligible non-North American employee
Employees receive the equivalent value of shares in cash when exercised. Options
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Cameco has recognized the following amounts for these plans:

2006 2005 2004

Performance s hare units $4,884 $2,011              $    -

Deferred s hare units 3,206 4,089 1,896

Phantom s tock options 5,212 8,537 4,376

21.
ins both defined benefit and defined contribution plans providing pension and post-retirement benefits to

substantially all of its employees.

Under the defined pension benefit plans, Cameco provides benefits to retirees based on their length of service and final
average earnings.  The non-pension post-retirement plan covers such benefits as group life and supplemental health
insurance, to eligible employees and their dependents.  The costs related to the non-pension post-retirement plans are charged
to earnings in the period during which the employment services are rendered.  However, these future obligations are not
funded.

Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefits
Cameco mainta

The effective date for the most recent valuations for funding purposes on the pension benefit plans is January 1, 2006. The
next planned effective date for valuation for funding purposes of the pension benefit plans is set to be January 1, 2009.  The
status of the defined plans is as follows:

(a) Accrued Benefit Obligation

Pens ion Benefit Plans Other Benefit Plans

006 2005

226

64

-

(176)

2006 2005 2

Balance at beginning  of year $15,926 $16,478 $7,403 $4,460

Current s ervice cos t 1,028 803 487

Interes t cos t 872 849 544 271

A ctuarial los s 6,056 - 395 2,3

Plan amendments - - 588 258

A cquis ition of Zircatec in teres t [note 23] - - 3,116

Benefits  paid (611) (2,199) (367)

(b) Plan Assets

Foreign exchange rate changes 1 (5) - -

$23,272 $15,926 $12,166 $7,403

Pens ion Benefit Plans

2006 2005

Fair value at beginning of year $23,403 $23,201

A ctual return  on plan as s ets 1,569 1,337

Employer contributions 51 1,064

Benefits  paid (611) (2,199)

Fair value at end of year $24,412 $23,403
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(d) Net Pension Expense

Plan assets consist of:

Pens ion Benefit Plans

2006 2005

A s s et Category (i)

     Equity  s ecurities 34% 32%

     Bonds 23% 20%

     Other (ii) 43% 48%

Total 100% 100%

(i) The defined benefit plan assets contain no material amounts of related party assets at December 31, 2006 and 20
respectively.

05

(ii) Relates to the value of the refundable tax account held by the Canada Revenue Agency. The refundable total is
approximately equal to half of the sum of the realized investment income plus employer contributions less half
the benefits paid by the plan.

(c) Funded Status Reconciliation 

Pens ion Benefit Plans Other Benefit Plans

A ccrued benefit obligation 23,272 15,926 12,166 7,403

Funded s tatus  of p lans  - s urplus  (deficit) 1,140 7,477 (12,166) (7,403)

Unamortized net actuarial los s 6,509 1,249 - -

Unamortized trans itional obligation 240 963 - -

A ccrued benefit as s et (liability) [notes  6, 9] $7,889 $9,689 $(12,166) $(7,403)

2006 2005 2006 2005

Fair value of p lan  as s ets $24,412 $23,403 $        - $        -

2006 2005 2004

Current s ervice cos t $1,028 $803 $806

Interes t cos t 872 849 1,031

A ctual return  on plan as s ets (1,569) (1,337) (885)

6,056 - -

o  recognize the long-term

  nature of employee future benefit cos ts 6,387 315 952

Difference between actual and expected return  on plan as s ets 796 491 60

Difference between actuarial los s  recognized for year and

 actual actuarial los s  on accrued benefit obligation for year (6,056) - 87

A mortization of trans itional obligation 723 706 694

Defined benefit pens ion expens e 1,850 1,512 1,793

Defined contribution  pens ion expens e 8,973 6,569 5,418

Net pens ion expens e $10,823 $8,081 $7,211

A ctuarial los s

Balance prior to  adjus tments  t
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2006 2005 2004

Significant as s umptions  at December 31

      Dis count rate 5.3% 5.3% 6.5%

      Rate of compens ation increas e 4.5% 4.5% 4.5%

      Long-term rate of return  on as s ets 6.3% 7.0% 7.0%

(e) Other Post-Retirement Benefit Expense (Gain)

2006 2005 2004

Cu rent s ervice cos t $487 $226 $186

Int res t cos t 544 271 271

r

e

6)

Oth xpens e $2,014 $3,119 $1,203

2006 2005 2004

Significant as s umptions  at December 31

Dis count rate 5.1% 5.3% 6.5%

Initial health  care cos t trend rate 10% 11% 11%

Cos t trend rate declines  to 6% 6% 6%

Year the rate reaches  its  final level 2011 2011 2008

A ctuarial (gain) los s 395 2,364 (2

Plan amendment cos ts 588 258 772

er pos t-retirement benefit e

(f) Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefits Cash Payments

BPLP

BPLP has a funded registered pension plan and an unfunded supplemental pension plan. The funded plan is a contributory,
defined benefit plan covering all employees up to the limits imposed by the Income Tax Act. The supplemental pension plan
is a non-contributory, defined benefit plan covering all employees with respect to benefits that exceed the limits under the 
Income Tax Act.  These plans are based on years of service and final average salary. 

BPLP also has other post-retirement benefit and other post-employment benefit plans that provide for group life insurance,
health care and long-term disability benefits.  These plans are non-contributory.

The effective date for the most recent valuations for funding purposes on the pension benefit plans is January 1, 2004. The
next planned effective date for valuation for funding purposes of the pension benefit plans is set to be January 1, 2007.  The
status of Cameco’s proportionate share (31.6%) of the defined plans is as follows:

2006 2005 2004

mployer contributions  to  funded pens ion plans $51 $1,599 $567

Benefits  paid  for unfunded benefit p lans 367 176 132

Cas h contributions  to  defined contribution plans 8,973 6,569 5,418

Total cas h payments  for employee future benefits $9,391 $8,344 $6,117

E
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(a) Funded Status Reconciliation 

k tolerance.  Pension assets are invested in a diversified
f the plan participants.  Rebalancing will take place on a monthly

asis if outside of 3% of the target asset allocation.

(i) The defined benefit plan assets contain no material amounts of related party assets at December 31, 2006.

(c) Net Pension Expense

Pens ion Benefit Plans Other Benefit Plans

2006 2005 2006 2005

Fair value of p lan  as s ets $605,789 $526,188 $        - $        -

A ccrued benefit obligation 800,050 658,690 141,746 67,103

Funded s tatus  of p lans  - deficit (194,261) (132,502) (141,746) (67,103)

Unrecognized prior s ervice cos t - - 5,856 -

Unamortized net actuarial (gain) los s 206,253 150,621 49,034 (11,046)

A ccrued benefit as s et (liability) [notes  6, 9] $11,992 $18,119 $(86,856) $(78,149)

(b) Pension Asset Categories

The assets of the pension plan are managed on a going concern basis subject to legislative restrictions. The plan’s
investment policy is to maximize returns within an acceptable ris
manner with consideration given to the demographics o
b

As s et Allocation Target Allocation

2006 2005 2006 2005

A s s et Category (i)

     Equity  s ecurities 71% 70% 70% 70%

     Fixed income 28% 29% 30% 30%

     Cas h 1% 1% 0% 0%

Total 100% 100% 100% 100%

2006 2005

Current s ervice cos t $24,229 $3,099

Interes t cos t 35,406 5,301

(64,194) (12,425)

89,119 18,412

ance prior to  adjus tments  to  recognize the long-term

  nature of employee future benefit cos ts 84,560 14,387

0)

Net pens ion expens e $28,917 $3,704

A ctual return  on plan as s ets

A ctuarial los s

Bal

Difference between actual and expected return  on plan as s ets 25,679 7,157

Difference between actuarial los s  recognized and actual actuarial

 los s  on accrued benefit obligation for year (81,322) (17,84
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(d) Other Benefit Plans Expense

A one percentage point increase or decrease in assumed health care cost trend rate would have the following effect:

(e) Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefits Cash Payments

 pension plan were $12,500,000 for 2006 (2005 - $800,000). BPLP’s expected contributions
 year ended December 31, 2007 are approximately $33,180,000 for the pension benefit plans. 

2006 2005

Significant as s umptions  at December 31

      Dis count rate 5.0% 5.3%

      Rate of compens ation increas e 3.5% 3.5%

      Long-term rate of return  on as s ets 7.0% 7.3%

2006 2005

Current s ervice cos t $6,304 $555

Interes t cos t 4,394 550

Pas t s ervice cos t 5,856 -

A ctuarial los s 59,563 1,935

Balance prior to  adjus tments  to  recognize the long-term

  nature of employee fu ture benefit cos ts 76,117 3,040

Difference between actual and recognized pas t s ervice

  cos ts  for year (5,856) -

Difference between actuarial gain  recognized and actual

  actuarial los s  on accrued benefit obligation for year (59,931) (2,227)

Other benefit plans expens e $10,330 $813

2006 2005

10.0% 10.0%

4.5%

2011

Significant as s umptions  at December 31

  Dis count rate 5.0% 5.1%

  Rate of compens ation increas e 3.5% 3.5%

  In itial health  care cos t trend rate

  Cos t trend rate declines  to 5.0%

  Year the rate reaches  its  final level 2018

Increas e Decreas e

Effect on December 31, 2006 obligation $23,892 $(19,986)

A ggregate of 2006 current s ervice cos t and in teres t cos t 1,655 (1,335)

2006 2005

Employer contributions  to  funded pens ion plans $21,665 $             -

Benefits  paid  for unfunded benefit p lans 1,705 189

Total cas h payments  for employee future benefits $23,370 $189

Benefits paid by the funded
for the
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The following are estimated future benefit payments, which reflect expected future service:

22. Goodwill
The acquisitions undertaken as part of the gold restructuring in 2004 were accounted for using the purchase method whereby
assets and liabilities assumed were recorded at their fair market value as of the date of acquisition.  The excess of the
purchase price over such fair value was recorded as goodwill.

Cameco tests goodwill for possible impairment on an annual basis and at any other time if an event occurs or circumstances
change that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below its carrying amount. During the third
quarter of 2006, Cameco completed the goodwill impairment test for all reporting units.  The results of this test indicated

The amount allocated to intangible assets relates to the intellectual property of the business. It is amortized over the
estimated production profile of the business and during 2006, $4,800,000 of the intangible asset was amortized.

24. Commitments and Contingencies
(a) Cameco signed a toll-conversion agreement with British Nuclear Fuels plc (BNFL) to acquire uranium UF6 conversion

services from BNFL's Springfields plant in Lancashire, United Kingdom. Under the 10-year agreement, BNFL is 

6 for Cameco.

Pens ion Benefit Plans Other Benefit Plans

2007 $9,900 $3,100

2008 13,200 3,500

2009 16,700 4,000

2010 20,600 4,600

2011 24,500 5,100

2012 to  2016 184,500 34,300

there was no impairment.

23. Acquisition of Interest in Zircatec Precision Industries, Inc. 
Effective February 1, 2006, Cameco acquired a 100% interest in Zircatec Precision Industries, Inc. for $108,884,000.
Zircatec’s primary business is manufacturing nuclear fuel bundles for sale to companies that generate electricity from Candu
reactors. The acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method and the results of operations are included in the 
consolidated financial statements from February 1, 2006.

The values assigned to the net assets acquired were as follows:

Cas h and other working capital $20,738

Tangible as s ets 30,928

Intangible as s ets 118,819

(40,836)

Net liabilities (20,765)

Net as s ets  acquired $108,884

Financed by:

   Cas h $88,884

000

$108,884

Future income taxes

   Holdback [note 9] 20,

obligated to annually convert a base quantity of five million kgU as UO3 to UF
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(b) The legal action commenced by Mountain West Mines Inc. was dismissed and there was n
Cameco’s wholly owned subsidiary, Power Resources Inc.

o financial impact on 

(c) On February 12, 2004, Cameco, Cameco Bruce Holdings II Inc., BPC Generation Infrastructure Trust and TransCanada
Pipelines Limited (collectively, the "Consortium") sent a letter to British Energy Limited and British Energy
International Holdings Limited (collectively, "BE") requesting, amongst other things, indemnification for breach of a 
representation and warranty contained in the February 14, 2003 Amended and Restated Master Purchase Agreement.
The alleged breach is that the Unit 8 steam generators were not "in good condition, repair and proper working order,
having regard to their use and age."  This defect was discovered during a planned outage conducted just after closing.
As a result of this defect, the planned outage had to be significantly extended.  The Consortium has claimed damages in
the amount of $64,558,200 being 79.8% of the $80,900,000 of damages actually incurred, plus an unspecified amount to
take into account the reduced operating life of the steam generators.  A decision to proceed with arbitration has been
made but formal commencement of proceedings has not taken place because counsel for the Consortium and BE have
yet to agree on the composition of the arbitration panel.

ipation of this claim, BE issued on February 10, 2006 and then served on Ontario Power Generation Inc. and

e
erest amongst other things. This action is in abeyance

pending further developments on the Unit 8 steam generator arbitration.

 in the Mongolian national arbitration court against Centerra Gold Mongolia LLC alleging non-
performance of an agreement in relation to the Gatsuurt property. The claimant seeks the transfer to it of the principal

 is not determinable at this time.  Management

uces
he Sublease Agreement, Bruce A L.P. will participate in its 

(f) Cameco, TransCanada and BPC have assumed the obligations to provide financial guarantees on behalf of BPLP.
Cameco has provided the following financial assurances, with varying terms that range from 2004 to 2018:

i) Licensing assurances to Canadian Nuclear Safety Commission of up to $133,300,000. At December 31, 2006, 
Cameco’s actual exposure under these assurances was $23,700,000.

ii) Guarantees to customers under power sales agreements of up to $74,000,000. At December 31, 2006, Cameco’s
actual exposure under these guarantees was $2,400,000.

iii) Termination payments to OPG pursuant to the lease agreement of $58,300,000.

(g) Commitments
At December 31, 2006, Cameco’s purchase commitments, the majority of which are fixed price uranium and conversion
purchase arrangements, were as follows:

326

In antic
Bruce Power LP a Statement of Claim. This Statement of Claim seeks damages for any amounts that BE is found liable
to pay to the Consortium in connection with the Unit 8 steam generator arbitration described above, damages in th
amount of $500,000,000, costs and pre and post judgment int

Management is of the opinion, after review of the facts with counsel, that this action against Bruce Power LP will not
have a material financial impact on Cameco's financial position, results of operations and liquidity.

(d) A claim has been filed

license for the Gatsuurt property.  The potential impact of this claim
believes that the terms of this agreement have been fully met and the claim is without merit. 

(e) Annual supplemental rents of $26,000,000 (subject to CPI) per operating reactor are payable by BPLP to OPG. Should
the hourly annual average price of electricity in Ontario fall below $30 per megawatt hour, the supplemental rent red
to $13,000,000 per operating reactor.  In accordance with t
share of any adjustments to the supplemental rent.

(M illions (US))

2007 $173

2008 138

2009 126

2010 119

2011 122

Total $1,004

Thereafter
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25.
The roducts. Cameco’s financial results are closely related to the
long d short-term market price of uranium sales and conversion services.  Prices fluctuate and can be affected by demand

prod ld, which
can
level r
oper

To h
sale
vola
gain s
whe

Fina
instr
insti hy.

Exc nd financial liabilities approximates net book
valu

e

rela et
gain

At D

58,

The tracts.  The average exchange rate reflects the original spot prices at the
time the contracts were entered into and includes deferred gains and deferred charges. The realized exchange rate will 
depend on the forward premium (discount) that is earned (paid) as contracts are utilized.

At December 31, 2006, Cameco’s net mark-to-market loss on these foreign currency instruments was $36,800,000 (Cdn).

$40

200 16

200

2010 4

To € 58 1.24 $72

Financial Instruments
majority of revenues are derived from the sale of uranium p
- an

for nuclear power, worldwide production and uranium inventory levels, and political and economic conditions in uranium
ucing and consuming countries.  Revenue from gold operations is largely dependent on the market price of go
be affected by political and economic factors, industry activity and the policies of central banks with respect to their 
s of gold held as reserves.  Financial results are also impacted by changes in foreign currency exchange rates and othe
ating risks.

edge risks associated with fluctuations in the market price for uranium, Cameco seeks to maintain a portfolio of uranium
s contracts with a variety of delivery dates and pricing mechanisms that provide a degree of protection from price
tility. Cameco enters into forward sales contracts to establish a price for future deliveries of US dollars.  Net realized
s (losses) on contracts designated as hedges are recorded as deferred gains (deferred charges) and recognized in earning
n the related hedged transactions occur.

ncial assets that are subject to credit risks include cash and securities, accounts receivable and commodity and currency
uments.  Cameco mitigates credit risk on these financial assets by holding positions with a variety of large creditworthy
tutions.  Sales of uranium, with short payment terms, are made to customers that management believes are creditwort

ept as disclosed below, the fair market value of Cameco’s financial assets a
e as a result of the short-term nature of the instrument or the variable interest rate associated with the instrument.

BPLP is exposed to changes in electricity prices associated with an open spot market for electricity in Ontario. To hedge th
commodity price risk exposure associated with changes in the price of electricity, BPLP enters into various energy and

ted sales contracts. These instruments have terms ranging from 2007 to 2010. At December 31, 2006, the mark-to-mark
on these sales contracts was $54,700,000.

Currency
ecember 31, 2006, Cameco had $1,364,000,000 (US) in forward contracts at an average exchange rate of $1.17 and

350,000 at an average exchange rate of $1.24.  The foreign currency contracts are scheduled for use as follows:

(Millions) US Rate Cdn Euro Rate US

2007 $584 1.19 $695 € 32 1.24

8 375 1.18 443 13 1.24

9 270 1.15 311 10 1.23 12

135 1.14 154 3 1.27

tal $1,364 1.17 $1,603

se positions consist entirely of forward sales con
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26. Per Share Amounts 
Per share amounts have been calculated based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the
year net of shares held as security for employee loans to purchase such shares.  The weighted average number of paid shares
outstanding in 2006 was 351,223,724 (2005 – 347,863,822; 2004 – 342,889,722).

(as adjust ed - (as adjust ed -

not e 3(b)) not e 3(b)

27. Segmented Information
Cameco has four reportable segments:  uranium, fuel services, electricity and gold. The uranium segment involves the
exploration for, mining, milling, purchase and sale of uranium concentrate.  The fuel services segment involves the refining,
conversion and fabrication of uranium concentrate and the purchase and sale of conversion services.  The electricity segment
involves the generation and sale of electricity.  The gold segment involves the exploration for, mining, milling and sale of
gold.

ameco's reportable segments are strategic business units with different products, processes and marketing strategies.

06

ic earnings  per common share $1.07 $0.62 $0.81

Net earnings $375,715 $215,469 $276,506

8,055

21,209 21,214 21,230

tions 4,402 4,614 4,338

458

Diluted earnings  per common share $1.02 $0.60 $0.77

)

2006 2005 2004

Bas ic earnings  per share computation

Net earnings $375,715 $215,469 $276,5

W eighted average common shares  outs tanding 351,224 347,864 342,890

Bas

Diluted earnings  per share computation

Dilutive effect of:

     Convertible debentures 8,992 8,394

Net earnings , as suming dilution $384,707 $223,863 $284,561

W eighted average common shares  outs tanding 351,224 347,864 342,890

Dilutive effect of:

     Convertible debentures

     Stock op

W eighted average common shares  outs tanding, as suming

dilution 376,835 373,692 368,

C

Accounting policies used in each segment are consistent with the policies outlined in the summary of significant accounting
policies.
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(a) Business Segments

2006

Fu e l

2005 (as adjusted – note 3(b))

In te r-

(M illions) Uran i u m S e rvi ce s El e ctri ci ty G ol d S e gm e n t Tota l

Revenue $803 .3 $224 .1 $407 .6 $414 .1 $(17 .4) $1 ,831 .7

Expenses

  P roduct s and serv ices so ld 472 .1 180 .2 221 .0 268 .4 (13 .9) 1 ,127 .8

  Depreciat ion , dep let ion  and reclam at ion 94 .2 19 .1 43 .5 44 .4 (1 .5 ) 199 .7

  Explorat ion 31 .7 - - 26 .5 - 58 .2

  Cigar Lake rem ediat ion 20 .6 - - - - 20 .6

  Research  and developm ent - 2 .7 - - - 2 .7

  Ot her 4 .2 - - (15 .4) - (11 .2)

  Loss (gain ) on  sale o f asset s (0 .4 ) 0 .5 - (1 .3 ) - (1 .2 )

  Non-segm ent ed expenses 89 .6

Earn i n gs  be fore  i n com e  taxe s  an d

   m i n ori ty  i n te re s t 180 .9 21 .6 143 .1 91 .5 (2 .0 ) 345 .5

  Incom e t ax  recovery (68 .8)

  M inorit y  in t erest 38 .6

Ne t e arn i n gs $375 .7

Asse ts $3 ,100 .6 $366 .5 $758 .6 $914 .7 $     - $5 ,140 .4

C api ta l  e xpe n di tu re s  for th e  ye ar $287 .8 $17 .9 $33 .2 $120 .7 $     - $459 .6

Fu e l (i) (i)

(M illions) Uran i u m S e rvi ce s El e ctri ci ty G ol d Adju s tm e n ts Tota l

Revenue $690 .1 $157 .7 $577 .8 $412 .1 $(525 .0) $1 ,312 .7

5

esearch  and developm ent - 2 .4 - - - 2 .4

  Ot her (79 .5) - 109 .1 - (13 .3) 16 .3

(1 .5 )

165 .8)

i n gs  be fore  i n com e  taxe s  an d

   m i n ori ty  i n te re s t 213 .5 25 .4 76 .7 76 .6 - 272 .5

  Incom e t ax  expense 30 .3

  M inorit y  in t erest 26 .7

Ne t e arn i n gs $215 .5

Asse ts $2 ,927 .0 $239 .3 $786 .6 $819 .9 $          - $4 ,772 .8

C api ta l  e xpe n di tu re s  for th e  ye ar $203 .8 $18 .4 $335 .2 $39 .9 $(312 .4) $284 .9

Expenses

  P roduct s and serv ices so ld 428 .5 120 .2 315 .4 231 .0 (281 .1) 814 .0

  Depreciat ion , dep let ion  and reclam at ion 102 .1 9 .8 76 .6 73 .9 (64 .8) 197 .6

  Explorat ion 25 .7 - - 31 .8 - 57 .

R

  Gain  on  sale o f asset s (0 .2 ) (0 .1 ) - (1 .2 ) -

  Earn ings from  Bruce P ower (165 .8) (

  Non-segm ent ed expenses 119 .7

Earn

123



2004 (as adjusted – note 3(b))

(i) Consistent with the presentation of financial information for internal management purposes, Cameco’s pro rata
share of BPLP’s financial results have been presented as a separate segment. In accordance with GAAP, this
investment was accounted for by the equity method of accounting in these consolidated financial statements to
October 31, 2005 [note 19] and the associated revenues and expenses prior to the restructuring are eliminated in the 
adjustments column.

(b) Geographic Segments

Fu e l (i) (i)

(M illions) Uran i u m S e rvi ce s El e ctri ci ty G ol d Adju s tm e n ts Tota l

Revenue $581 .5 $144 .5 $513 .4 $322 .5 $(513 .4) $1 ,048 .5

Expenses

  P roduct s and serv ices so ld 377 .9 101 .9 313 .5 143 .3 (313 .5) 623 .1

  Depreciat ion , dep let ion  and reclam at ion 99 .5 9 .6 67 .8 71 .1 (67 .8) 180 .2

  Explorat ion 17 .0 - - 19 .0 - 36 .0

  Research  and developm ent - 1 .9 - - - 1 .9

  Ot her (1 .8 ) - 11 .4 (123 .5) (11 .4) (125 .3)

  Gain  on  sale o f asset s (1 .7 ) - - (0 .3 ) - (2 .0 )

  Earn ings from  Bruce P ower (120 .7) (120 .7)

  Non-segm ent ed expenses 78 .0

Earn i n gs  be fore  i n com e  taxe s  an d

   m i n ori ty  i n te re s t 90 .6 31 .1 120 .7 212 .9 - 377 .3

  Incom e t ax  recovery 73 .3

  M inorit y  in t erest 27 .5

Ne t e arn i n gs $276 .5

Asse ts $2 ,455 .0 $206 .4 $1 ,079 .6 $742 .1 $(431 .0) $4 ,052 .1

C api ta l  e xpe n di tu re s  for th e  ye ar $122 .5 $14 .0 $114 .3 $11 .8 $(114 .3) $148 .3

(M illions) 2006 2005 2004

Revenue from products  and s ervices

  Canada  - domes tic $525.2 $109.0 $77.4

                - export 271.0 214.9 244.0

    United  States 621.3 576.7 404.6

    Kyrgyzs tan 223.1 260.5 207.8

    M ongolia 191.1 151.6 114.7

$1,831.7 $1,312.7 $1,048.5

As s ets

  Canada $3,560.7 $3,631.5 $2,944.4

  United  States 323.4 234.7 188.4

  Kyrgyzs tan 576.9 473.7 494.5

  M ongolia 305.5 189.5 194.9

  Europe 286.2 199.6 201.3

  Kazakhs tan 87.7 43.8 28.6

$5,140.4 $4,772.8 $4,052.1
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(c) Major Customers
Cameco relies on a small number of customers to purchase a significant portion of its uranium concentrates and uranium
conversion services.  During 2006, revenues from one customer of Cameco’s uranium and fuel services segments
represented approximately $64,270,000 (2005 – $134,600,000; 2004 – $86,500,000), approximately 6% (2005 – 16%;
2004 – 12%) of Cameco’s total revenues from these segments.  As customers are relatively few in number, accounts
receivable from any individual customer may periodically exceed 10% of accounts receivable depending on delivery
schedules.

During 2006, electricity revenues from BPLP’s two largest customers represented approximately 15% and 12% BPLP’s
total revenues.  In 2005, electricity revenues from one customer of BPLP represented approximately 11% of BPLP’s
total revenues.

28. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in Canada and the United States
The consolidated financial statements of Cameco are expressed in Canadian dollars in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles (Canadian GAAP).  The following adjustments and disclosures would be required in order to
present these consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States (US GAAP).

(a) Reconciliation of earnings in accordance with Canadian GAAP to earnings determined in accordance 
with US GAAP:

nadian GAAP $375,715 $215,469 $276,506

A dd (deduct) adjus tments  for (d):

e 18

  M ,028

  Pr

  St

  He  ins truments  (v) (v i) 5,668 (1,765) (12,104)

) (v) (1,003) 25,407 2,015

us ines s  combinations  (x) (3,727) - -

  Stock-bas ed compens ation (xi) (3,998) 2,162 2,279

  Income tax effect of adjus tments (14,258) (7,785) (1,808)

  M inority  in teres t effect of adjus tments 4,326 - -

Net earnings  under US  GAAP 358,215 233,240 283,192

Hedges  and derivative ins truments  (v) 40,076 (36,748) 32,691

Foreign currency trans lation adjus tments  (v ii) 13,631 (12,875) (27,266)

Unrealized gain  (los s ) on available-for-s ale s ecurities  (v iii) (107) (60,606) 36,849

A dditional pens ion obligation (ix) (31,568) - -

Comprehens ive income under US  GAAP $380,247 $123,011 $325,466

Bas ic net earnings  per s hare under US  GAAP $1.02 $0.67 $0.83

Diluted earnings  per s hare under US  GAAP $0.97 $0.65 $0.79

(as adjust ed - (as adjust ed -

no t e 3 (b)) no t e 3 (b))

2006 2005 2004

Net earnings  under Ca

D preciation and depletion (i) - - 1,6

ineral property  cos ts  (ii) - (1,760) 11

e-operating cos ts  (iii) 1,512 1,512 3,658

ripping cos ts  (iv) (6,020) - -

dges  and derivative

  Earnings  from BPLP (iii

  Tax uncertain ties  and b
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(b) Comparison of balance sheet items determined in accordance with Canadian GAAP to balance sheet
items determined in accordance with US GAAP: 

(i) Balance Sheets

(ii) Components of accounts payable and accrued liabilities are as follows:

  A ccounts  payable $283,911 $198,860 $217,359 $126,320

  Taxes  and royalties  payable 65,834 65,834 88,539 88,539

  A ccrued liabilities 53,061 53,061 44,500 44,500

Total accounts  payable and accrued liabilities $402,806 $317,755 $350,398 $259,359

(as adjust ed -

no t e 3 (b))

2006 2005

Canadian US Canadian US

GAAP GAAP GAAP GAAP

Current as s ets $1,354,424 $1,235,813 $1,524,459 $1,399,575

Property , p lant and equipment 3,312,152 2,703,892 2,871,337 2,261,614

Long-term receivables , inves tments  and other 293,714 348,528 196,747 503,833

Goodwill 180,139 176,412 180,232 180,232

Total as s ets $5,140,429 $4,464,645 $4,772,775 $4,345,254

Current liabilities $501,968 $393,803 $635,219 $544,176

Long-term debt 696,691 529,790 702,109 523,149

Provis ion for reclamation 228,496 228,496 167,568 167,568

Other liabilities 232,370 160,761 98,609 50,839

Deferred income taxes 339,451 257,508 444,942 419,664

1,998,976 1,570,358 2,048,447 1,705,396

M inority  in teres t 400,071 395,745 360,697 360,697

Shareholders ’ equity

  Share capital 812,769 812,769 779,035 779,035

  Contributed s urplus 540,173 507,753 529,245 492,827

  Retained earnings 1,428,206 1,344,331 1,108,748 1,042,373

  A ccumulated other comprehens ive income

    - net actuarial los s  [d(ix), g(v)] - (180,630) - -

    - trans itional obligation [g(v)] - (165) - -

    - prior s ervice cos t [g(v)] - (4,041) - -

    - cumulative trans lation account [d(vii)] (39,766) (18,545) (53,397) (32,175)

    - available-for-s ale s ecurities  [d(viii)] - - - 107

    - hedges  and derivative ins truments  [d(v)] - 37,070 - (3,006)

Total accumulated other comprehens ive income (39,766) (166,311) (53,397) (35,074)

Total s hareholders ’ equity 2,741,382 2,498,542 2,363,631 2,279,161

Total liabilities  and s hareholders ’ equity $5,140,429 $4,464,645 $4,772,775 $4,345,254
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adjustments would result in the consolidated statements of cash flows reporting

(d) of certain significant differences between Canadian GAAP and US GAAP follows:

an GAAP, there is a difference in the amount of depreciation and depletion charged to earnings.

Consistent with Canadian GAAP, Cameco defers costs related to mineral properties once the decision to proceed
to development has been made. Under US GAAP, these costs are expensed until such time as a final feasibility
study has confirmed the existence of a commercially mineable deposit. Prior to 2004, there were differences in
accounting for mineral property development costs. As a result, since the carrying value of the mineral property is
now different under US GAAP, interest capitalization was impacted. An adjustment was made to reduce
capitalized interest by $1,760,000 in 2005 (2004 - $1,614,000).  There was no impact on capitalized interest in
2006.

Prior to 2004, the mineral property costs expensed under US GAAP included a provision for loan impairment
totalling $12,642,000. Due to the recognition of reserves and the completion of a final feasibility study, Cameco
was able to demonstrate the loan to be recoverable and reversed the impairment provision in 2004.

(iii) Pre-Operating Costs
Under Canadian GAAP, pre-operating costs incurred during the commissioning phase of a new project are
deferred until commercial production levels are achieved, subject to time limitations. Under US GAAP, such costs
are expensed as incurred as required by AICPA Statement of Position 98-5, Reporting on the Cost of Start-Up
Activities.  McArthur River commercial production commenced March 1, 2000 for US GAAP and November 1, 
2000 for Canadian GAAP.  Differences in capitalized costs are amortized over the estimated lives of the assets to
which they relate.

Prior to 2005, costs related to the restart of two nuclear reactors at BPLP were considered to be start-up costs
required to be expensed under US GAAP. As a result of expensing these start-up costs, there was a difference in
the capital costs recognized under Canadian and US GAAP. Accordingly, an adjustment was made to reduce the
amount of depreciation charged to earnings by $2,329,000 in 2005 (2004 - $2,445,000).

In 2005, the BPLP agreement was restructured resulting in the disposition of certain assets and recognition of a 
loss.  Under US GAAP, the carrying value of these assets was less than under Canadian GAAP. Accordingly, the
pre-tax loss has been reduced by $22,820,000.

(iv) Stripping Costs
Under Canadian GAAP, stripping costs incurred during the production phase by mining companies to remove

nd other mine waste materials in order to access mineral deposits, can be either expensed or
capitalized given the specifics of the situation. Under US GAAP, stripping costs are deemed to be variable
production costs that should be included in the costs of the inventory produced during the period that the stripping
costs are incurred. Stripping costs of $6,020,000 were incurred in 2006 and capitalized at one of the Centerra
production mines. As a result, an adjustment was made to increase products and services sold by the amount
capitalized.

ided by (us ed in) inves ting $(495,378) $36,742 $(171,715)

(c) The effects of these
the following under US GAAP:

2006 2005 2004

Cas h provided by operations $398,100 $283,176 $239,07

Cas h prov

A description

Cas h provided by (us ed in) financing $(175,602) $101,202 $54,014

0

(i) Writedown of Mineral Properties
Under both Canadian and US GAAP, property, plant and equipment must be assessed for potential impairment.
As of 2003, there was no longer any difference in the calculation of an impairment loss between Canadian and US
GAAP. However, as a result of previous differences in the amounts of impairment losses recognized under US
and Canadi

(ii) Mineral Property Costs 

overburden a
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(v) Hedges and Derivative Instruments

Under US GAAP, all derivative instruments are recognized on the balance sheet as either assets or liabilities

measured at fair value. Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognized in earnings unless specific hedge

qualify as a cash flow hedge. Changes in the fair value of derivatives that qualify as fair value

hedges, are recognized in earnings in the same period as the hedged items.  Changes in the fair value of the

effective portion of a cash flow hedge are deferred in other comprehensive income with any ineffectiveness of the

hedge recognized immediately on the statement of earnings.

Prior to 2004, forward points were included in the assessment of hedge effectiveness for Canadian GAAP

purposes and excluded for US GAAP purposes.  The cumulative impact of this difference was $16,042,000 at

December 31, 2003 of which $2,173,000 was recognized in 2006 (2005 - $1,765,000; 2004 - $12,104,000). 

For amounts included in the balance sheet as accumulated other comprehensive income as at December 31, 2006,

a loss of $615,000 (after tax) relates to the hedging of foreign exchange risk.  Of these amounts, a gain of

$5,203,000 (after tax) would be recorded in earnings during 2007 if market conditions remained unchanged. The

impact on other comprehensive income for 2006 is a loss of $22,497,000 (2005 - loss of $14,583,000; 2004 - gain

of $38,814,000).

BPLP also has certain derivative instruments that qualify for hedge accounting. For amounts included in the

balance sheet as accumulated other comprehensive income as at December 31, 2006, a gain of $37,685,000 (after

tax) relates to the hedging of electricity price risk. Of this amount, a gain of $13,976,000 (after tax) would be

recorded in earnings for 2007 if market conditions remained unchanged. The impact on other comprehensive

income for hedge accounting for 2006 is a gain of $62,573,000 (2005 - loss of $22,165,000; 2004 - loss of

$6,123,000).

Prior to August 2003, certain BPLP energy contracts did not qualify for hedge accounting under US GAAP as the

documentation required for hedge accounting was not contemplated at the time of entering into the contracts.

Accordingly, changes in the fair value of these contracts were charged to US GAAP earnings. Under Canadian

GAAP, hedge accounting was applied prior to August 2003, resulting in differences to be recognized in future

periods. As a result of this past difference in hedge accounting treatment, a loss of $1,003,000 was recognized in

2006 (2005 – gain of $259,000; 2004 – gain of $618,000). At the end of 2006, all differences have been

recognized.

(vi) Embedded Derivative Instruments 

Under US GAAP, all derivative instruments are recognized on the balance sheet as either assets or liabilities

measured at fair value. Under Canadian GAAP, derivatives embedded within hybrid instruments are generally not

separately accounted for. In 2006, certain of Cameco’s sales contracts contained embedded foreign currency

derivatives. As a result they were separately accounted for and $7,841,000 was recognized in earnings (2005 – nil, 

2004 – nil).

(vii) Cumulative Translation Account
Under US GAAP, exchange gains and losses arising from the translation of our net investments in foreign
operations are included in comprehensive income. In addition, exchange gains and losses of any foreign currency
debt designated as hedges of those net investments are included in comprehensive income. Cumulative amounts
are included in accumulated other comprehensive income on the balance sheet.

(viii) Available-for-Sale Securities
Under Canadian GAAP, portfolio investments are accounted for using the cost method. Under US GAAP,
portfolio investments classified as available-for-sale securities are carried at market values with unrealized gains
or losses reflected as a separate component of shareholders' equity and included in comprehensive income.  At

nvestments in Energy 
ke Mining Corp., Maudore

Minerals Ltd. (formerly Maude Lake Exploration Ltd.), and Golden Band Resources Inc. were classified as 
available for sale.  The investments in Maudore Minerals Ltd. and Golden Band Resources Inc. were sold in 2006.
The investment in Energy Resources of Australia Ltd was sold in 2005 and the investments in Batavia Mining
Ltd. and Tenke Mining Corp. were sold in 2004. The fair market value of the owned investments at December 31,
2005 was $887,000 (2004 - $79,785,000).  The cumulative unrealized gain at December 31, 2005 was $107,000 
(2004 - $60,713,000).

criteria are met to

December 31, 2006, Cameco no longer held any available-for-sale securities.  Cameco's i
Resources of Australia Ltd, Batavia Mining Ltd. (formerly Menzies Gold NL), Ten
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(ix) Additional Pension Obligation
Under US GAAP, for defined benefit pension plans, an unfunded accumulated benefit obligation should be 
recorded as an additional minimum pension liability. Under Canadian GAAP there is no requirement to recognize
an additional minimum pension liability. In 2006 for the BPLP benefit plans, the impact on other comprehensive
income is a loss of $31,568,000 (2005 – nil, 2004 – nil). The amount in accumulated other comprehensive income
at December 31, 2006 is a net actuarial loss of $31,568,000 (2005 – nil). As a result of the implementation of 
Statement No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Post-retirement Plans (FAS
158) [note (g)v], there will be no requirement prospectively to determine an additional minimum liability.

(x) Tax Uncertainties and Business Combinations 
Uncertainties related to income taxes may exist at the time of a business combination, which affect the recognition
of future income tax assets. These uncertainties may result because the realizability of the future income tax asset 
is uncertain, or because the existence of the asset is uncertain.

Under US GAAP, when a future income tax asset acquired in a business combination that was not recognized as 

an identifiable asset by the acquirer at the date of the acquisition (for realizability or existence issues) is 

subsequently recognized by the acquirer, the benefit should be applied as follows: 1) first to reduce to zero any

goodwill related to the acquisition; 2) second to reduce to zero other non-current intangible assets related to the

acquisition; 3) third to reduce income tax expense.

Under Canadian GAAP, this approach only applies to tax uncertainties related to realizability. If the tax 

uncertainty is related to existence, then subsequent adjustments related to the tax uncertainties would be treated as 

a change in management’s estimates and directly recorded to earnings. In 2006, a tax uncertainty due to existence

was removed related to assets acquired by Centerra from Kyrgyzaltyn in 2004 when Centerra acquired an

additional 66.7% interest in Kumtor Gold Company. As a result, a gain of $6,098,000 was recorded to income tax

for Canadian GAAP purposes. An adjustment of $3,727,000 was made to reallocate part of the gain to goodwill

for US GAAP purposes.

(xi) Stock-Based Compensation

Under Canadian GAAP, in accordance with EIC 162 [note 3(b)], Cameco recognizes stock-based compensation

expense over the shorter of the period to eligible retirement or the vesting period for stock-based awards granted

on or after January 1, 2003. Under US GAAP, this accounting treatment is applied to stock-based awards granted

on or after January 1, 2006. Stock-based awards granted prior to January 1, 2006 are recognized over the full

vesting period of the award. As a result, an adjustment was made to increase stock compensation expense by

$3,998,000 in 2006 (2005 – decrease of $2,162,000, 2004 – decrease of $2,279,000).

(e) Investment in BPLP 
Under Canadian GAAP, Cameco accounts for its interest in BPLP by the proportionate consolidation method.  Under US
GAAP, Cameco is required to equity account for its investment and record in earnings its proportionate share of their net
earnings measured in accordance with US GAAP.

(f) Convertible Debentures
Under US GAAP, convertible debentures are to be classified entirely as debt rather than equity. Due to the difference,
accretion related to the equity component of convertible debentures for Canadian GAAP should be reversed for US
GAAP purposes.  Since all interest related to the debentures is being capitalized under both US and Canadian GAAP, the
adjustment only affects the balance sheet. The cumulative effect is to decrease shareholders’ equity by $30,473,000,
increase long-term debt by $22,699,000 and decrease property, plant and equipment by $7,774,000.

(g) New Accounting Pronouncements
(i) Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments

In February 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement No. 155, Accounting for
Certain Hybrid Instruments – an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133 and 140 (“FAS 155”). FAS 155 allows an
entity to elect to measure certain hybrid financial instruments at fair value in their entirety that contains an
embedded derivative that otherwise would require bifurcation. FAS 155 will be effective for all financial
instruments acquired or issued after the beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year that begins after September 15,
2006. Cameco does not expect the adoption of this statement will have a material impact on its consolidated
financial statements. 
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(ii) Guidance on Accounting for Income Taxes
In July 2006, the FASB issued Financial Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes – an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (“FIN 48”). FIN 48 provides additional guidance on how to recognize,
measure, and disclose income tax benefits. FIN 48 will be effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2006. Cameco does not expect the adoption of this statement will have a material impact on its consolidated
financial statements. 

(iii) Guidance for Quantifying Financial Statement Misstatements 
In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No 108,
Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial

ereby
ntities were using either an income statement approach or a balance sheet approach, but not both, when evaluating

w financial statements. SAB requires that in quantifying and analyzing
m
m
C

(iv) Framework on Fair Value Measurement
In d Statement No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (“FAS 157”). FAS 157 defines
fai
m
15
fi

(v) A
O mber 29, 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension
and Other Post-Retirement Plans (“FAS 158”), an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R).
FA
lia
se tive for
Cameco prospectively as of December 31, 2006.  The required adjustments are reported as an adjustment to the

other comprehensive income.

F
20
of
ta

F plan, the cumulative effect of the change in policy on the balance sheet at December 31, 2006
is to decrease shareholders’ equity by $148,622,000 (net actuarial loss of $144,581,000 and prior service cost of
$4
ta

F
es namortized actuarial
lo

F
es or service cost, and $14,559,000 for the unamortized net actuarial
loss.  There is not expected to be any plan assets returned to the business in 2007.

29. Compara
Certain pri

Statements (“SAB 108”). SEC staff issued SAB 108 to address what they identified as diversity in practice wh
e

hether an error is material to an entity’s
isstatements, both the income statement approach and balance sheet approach should be used to evaluate the 
ateriality of financial statement misstatements. The adoption of this bulletin does not have a material impact on the
ameco consolidated financial statements.

September 2006, the FASB issue
r value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in GAAP, and expands disclosures about fair value

easurements. FAS 157 will be effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November
, 2007. Cameco does not expect the adoption of this statement will have a material impact on its consolidated

nancial statements. 

ccounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Post-Retirement Plans 
n Septe

S 158 requires an entity to recognize the over funded or under funded status of a benefit plan as an asset or
bility in the balance sheet, and to recognize the existing unrecognized net gains and losses, unrecognized prior
rvice costs, and unrecognized net transition assets in other comprehensive income.  FAS 158 is effec

ending balance of accumulated

or the Cameco benefit plan, the cumulative effect of the change in policy on the balance sheet at December 31, 
06 is to decrease shareholders’ equity by $4,646,000 (net actuarial loss of $4,481,000 and transitional obligation
$165,000), decrease long-term receivables, investments and other by $6,749,000 and decrease future income

xes by $2,103,000.

or the BPLP benefit

,041,000), decrease long-term receivables, investments and other by $215,393,000 and decrease future income
xes by $66,771,000.

or the Cameco benefit plans, the estimated amount of amortization expense to be recognized in earnings in 2007 is
timated to be $240,000 for the unamortized transitional obligation, and $487,000 for the u
ss.  There is not expected to be any plan assets returned to the business in 2007.

or the BPLP benefit plans, the estimated amount of amortization expense to be recognized in earnings in 2007 is
timated to be $697,000 for the unrecognized pri

tive Figures
or year balances have been reclassified to conform to the current financial statement presentation.
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Baseload
The minimum amount of electric power
delivered or required over a given period 
of time at a steady rate.

Candu
Canada, Deuterium, Uranium. Canadian
designed and built pressure-tube nuclear
reactor which uses natural uranium as 
fuel and heavy water (deuterium oxide) 
as the moderator.

Capacity Factor
The ratio of the electricity generated by 
a power plant compared to the electricity 
that could have been produced during a
specific period if the plant had operated
continuously at full power.

CNSC
Canadian Nuclear Safety Commission

Conversion
The chemical process that changes U3O8

to UF6 in preparation for enrichment.

Conversion Factors
Weights and measures are indicated in the
unit most commonly used in specific areas
of the industry. These are noted with * and
conversion factors are provided below.

Take This: Do This To Obtain This
t x 1.10 = T
*T x 0.90 = t
*oz/T x 34.28 = g/t
*lb U3O8 ÷ 2599.8 = tU

tU x 2599.8 = lb U3O8

*% U3O8 ÷ 1.18 = % U

Decommissioning
All stages following the shutdown of a
nuclear facility, from final closure through
the removal of radioactivity from the site,
including physical dismantling and
decontamination of all non-reusable
facilities and equipment.

Electricity Measurements
1kW x 1000 = 1MW x 1000 = 1GW x 1000 =
1TW

Kilowatt (kW): kilowatt-hour (kWh)
A kilowatt is a unit of power representing
the rate at which energy is used or
produced. One kilowatt-hour is a unit 
of energy, and represents one hour of
electricity consumption at a constant 
rate of 1kW.

Megawatt (MW): megawatt-hour (MWh)
A megawatt equals 1000 kW. One megawatt-
hour represents one hour of electricity
consumption at a constant rate of 1MW.

Gigawatt (GW): gigawatt-hour (GWh)
A gigawatt equals 1000 MW. One gigawatt-
hour represents one hour of electricity
consumed at a constant rate of 1GW.

Terawatt (TW): terawatt-hour (TWh)
One terawatt equals 1000 GW. One terawatt-
hour represents one hour of electricity
consumption at a constant rate of 1TW.

Enriched Uranium 
Uranium in which the content of the isotope
uranium-235 has been increased above its
natural value of 0.7% by weight. Typical low-
enriched uranium for commercial power
reactors is enriched in uranium-235 to the
range of 3% to 5%. In highly enriched
uranium, the uranium-235 has been
increased to 20% or more.

In Situ Leaching (ISL)
A mining method that involves pumping 
a solution down an injection well where 
it flows through the deposit, dissolving
uranium. The uranium-bearing solution 
is pumped to surface where the uranium 
is recovered from the solution. 

Light Water Reactor
A thermal reactor using ordinary water 
both as a moderator and as a coolant 
with enriched uranium as fuel.

Long-Term Price
The price for product sold or purchased
under contract for multiple deliveries
beginning after one year.

Ounce (oz)
All ounces in this report are troy ounces.

Outage
A temporary suspension of electricity
generation at a power plant.

Radiation
Radiation occurs naturally. It is a type of
energy that travels through space in the
form of waves, or particles, which give up 
all or part of their energy on contact with
matter. Radiation can take the form of alpha
or beta particles, X-rays or gamma rays, 
or neutrons.

Mineral Reserves
A concentration of minerals that is or 
could be economically mined now, as
demonstrated by a feasibility study. 

Mineral Resources
A concentration of minerals that may have a
chance to become economically mineable in
the future. 

Spot Market Price
Price for product sold or purchased in the
spot market rather than under a long-term
contract. Spot market transactions are
generally for delivery within one year.

t
Tonne (metric ton)

T
Ton (short ton)

UO2

Uranium dioxide. Converted from UO3 at
Cameco’s Port Hope plant, then compressed
to pellets and sintered by fuel fabricators to
make fuel for Candu reactors.

UO3

Uranium trioxide. An intermediate product
produced at Cameco’s Blind River refinery
and used as feed to produce UO2 and UF6

at Cameco’s Port Hope conversion plants. 

U3O8

Triuranium octoxide. At Cameco operations,
it is in the form of concentrate, often called
yellowcake.

UF6

Uranium hexafluoride. Converted from 
UO3 at Cameco’s Port Hope plant. Following
enrichment, UF6 is converted to enriched
UO2 suitable for fabrication into fuel for
light-water reactors.

Uranium
Chemical element with atomic number 
92 and atomic symbol U, which has three
natural isotopes: U234, U235 and U238.
The only naturally occurring fissile nuclide 
is U235, a quality that is exploited as a
source of energy. Natural uranium contains
0.7% of this isotope.

Glossary



Cameco Corporation • 2121-11th Street West • Saskatoon, SK, Canada • S7M 1J3

cameco.com

Energy to grow on.
Nuclear energy is clean, reliable and affordable.


